

SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 1 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


 Agenda (Estimated Time)  


   


1. Convene Closed Session 6:00 p.m.  


1.1. Roll Call  


1.2. 


 


Public Comments prior to Closed Session Members of the public may comment on items that ARE 
listed on the Closed Session Agenda. 


2. Closed Session Items  


2.1. Student Expulsion #01-21-22 Information for possible action. 


2.2. Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments 


Information for possible action. 


2.3 
Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint 
(Govt. Code Section 54957)  


Information for possible action. 


   


3. Convene Open Session 6:30 p.m. 


3.1. Welcome  


3.2. Pledge of Allegiance   


3.3. Agenda Changes, Additions or Deletions & 


Announcements 


 


4. Public Comments 
For presentations of matters not on the Agenda. 
3 minutes for individuals; 15 minutes per subject. 


Note to Members of the Public:  Thank you for taking 
the time to attend this meeting.  Santa Cruz City School 
Board Members appreciate your presence and your 
comments regarding items not on the agenda are 
valued.  Per Santa Cruz City Schools Board Bylaw 
protocols, Trustees will not comment on Public 
Comments during this time. 


  


1/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 2 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


   


5. Superintendent's Report  


5.1. Superintendent’s Reports  
 


5.2. Students’ Reports 
 


   


6. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.1. Board Members' Reports  
 


6.2. Board President's Report  
 


   


7. Approval of Minutes   


7.1. Meeting September 1, 2021  


7.2. Meeting October 20, 2021  


   


8. General Public Business   


8.1. Consent Agenda Non-Contract Items and 
Items to be Received: These matters may 
be passed by one roll call motion.  


 


8.1.1. Educational Services  


8.1.1.1. Out of State Travel Request  


   


8.1.2. Business Services  


8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes  


8.1.2.2. Warrant Register  


8.1.2.3. Long Term Debt Report  


2/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 3 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.1.2.4. 1st Quarter Investment Report  


8.1.2.5. Disposition of Surplus  


   


8.1.3. Human Resources  


8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions--Certificated  


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions--Classified  


   


8.1.4. Governance/Superintendent None. 


   


8.2. Consent Agenda: General Contracts & 
Agreements 


 


8.2.1. Educational Services  


8.2.1.1. Contract: PBL Works: Costanoa High School  


   


8.2.2. Business Services  


8.2.2.1. Contract: True North Research  


8.2.2.2. 
ACCO Engineered Systems: Proposal: 
Annual HVAC Preventative Maintenance  


8.2.2.3. Electric School Bus Grant   


   


8.2.3. Human Resources None. 


   


8.2.4. Governance/Superintendent  


8.2.4.1. Consultant Services Agreement: Carolyn 
Post 


 


   


3/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 4 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.3. Consent Agenda: Bond Projects 
Contracts, Agreements, Proposals, Bids 
& Change Orders 


 


8.3.1 Abacherli Fence: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Interim Housing Temporary Fencing 


 


8.3.2. Belli Architectural Group Inc.: Proposal: 
DeLaveaga Elementary School Central 
Kitchen Refrigeration 


 


8.3.3.  Communication Service Corporation 
Proposal Santa Cruz High School 
Announcer Booth IDF 


 


8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons Inc.: Change Order 1: 
DeLaveaga Elementary School Tack Board 
Installation 


 


8.3.5. Leach Group: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Interim Housing Inspections 


 


8.3.6. M3 Environmental: Proposal: Mission Hill 
Middle School Gym Roof Asbestos 
Abtement Oversight 


 


8.3.7. Peninsula Business Interiors: Change Order 
1: Branciforte Small Schools Alternative 
Family Education Furniture Installation 


 


8.3.8. PSR Electric: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Electrical Temporary Housing 
Electrical 


 


8.3.9. SC Systems: Proposal: Santa Cruz High 
School Temporary Housing Data 


 


8.3.10. Secureall: Proposal: Transportation Building 
Door Locks 


 


   
8.4. Report of Closed Session Actions  


8.4.1. Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session  


4/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 5 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.4.2. Vote on Student Expulsion #01-21-22  


   


8.5. Items to Be Transacted and/or Discussed  


8.5.1. Educational Services  


8.5.1.1. Staff Report: COVID Resource Intervention 
Update 


Staff will provide an update on COVID resource 
interventions.  


   
8.5.2. Business Services  


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Food Services Update Staff will provide an update on Food Services. 


8.5.2.2. Staff Report: Bond Project Update 19six Architects will present an update on Measures A and 
B bond projects for Bay View Elementary, DeLaveaga 
Elementary, Branciforte Small Schools, Natural Bridges, 
and Soquel High School. 


8.5.2.3.  Public Hearing: Climatec Agreement  The Public Hearing to receive public comment on the 
proposed Resolution to Enter into an Energy Service 
Agreement with Climatec LLC 


8.5.2.4. Resolution 14-21-22: Climatec Agreement Recommendation: Approve Resolution 14-21-22 for 
Agreement with Climatec and Santa Cruz City Schools.  


   
8.5.3. Human Resources  


8.5.3.1. Public Hearing: Educator Effectiveness 
Grant Public Hearing 


The Public Hearing allows for public comments on the 
Educator Effectiveness Grant. 


   
8.5.4. Governance/Superintendent   


8.5.4.1. New Business: Resolution 13-21-22 
Assembly Bill 75 


Recommendation: Approve Resolution 13-21-22 Assembly 
Bill 75 to hold an election for the issuance and sale of 
bonds of the State of California and for the handling and 
disposition of these funds, and declaring the urgency, 
effective immediately. 


   


5/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 6 of 7 


 Item Purpose / Support 


8.5.4.4. Possible Items for Future Meeting Agendas  


   


9. Adjournment  


  
 


10. Return to Closed Session (if necessary)  


   


11. Closed Session Action Report (if 
necessary) 


 


   


12. Adjournment  


   
 
The board book for this meeting, including this agenda and back-up materials, may be viewed or downloaded online: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education or may be viewed at the District Office, 133 Mission St. Ste. 100, Santa Cruz, CA 
95060.    
 
Public Participation: 
All persons are encouraged to attend and, when appropriate, to participate in meetings of the Santa Cruz City Schools 
Board of Education. If you wish to speak to an item on the agenda, please be present at the beginning of the meeting as 
any item, upon motion, may be moved to the beginning of the agenda.  Consideration of all matters is conducted in open 
session except those relating to litigation, personnel and employee negotiations, which, by law, may be considered in 
closed session. 
 
Translation Requests: 
Spanish language translation is available on an as-needed basis.  Please make advance arrangements with Alyssa 
Martinez by telephone at (831) 429-3410 extension 220. 
 
Las Solicitudes de Traducción: 
Traducciones del inglés al español y del español al inglés están disponibles en las sesiones de la mesa directiva.  Por 
favor haga arreglos por anticipado con Alyssa Martinez por teléfono al numero (831) 429-3410 x220. 
 
Board Meeting Information 


1. The Regular Meeting on November 3, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT                                 


REGULAR MEETING FOR THE ELEMENTARY  


AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021    


OPEN SESSION BEGINS AT 6:30 P.M. 


ZOOM REMOTE BOARD MEETING 


 


COMMUNITY MEMBERS CAN PARTICIPATE REMOTELY VIA ZOOM:   


Click on this link to join meeting. Meeting Password: SCCS 


 


If a member of the community would like to make public comment on a closed session 


item, please join Zoom. Public comment will begin promptly at 5:30 p.m. 


Click on this link to make public comment on a closed session item. 


POSTED 


DATE: 


TIME: 


LOCATION: 


EMPLOYEE: 


 


AGENDA 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools District Regular Meeting November 3, 2021 - Page 7 of 7 


3. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be broadcast 


to the public remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7/329







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 
OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 
SEPTEMBER 1, 2021 


 
Convene Closed Session 
Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 5:30 p.m.  
 
Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   
None 
 
Convene Open Session 
Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:32 p.m. 
 
Attendance at Meeting 
Sheila Coonerty  Cindy Ranii  Jeremy Shonick  
Patricia Threet   Deb Tracy-Proulx Claudia Vestal  
 
Absent:  Trustee John Owen 
 
Student Board Representative Destiny Silva 
Student Board Representative Laura Wang 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent 
Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 
Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 
Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
Members of the Audience 
 
Welcome and Format 
Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education.  President Vestal also acknowledged the tragic loss of an Aptos High student and 
invited the board and attendees to have a moment of silence. 
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 
None. 
 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 
 


 
 
 
 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 


8/329







 
Superintendent’s Report 
Superintendent Munro reported that as students are returning to campus, the district is leading a Restorative 
Restart to lead students back to their highest potential and to each other. Schools are focusing on 
relationships as students reconnect with peers and staff after a year apart. In addition, staff are working 
collaboratively on high impact instructional strategies, and implementing a countywide counseling handbook. 
Curriculum and Assessment teams will be beginning shortly and will focus on identifying priority standards and 
building common assessments. All secondary sites have a social emotional counselor, and all school campuses 
had successful student orientations to welcome students back to school. Sites have also launched after school 
academic support programs and the district peer tutoring program will be launched shortly. The Response to 
Intervention Programs have expanded at the elementary schools and staff are revising the English learner 
Master Plan to build stronger instruction for English Learners. Before the start of the school year staff began 
participating in professional development including the Leadership retreat and SCIL day. The district continues 
to refine its COVID safety protocols and has implemented new screening testing for students and staff. The 
finance department has been closing the book for 2020-21, and facilities continues to work on bond projects 
at school sites.  Superintendent Munro and her team continue work to improve communication with all 
stakeholders. Staff hosted a back-to-school webinar and continue to update the website with new protocols 
and resources. Superintendent Munro also participated on the Chamber of Commerce Education panel, and 
Leadership continues its focus on providing effective communication and a culture of service. 
 
Student’s Report 
Student representative Laura Wang shared the challenges and opportunities that arise as students return from 
distance learning. Underclassmen are being supported by upperclassmen, and the Santa Cruz High Link Crew 
has hosted events to help peers feel more connected to their school. Santa Cruz High had their first football 
game. Clubs are beginning to meet again, and the annual campus club rush is forthcoming. Ms. Wang 
concluded her report by sharing about Cardinal Connect, a 40-minute period in which students can participate 
in study hall, work with peers, or get extra help from teachers. 
 
Student representative Destiny Silva shared that clubs have also begun to meet on Harbor’s campus, including 
Harbor’s Youth Equity Board which focuses on addressing issues related to discrimination and 
microaggressions. Harbor’s club rush is forthcoming and students are reconnecting with their peers through 
various back to school activities, such as their first football game of the season. 
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 
 


Board Members’ Reports 
Trustee Shonick did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Ranii expressed her gratitude for Superintendent Munro and all of the Santa Cruz City School staff, 
acknowledging the difficulties and challenges from the past year and a half. Trustee Ranii also shared her 
excitement as the district embarks on new work in instructional strategies and facilities development. 
 
Trustee Threet did not have a report to share. 
 
Vice President Tracy-Proulx did not have a report to share. 
 
Trustee Coonerty did not have a report to share. 


9/329







 
Board President’s Report 
Board President Vestal thanked all of the staff of the district for their work and dedication to keep kids in 
school. President Vestal also thanked the student board representatives for their reports. 
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 


1. MSP (Coonerty/Tracy-Proulx) 5-1-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of June 2, 2021 Meeting. 
2. MSP (Ranii/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the Minutes of June 16, 2021 Meeting. 
 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 
Consent Agenda 
8.1.1.1. Career Technical Education Advisory Committee Membership, 8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & 
Quotes, 8.1.2.2. Warrant Register, 8.1.2.3. 4th Quarter Investment Report, 8.1.2.4. Long Term Debt Annual 
Report, 8.1.2.5. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.2.6. Joint Powers Authority: Super Co-Op Governing Board 
Appointment, 8.1.2.7. Parcel Tax Oversight Committee: New Member Applications, 8.1.3.1. Personnel 
Actions—Certificated, 8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions—Classified, 8.2.1.1. Consultant Services Agreement: BaySci 
2021-22, 8.2.1.2. Contract Renewal: Naviance Inc., 8.2.1.3. Contract: Blackboard Messenger, 8.2.1.4. Contract 
Addendum: Curriculum Associates: iReady Intervention Software and Assessments, 8.2.1.5. Contract 
Addendum: Edgenuity, 8.2.1.6. Independent Studies Contract, 8.2.1.7. Memorandum of Understanding: 
Transportation Services Agreement, 8.2.2.1. Campus Kids Connection Lease Agreement: 1000 High Street, 
8.3.1. Albion Environmental Change Order 2: Santa Cruz High School Underground Utility Replacement 
Construction Monitoring, 8.3.2. Brannon Corporation Change Order 2: Branciforte Small Schools Alternative 
Family Education Campus Site Work for New Modular Classroom, 8.3.3.  Dilbeck & Son Proposal: Westlake 
Elementary School Door Replacement, 8.3.4. Geo H Wilson Proposal: Harbor High School Data Room 
Temperature Control, 8.3.5. Geo H Wilson Change Order 1: Santa Cruz High School Boiler Repair, 8.3.6. 
MantelMount Quote: Interactive Touch Panel Hardware, 8.3.7. Netxperts Inc. Change Order 2: Districtwide 
Router Installation, 8.3.8. Uline: Quote Harbor High School Woodshop Stools 
 
 
Vice President Tracy-Proulx motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Coonerty seconded the motion. 
 
The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 
Roll Call Vote:  
Coonerty – Yes Owen – Absent Ranii – Yes 
Shonick – Yes  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 
 
Closed Session Items 
Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 
Board Vice President Tracy-Proulx reported the following actions during closed session: 


1. Ms. Parks shared information with the Board on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, 
Retirements, Resignations & Appointments. 


2. Ms. Parks did not have information to share regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaints.  


3. The Board heard updates from legal counsel on two existing litigation cases. 
 


ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 


10/329







 
8.5.1.1. Staff Report: Interdistrict Transfer and Open Enrollment Update 


Assistant Superintendent Coito presented an update on Interdistrict Transfers and Open 
Enrollment for 2021-22. Interdistrict transfers and open enrollment can be awarded to families 
based on specific application guidelines for approval or denial, which are processed by the 
Department of Student Services. All families are personally interviewed after submitting an 
application to identify trends on exiting and entering the district. Ms. Coito shared year-over-
year Open Enrollment data for elementary, middle school and high school. Additionally, data 
was provided to reflect on transfers entering and exiting the district, including restrictions to 
limit outgoing transfers and families’ reasons for transfer requests. This report was 
informational and no action was taken.  


   
8.5.1.2. Public Hearing: Elementary Textbook Sufficiency 


Assistant Superintendent Coito explained that a public hearing for textbook sufficiency must be 
held annually to be eligible to receive instructional material funds. President Vestal opened the 
public hearing for public comment.  
 
Opened: 7:25 p.m. 
Public Comment: None 
Closed: 7:25 p.m. 


 
8.5.1.3. New Business: Resolution 01-21-22: Elementary Textbook Sufficiency 


Assistant Superintendent Coito presented this Resolution 01-21-22, which attests that each 
elementary student in the district has or will have prior to the end of the fiscal year, sufficient 
textbooks or instructional materials in specified subjects that are aligned to the academic 
content standards. Ms. Coito recommended approval of this resolution.  
 
MSP(Shonick/Ranii) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Resolution 01-21-22: Elementary 
Textbook Sufficiency. 
 


8.5.1.4. Public Hearing: Secondary Textbook Sufficiency 
Assistant Superintendent Coito explained that a public hearing for textbook sufficiency must be 
held annually to be eligible to receive instructional material funds. President Vestal opened the 
public hearing for public comment. 
 
Opened: 7:26 p.m. 
Public Comment: None 
Closed: 7:26 p.m. 


 
8.5.1.5.  New Business: Resolution 02-21-22: Secondary Textbook Sufficiency 


Assistant Superintendent Coito presented this Resolution 02-21-22, which attests that each 
secondary student in the district has or will have prior to the end of the fiscal year, sufficient 
textbooks or instructional materials in specified subjects that are aligned to the academic 
content standards. Ms. Coito recommended approval of this resolution.  
 


11/329







MSP(Shonick/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Resolution 02-21-22: Secondary 
Textbook Sufficiency. 


 
8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Opening Enrollment Report 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented a report reflecting opening enrolments by school 
site. The report compared the actual enrollment to the projected enrollment, as well as to the 
October 2020 CBEDs count. Assistant Superintendent Monreal explained how the changes in  
enrollment affected the FTE at each of the school sites. Trustees asked questions and had 
discussion. This report was informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board at this 
time. 


 
8.5.3.1. Staff Report: New Teacher Report 


Assistant Superintendent Parks presented the annual new teacher report for 2021-22. She 
shared that the district welcomed 85 new certificated staff. She also shared about the new 
employee orientation and strategies the district employed to recruit during the pandemic. This 
report was informational in nature and no action was taken by the Board. 


 
8.5.4.1. New Business: Resolution 03-21-22: Proclaiming Hispanic Heritage Month 


Superintendent Munro introduced Resolution 03-21-22 to proclaim September 15 – October 15 
as Hispanic Heritage Month. Santa Cruz City Schools recognizes the important contributions of 
local, State, and National Hispanic Americans to the history of the United States, by promoting 
social justice, enhancing health and well-being, and building a sense of community for Hispanic 
Americans. 
 
MSP(Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Resolution 03-21-22: 
Proclaiming Hispanic Heritage Month 


 
8.5.4.2. Superintendent’s Goals 


Superintendent Munro provided a comprehensive goal plan for 2021-22 and presented on each 
of the goals and their alignment and support of District Goals. She is committed to an open 
agenda and communication with Trustees, District Staff and the greater Santa Cruz school 
community as the district team works diligently to engage students’ hearts and minds - every 
student, every day 


 
8.5.4.3. Potential Items for Futures Agenda 


None. 
 
 
 
9. Adjournment of Meeting 
As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Vestal adjourned 
this Regular Meeting at 8:12 p.m. 
 
Board Meeting Schedule Information  
1. The Regular Meeting on September 22, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12/329







2. The Regular Meeting on October 6, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3. The Regular Meeting on October 20, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 
will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4. The Regular Meeting on November 3, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 
will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 
will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 
will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 
be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


15. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


16. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


17. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


18. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 
broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


 
*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 
http://sccs.net/board_of_education 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


13/329







MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING 


OF THE SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


FOR THE ELEMENTARY AND SECONDARY DISTRICTS 


OCTOBER 20, 2021 


 


Convene Closed Session 


Board President Vestal called this Closed Session Meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.  


 


Public Comments for Closed Session Agenda Items   


None 


 


Convene Open Session 


Board President Vestal called this Regular Meeting Open Session to order at 6:30 p.m. 


 


Attendance at Meeting 


Sheila Coonerty  John Owen 


Patricia Threet   Deb Tracy-Proulx Claudia Vestal  


Cindy Ranii attended the meeting virtually via Zoom. 


 


Absent:  Trustee Jeremy Shonick 


 


Student Board Representative Destiny Silva 


Student Board Representative Laura Wang 


 


Kris Munro, Superintendent 


Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent, Educational Services 


Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent, Human Resources 


Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


Members of the Audience 


 


Welcome and Format 


Board President Vestal welcomed those in attendance and explained the format used for this Regular Meeting 
of the Board of Education.   
 
3.2. Agenda Changes, Additions, or Deletions & Announcements 


Item 7.1. Meeting Minutes September 1, 2021 will be pulled from the agenda, as the Minutes were not 


included in the published Board book. The Minutes will be included in the next Board meeting on November 3. 


 


PUBLIC COMMENTS 


None. 


 


SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 


Superintendent’s Report  


Superintendent Munro shared that 4th graders made their annual visit to Cabrillo College, high schools held 
financial aid and college prep workshops for College and Career Awareness Month and 11th graders took the 


14/329







PSAT. The application for the Strong Workforce Grant was submitted for the Agriculture Pathway. The results 
from the Social Emotional Health Survey for students came in and are being disaggregated and shared. Social 
workers are doing student home visits as well as outreach with homeless families. Superintendent Munro 
reported that she and Assistant Superintendent Parks are holding voluntary meet and greets with new staff 
and Cabinet and Educational Services are participating in principal data conversations. Efforts for hiring 
classified staff are ongoing and include a recruitment fair. Inspired Diagnostics will be offering COVID 
vaccinations at sites for students aged 5-12 years. The Superintendent attended a meeting with True North 
Research regarding the Board’s direction to support completing the Facilities Master Plan and Workforce 
Housing. She also gave a presentation at the County Library Staff Day and attended the S4C Steering 
Committee meeting, the GOAL Adult Education Board meeting, and a meeting with Parks and Recreation 
regarding afterschool programming. 
 


Student’s Report 


Student representative Destiny Silva congratulated the Harbor High Cheer team who placed 2nd in the Reach 
the Beach Competition and qualified for nationals. Students are preparing for Homecoming next week and 
have planned spirit week with many activities that all are encouraged to join. The football team will be playing 
against Pajaro Valley, followed by the Homecoming dance.  
 
Student representative Laura Wang shared that Santa Cruz High has continued to stay strong and passionate 
about various activities and goals, including inclusivity. They had their first CARE meeting this week which 
allowed students to create a space where they can be fully themselves. She also shared that Santa Cruz High’s 
Coalition for Environmental Justice, are holding a community event towards the end of the school day on 
Friday, October 29th. Students will have the opportunity to march for fossil fuel divestment, the addition of 
climate change to our curriculum, and general community environmental goals. Ms. Wang expressed that it is 
nice to come together in person as a community.  
 


BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORTS 


 


Board Members’ Reports 


Trustee Owen reported that he attended the CTE Advisory Committee meeting on Monday and was glad to 


see the progress of improving CTE overall. 


 


Trustee Threet attended the Soquel Community Homecoming parade and shared that the Soquel High football 


team won their homecoming game. 


 


Trustee Coonerty participated in the CTE Advisory Committee meeting and expressed that she was glad to be 


a part of the committee, and that the administrators are very skilled at bringing out new ideas and ways of 


thinking in people in the community. 


 


Trustee Ranii reported that she attended the Community Advisory Committee for WASC Adult Education. 


Adult enrollment is lower compared to prior years, but staff feels confident they are attracting new students. 


They are focusing on health career programs, and they are planning to implement an LVN program. The 


program shows strong enrollment in computer classes and support of parents with children in distance 


learning. The adult school offered to present an update on their programs to the Board. Ms. Ranii thanked the 


student Board representatives for their reports and was grateful for the accommodation to attend remotely.  


 


Trustee Tracy-Proulx did not have a report. 


15/329







 


Board President’s Report 


Board President Vestal attended the Delta High School Sspecial Board meeting to review the Local Control 
Accountability Plan Local Indicators. She also visited Soquel High and noted the structural improvements and 
changes, including the library, lighting, and furniture. She thanked Principal O’Meara for leading the upgrades 
around campus.  
 


APPROVAL OF MINUTES 


 


None. 
 


 


GENERAL PUBLIC BUSINESS 


Consent Agenda 


8.1.1.1. William’s Quarterly Report, 8.1.2.1. Purchase Orders, Bids, & Quotes, 8.1.2.2. Warrant Register, 


8.1.2.3. Budget Transfers, 8.1.2.4. Disposition of Surplus Property, 8.1.3.1. Personnel Actions—Certificated, 


8.1.3.2. Personnel Actions—Classified, 8.2.1.1. Memorandums of Understanding with Neighboring Districts: 


SAIL, 8.2.1.2. Strong Workforce Grant, 8.2.1.3. Agreement for Professional Services: Deborah Bell, 8.2.1.4. Non 


Public Agency: Speechrighter, Inc., 8.2.4.1. ThoughtExchange Additional Licenses, 8.3.1. 19Six Architects Inc.: 


Amendment Agreement: Bay View Elementary School Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY, 8.3.2. 19Six Architects 


Inc.: Amendment Agreement: Branciforte Small Schools Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY, 8.3.3. 19Six 


Architects Inc.: Amendment Agreement: DeLaveaga Elementary School Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY, 8.3.4. 


19Six Architects Inc.: Amendment Agreement: Soquel High School Multi Project Overhead 21.22 FY, 8.3.5. 


Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: Bay View Elementary School Fencing, 8.3.6. Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: 


Mission Hill Middle School Gate Lock, 8.3.7. Abacherli Fence Co.: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Gate 


Replacement, 8.3.8. Anaya Construction: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing, 8.3.9.Bartos 


Architecture: Amendment Agreement: Santa Cruz High School 21.22 FY Temporary Housing, 8.3.10.Bartos 


Architecture: Change Order 1: Santa Cruz High School Modernization Phase 4, 8.3.11. Colbi Technologies: 


Proposal: Secure Bids Software 21.22 FY, 8.3.12. CRW Industries: Change Order 3: Santa Cruz High School 


Switchgear Replacement, 8.3.13. Geo H Wilson: Proposal: Soquel High School Cafeteria Gas Line, 8.3.14. I & A 


Contractor Inc.: Change Order 2: Mission Hill Middle School Gym Re-Roof, 8.3.15. Lewis and Tibbitts Inc.: 


Change Order 2: Mission Hill Middle School Switchgear Replacement, 8.3.16. Locatelli Moving and Storage: 


Proposal: DeLaveaga Elementary School Classroom Moves, 8.3.17. Peninsula Business Interior Proposal Bay 


View Elementary School Principal Furniture, 8.3.18. PSR Electric: Proposal: Santa Cruz High School Electrical for 


Temporary Housing. 


Trustee Threet thanked the Superintendent for initiating conversation with fencing contractors about coating 


the outer fences to cover the metal.    


Vice President Tracy-Proulx motioned to approve the consent agenda. Trustee Coonerty seconded the motion. 
 


The motion was passed by the following roll call vote: 


Roll Call Vote:  


Coonerty – Yes  Owen – Yes  Ranii – Yes 


Shonick – Absent  Threet – Yes  Tracy-Proulx – Yes  Vestal – Yes 


 


Closed Session Items 


16/329







Report of Actions Taken in Closed Session 


Board Vice President Tracy-Proulx reported the following actions during closed session: 


1. The Board of Education took action on Certificated/Classified/Management Leaves, Retirements, 
Resignations and Appointments. 


2. Ms. Parks did not have any information to share with Trustees regarding Public Employee 
Discipline/Dismissal/Release/Complaint. 


3. The Board heard an update from and provided direction to Ms. Parks regarding negotiations with both the 
SCCCE and GSCFT for 2021-22. 


 
ITEMS TO BE TRANSACTED AND/OR DISCUSSED 


 


8.5.1.1. New Business: Single Plans for Student Achievement 


Assistant Superintendent Coito reported that schools that receive state and federal funds are 
required to consolidate all school plans into the Single Plan for Student Achievement (SPSA).  
Developed by School Site Councils, the purpose of the SPSA is to coordinate all educational 
services at the school and improve the academic performance of all students. The Site Councils’ 
responsibilities include approving the plan, recommending it to the local governing board for 
approval, monitoring its implementation, and evaluating the effectiveness of the planned 
activities annually. Ms. Coito introduced Westlake Principal Curley, Mission Hill Principal 
Kendall, and Harbor Principal Runeare to present on their school’s Single Plans. Each principal 
shared goals, strategies and activities, and celebrations in the areas of academic literacy, math, 
English Learner progress, and school connectedness. 
 
Assistant Superintendent Coito recommended the approval of the 2021-2022 Single Plans for 
Student Achievement for Bayview Elementary, DeLaveaga Elementary, Gault Elementary, 
Westlake Elementary, Monarch Community Elementary School, Branciforte Middle School, 
Mission Hill Middle School, Harbor High School, Santa Cruz High School, Soquel High School, 
Costanoa High School, The Ark Independent Study, and Alternative Family Education. 
MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the Single Plans for 
Student Achievement. 


   


8.5.2.1. Staff Report: Preliminary CBEDS Report 
Assistant Superintendent Monreal presented a report on the 2021-22 Preliminary California 
Basic Educational Data System (CBEDS). This annual data collection is administered the first 
Wednesday in October and reports collected demographic information on students, faculty, 
and district employees. Mr. Monreal reported that the district has experienced a slight decline 
in enrollment from 2020-21 to 2021-22 of 21 students. Enrollment data comparisons were 
shared by grade span. This report was informational, and no action was required. 


 
8.5.4.1. Staff Report: Redistricting Trustee Areas 


*Board President Vestal moved this item forward in the agenda due to the time allotment of 
the presenter.   
Superintendent Munro introduced Demographer Doug Johnson of National Demographics 
Corporation to present a report on redistricting Trustee Areas as a result of the 2021 Census 
data. On January 16, 2019, the Board voted to shift to Trustee Areas Elections. Education Code 
section 5019.5 requires that the governing board “adjust the boundaries of any or all of the 
Trustee Areas of the district” if new Census data reveals that the old Trustee Areas are not 
population balanced. Trustees discussed the data presented and provided direction for new 


17/329







map development. Mr. Johnson will present with additional map options in keeping with 
previously adopted principals and include: a slight re-working of the “cluster” at center of 
District 7; review changes that can be made to Districts 4 and 7, and Districts 1 and 3. Mr. 
Johnson is scheduled to propose new map options on January 12, but may potentially present 
sooner if requested.  


 


8.5.2.2.  Staff Report: District Sustainability Plan 


Assistant Superintendent Monreal and Director of Facility Services Trevor Miller presented a 


District Sustainability Program proposal, composed of projects designed to increase energy 


efficiency or generate power to reduce our reliance on fossil fuels. Potential next steps in 


reducing greenhouse gas emissions include solar panel projects at Bay View, DeLaveaga, Gault 


and Branciforte Middle School, new HVAC systems at Bay View and DeLaveaga Elementary 


Schools, and additional lighting modernization districtwide. It was noted that the proposals for 


Bay View will made it the first net zero campus in the district. Trustee Coonerty requested a 


solar powered shade structure for the campuses. The Board provided staff direction to bring 


forward an action item with a contract for sustainability projects based on the 


recommendations provided in the report.  


MSP (Ranii/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the District Sustainability Plan 
Proposal.  


 


8.5.3.1. New Business: GSCFT 2021-2022 Article 
Assistant Superintendent Parks brought forward the 2021-22 Santa Cruz City Schools’ contract 


proposals to Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit for Sunshining. Ms. Parks 


recommended approval of the contract proposals. 


MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Coonerty) 6-0, the Board of Education approved the 2021-22 Santa Cruz 
City Schools’ contract proposals to Greater Santa Cruz Federation of Teachers’ K-12 Unit for 
Sunshining. 


 


8.5.4.2. New Business: Resolution 11-21-22: Indigenous Heritage Month 
Superintendent Munro presented Resolution 11-21-22 to annually recognize Indigenous 


Heritage Month each November. Indigenous Heritage Month celebrates the heritages and 


cultures of Native Americans and the contributions of Native Americans to the United States. 


The Superintendent recommended approval of Resolution 11-21-22. 


MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Owen) 6-0, the Board of Education approved Resolution 11-21-22 for 
Indigenous Heritage Month. 


 


8.5.4.3. New Business: Resolution 12-21-22: AB 361  


Superintendent Munro presented Resolution 12-21-22 to authorize continued use of remote 


teleconferencing provisions pursuant to AB 361 and Government Code section 54953. 


Consistent with Government code section 54953, on September 22, 2021, Santa Cruz City 


Schools Board of Education took action to continue virtual meetings, finding that meeting in 


person would present imminent risks to the health or safety of attendees. Trustees discussed 


Assembly Bill 361 and considered if the current circumstances meet the requirements for the 


Board to continue conducting meetings remotely.  


Trustee Tracy-Proulx made a motion to continue to conduct Board meetings remotely, and 


revisit in 30 days as required. Trustee Owen seconded the motion. 


18/329







MSP (Tracy-Proulx/Owen) 5-1, the Board of Education approved Resolution 12-21-22 
Assembly Bill 361. 


 


8.5.4.4. Potential Items for Futures Agenda 


None. 


 


 


9. Adjournment of Meeting 


As there was no further business to come before the Board of Education, Board President Vestal adjourned 


this Regular Meeting at 9:27 p.m. 


 


 


Board Meeting Schedule Information  


1. The Regular Meeting on October 20, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


2.1. The Regular Meeting on November 3, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


3.2. The Study Session on November 17, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


4.3. The Regular Meeting on December 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


5.4. The Regular Meeting on January 12, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


6.5. The Study Session on January 19, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will be 


broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


7.6. The Regular Meeting on February 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


8.7. The Regular Meeting on February 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


9.8. The Regular Meeting on March 9, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


10.9. The Regular Meeting on March 23, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


11.10. The Regular Meeting on April 13, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


12.11. The Study Session on April 27, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


13.12. The Regular Meeting on May 11, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


14.13. The Study Session on May 25, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


15.14. The Regular Meeting on June 1, 2022, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and will 


be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


19/329







16.15. The Regular Meeting on June 15, 2021, 6:30 p.m., at the Santa Cruz County Office of Education, and 


will be broadcast to the public remotely via Zoom. 


 


*For more details about this meeting, please visit our district website and listen to the meeting recording: 


http://sccs.net/board_of_education 


 


Respectfully submitted, 


 


Kris Munro, Superintendent     Claudia Vestal, President 


Santa Cruz City Schools     Board of Education 


20/329







  AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.1.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Out of State Travel Request 
 
MEETING DATE: November 3, 2021 
 
FROM: Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the out-of-state travel of the Special Education Director and a Program Specialist to 
visit and monitor the progress of students who are enrolled in out-of-state residential 
treatment facilities in Utah and to visit a potential residential facility in Georgia. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
State law requires that District’s visit and monitor out of state student placements.  In 
accordance with Board Policy 3350; all out-of-state travel for which reimbursement will be 
claimed requires Board approval.  Itemized receipts will be submitted for reimbursement.  
Every effort will be made to contain total expenses associated with this trip.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $2,500.00, Special Education Base (Restricted)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics. 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
 
Goal #5:  Santa Cruz City Schools will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective 
management. 
 
 
 
 
 


 
Prepared by Stacy O’Farrell, Director of Special Education 


 


21/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Purchase Orders, Bids and Quotes  
 
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the purchase orders, quotes, bids and proposals from 10/14/2021 through 
10/21/2021. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
A detailed report is attached, listing purchase orders, quotes and bids that require Board 
approval prior to release to vendors or ratification within 60 days as allowed by Education 
Code 17605. Also included for pre-approval are 2021-22 purchase orders which will be entered 
before the next regular Board meeting for Facility Services, Transportation, Food Services, and 
Central Purchasing for routine supplies and services. 
 
The following definitions are provided to clarify the differences between purchase orders, 
quotes and bids: 
 
Purchase Orders: 
All purchases shall be made by formal contract or purchase order or shall be accompanied by a 
receipt. The Superintendent or designee may create a "blanket" or "open" purchase order 
system for the purchase of minor items as needed from a vendor.  
 
Quotes: 
For the purchase of materials and supplies between $15,000 and $60,000 more than one quote 
is required and may be verbal or written. When purchases will be $15,000 to $95,200 for 
contracted work other than Public Works Projects and $60,000 to $95,200 for materials and 
supplies, several vendors are contacted for written quotes/proposals. This process, though not 
as rigorous as a bid, ensures that the District has involved more than one vendor and will 
secure a competitive price.  
   
Bids/RFP: 
A formal process including advertising to notify prospective bidders, distribution of written 
specification regarding the work or materials, and compliance with legal guidelines for bidding, 
must be followed for contracted work other than CUPCCAA Public Works Projects projected to 
cost $96,700 and over, or for materials and supplies in the sum of $95,200 or over unless a 
Cooperative Purchasing Agreement is being utilized under PCC 20118. Under CUPCCAA 
contracts may be awarded up to $60,000 without additional quotes. Informal bidding 


22/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.1. 


procedures are followed for Public Works projects from $60,000 to $200,000 and a formal bid 
process occurs for Public Works projects over $200,000 (PCC 20117(B), 20651(B). Bids are 
solicited from a wide pool of prospective vendors, thus assuring that when the award is made 
to the lowest responsible bidder and that the District receives the best price available. 
   
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


23/329







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/14/2021 - 10/21/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


BPO22-00007 10,000.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO REPAIRS AS 


NEEDED AT VARIOUS SITES


01 ONGOING & MAJORDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-00017 12,000.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs 01 TRANSPORT:SPECINORTH BAY FORD


PO22-00074 12,000.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs/Service 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEDIESELWORKS


PO22-00075 8,500.00 TRANOpen PO for Bus Repairs/Service 01 TRANSPORT:SPECIDIESELWORKS


PO22-01180 254.91 MHMSPerma Bound-Ghost Boys 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCPERMA BOUND DIVISIO


PO22-01181 170.87 MHMSi ready Spanish math grades 6-8 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCCURRICULUM ASSOCIAT


PO22-01182 344.21 SQHSDYE OXIDE, SMART STAIN PER 


ATTACHED QUOTE


01 Measure TSCULPT NOUVEAU


PO22-01183 930.83 BSSAFE library books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCBOOKSHOP SANTA CRUZ


PO22-01184 87.88 BSSQuote QBW7358-4 Art pastel crayons 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCDICK BLICK COMPANY


PO22-01185 569.33 SCHSCFP - PE Equipment 01 OTHER RESTRICTEKANKAKEE SPIKEBALL 


PO22-01186 154.49 DLELDLV Library Supplies 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIDEMCO INC


PO22-01187 737.44 DLELGreat Minds- SUCCEED Books 01 LOTTERY:INSTRUCGREAT MINDS LLC


PO22-01188 50.00 TRANOffice Supplies 01 TRANSPORT:HOMEOFFICE DEPOT


PO22-01189 6,614.00 M&ODLV TACKBOARD 21 BOND, MEASURE BDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01190 1,180.00 M&OSCH RM66 INSPECTIONS 21 BOND, MEASURE AM3 ENVIRONMENTAL CO


PO22-01191 7,680.00 M&ODLV PORTABLE SAFE OFF 21 BOND, MEASURE BPSR ELECTRIC


PO22-01192 13,270.00 M&ODW LEAD WATER TESTING 01 ONGOING & MAJORM3 ENVIRONMENTAL CO


PO22-01193 750.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO POOL CONTROLLER 


PARTS AS NEEDED


01 ONGOING & MAJORCHEMTROL


PO22-01194 5,840.00 M&ODO SOUNDBOARD INSTALLATION 01 ONGOING & MAJORDILBECK & SONS INC


PO22-01195 5,000.00 M&O21/22 PO FOR FOR EMERGENCY 


CLEANING SERVICES


01 ONGOING & MAJORABA BUILDING SERVIC


PO22-01196 350.00 BMSClasstroom Supplies 01 DONATIONSPALACE BUSINESS SOL


PO22-01197 4,000.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO HAZARDOUS 


MATERIAL/AIR TESTING


01 ONGOING & MAJORM3 ENVIRONMENTAL CO


PO22-01198 29.12 SQHSCFP-DRILL, CONDUIT MIG LINER 01 Measure TFASTENAL CO


PO22-01199 295.00 SCHSEquipment Move 01 NO REPORTING RERAY MORGAN CO.


PO22-01200 4,916.25 M&OGRACO LINE LAZER FOR PAINTER 01 ONGOING & MAJORINTERSTATE TRAFFIC 


PO22-01201 800.00 BMSRef Fees for Basketball 01 Measure USANTA CRUZ COUNTY B


PO22-01202 500.00 WLELPumpkins 01 DONATIONSRODONI FARM FRESH P


PO22-01203 463.22 DLELLibrary Table 01 NO REPORTING RESIERRA SCHOOL EQUIP


PO22-01204 177.38 ITUSB C Dock 01 NO REPORTING RECDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01205 183.54 WLELProjector Bulbs 01 NO REPORTING RENORTHSTAR AV LLC


PO22-01206 59.06 HHSPE Equipment 01 NO REPORTING REBSN SPORTS LLC


PO22-01207 373.69 HHSPE Equipment 01 NO REPORTING REGOPHER SPORT


PO22-01208 5,071.75 BSSCFP Follett Ark books from 2020-21 01 LCFF SUPP FUNDIFOLLETT SCHOOL SOLU


PO22-01209 50,915.31 TRANElectric Bus 01 TRANSPORT:HOMELION ELECTRIC CO US


PO22-01210 600.00 DLELReading for Social Justice PD 01 ESEA:TEACHER QUUCSC


PO22-01211 150.00 SQHSCONFERENCE-LUKE DAHLEN & 


JEREMY CLARK


01 ESEA:TEACHER QUCSUMB


PO22-01212 281.10 HHSClassroom Supplies 01 C. PERKINS CTE:HENRY SCHEIN INC


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 22 2021  2:09PM


Page 1 of 2


24/329







Board Report with Fund and Resource 


Description


ReqPay11g


Includes Purchase Orders dated 10/14/2021 - 10/21/2021


PO
Number


Req Fund
Order Amt


Ordr
Loc


Req
FundRequisition Information


Resource
DescriptionVendor Name


PO22-01213 550.00 HHSCFP - Workshop 01 BAS GNT LOW-INCINTERNATIONAL BACCA


PO22-01214 500.00 CURRCFP: Whats Schools Could Be Invoice 01 ESEA:STDNT SUPPSANTA CRUZ COE


PO22-01215 520.00 BUSNCONFERENCE REGISTRATIONS 01 NO REPORTING RESCHOOL SERVICES OF 


PO22-01216 93,455.00 M&OHH BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01217 51,260.00 M&OSCH BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01218 41,755.00 M&OB40MS BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01219 38,545.00 M&OWL BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01220 45,084.00 M&OMHMS BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01221 35,310.00 M&OGE BUILDING AUTOMATION 01 ESSER IIPACIFIC COAST TRANE


PO22-01222 858.09 SPEDRSP TEACHER CURRICULUM 01 SE:STATE LOCALHEGGERTY PHONEMIC A


PO22-01223 923.79 ITHP ProDesk 01 NO REPORTING RECDW GOVERNMENT INC.


PO22-01224 300.00 GAELArt Supplies 01 Measure UPHOENIX CERAMICS SU


PO22-01225 200.00 GAELArt Supplies 01 Measure UAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01226 259.15 SCHSHealth Room Supplies 01 NO REPORTING REAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


PO22-01227 1,500.00 M&O21/22 OPEN PO FOR 


PARTS/SUPPLIES


01 ONGOING & MAJORNEVCO SCOREBOARD CO


PO22-01228 119.62 ITCFP: Mosyle Additional Licenses 01 NO REPORTING REMOSYLE CORPORATION


PO22-01229 3,762.00 FINAnnual PO for Medical Contribution 01DANIEL JOHN SIDDENS


PO22-01230 1,000.00 GAELFLEX Program Materials and Supplies 01 OTHER RESTRICTEAMAZON CAPITAL SERV


Total 471,201.03 


The preceding Purchase Orders have been issued in accordance with the District's Purchasing Policy and 


authorization of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Purchase Orders be approved 


and that payment be authorized upon delivery and acceptance of the items ordered.


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools Generated for Paula Morin (PMORIN), Oct 22 2021  2:09PM


Page 2 of 2


25/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.2. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Warrant Register 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the warrants on the Board Payment Report. The report covers vendor warrants issued 
from 10/15/2021 through 10/22/2021.  
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
  
 
 
  
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


26/329







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 10/15/2021 through 10/22/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


BSN SPORTS LLC 01-869910/18/2021981679 571.25 


ADVANCED WORKPLACER 


STRATEGIES  INC


01-580010/18/2021981680 121.00 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-420010/18/2021981681 235.64 


01-4300 1,604.34 


Unpaid Tax .36- 1,839.62 


AMERICAN RED CROSS 01-580010/18/2021981682 32.00 


AT&T 01-580010/18/2021981683 663.60 


BENCHMARK EDUCATION CO. 01-410010/18/2021981684 1,401.19 


01-4300 3,921.82 2,520.63 


CALIFORNIA SCHOLARSHIP 


FEDERATION INC (CSF)


01-530010/18/2021981685 100.00 


CENTER FOR THE COLLABORATIVE 


CLASSROOM


01-430010/18/2021981686 2,076.50 


CINTAS CORPORATIONS 01-430010/18/2021981687 114.80 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430010/18/2021981688 573.89 


COMMUNITY PRINTERS INC 01-580010/18/2021981689 950.48 


DIESELWORKS 01-560010/18/2021981690 5,302.86 


DISCOUNT SCHOOL SUPPLY 01-430010/18/2021981691 196.49 


DOCTORS ON DUTY MEDICAL 


GROUP


01-580010/18/2021981692 685.00 


EFOODHANDLERS 01-430010/18/2021981693 120.00 


FLAGS USA LLC 01-430010/18/2021981694 71.27 


FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC 01-430010/18/2021981695 1,731.61 


GREAT MINDS PBC 01-430010/18/2021981696 15,580.34 


JEFFREY N BOTTORFF 01-580010/18/2021981697 543.75 


MACMURRAY PACIFIC WHOLESALE 


BUILDERS SPECIALTIES


01-430010/18/2021981698 530.23 


Unpaid Tax 2.43- 527.80 


NORTH BAY FORD 01-560010/18/2021981699 1,451.42 


ONE WORK PLACE L FERRARI LLC 01-440010/18/2021981700 3,009.96 


OTTLEY INC DBA BLUE WATER 


SEDANS


01-580010/18/2021981701 12,489.00 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430010/18/2021981702 332.88 


PERFECTION LEARNING CORP 01-410010/18/2021981703 1,199.74 


ROYAL COACH TOURS 01-580010/18/2021981704 1,740.00 


SAN JOAQUIN COE 01-580010/18/2021981705 1,605.50 


SCHOOL SERVICES OF CALIF 01-520010/18/2021981706 275.00 


SCI CONSULTING GROUP 01-580010/18/2021981707 12,021.51 


SYSCO FOOD SERVICES OF SF 13-430010/18/2021981708 289.73 


13-4700 1,256.65 966.92 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


REVOLVING


01-580010/18/2021981709 30.00 


JENNIFER ROCHA 01-580010/18/2021981710 300.00 


LIZBETH TORO MEDINA 01-580010/18/2021981711 500.00 


A-Z BUS SALES INC 01-430010/18/2021981712 227.32 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430010/18/2021981713 1,779.63 


Unpaid Tax .22 1,779.85 


Page 1 of 4


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 28 2021  


7:45AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


27/329







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 10/15/2021 through 10/22/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


AMPLIFIED IT LLC 01-580010/18/2021981714 3,750.00 


AT&T 01-590010/18/2021981715 1,099.41 


AT&T MOBILITY 01-591310/18/2021981716 133.86 


BLACKBOARD INC 01-580010/18/2021981717 3,500.00 


BORDERLAN SECURITY 01-580010/18/2021981718 15,659.10 


CALIF DOJ ACCTNG CUST #140415, 


ORI AB476


01-580010/18/2021981719 2,366.00 


CHARTWELL SCHOOL 01-580010/18/2021981720 4,692.04 


CITY OF SANTA CRUZ FINANCE-RRF 


LANDFILL A/R


01-551510/18/2021981721 621.56 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430010/18/2021981722 371.49 


COUSIN'S CONCERT ATTIRE 01-430010/18/2021981723 213.00 


DFA-ACTUARIES LLC 01-580010/18/2021981724 500.00 


EMBI TEC 01-430010/18/2021981725 146.10 


FLINN SCIENTIFIC INC 01-430010/18/2021981726 77.57 


FOLLETT SCHOOL SOLUTIONS INC 01-420010/18/2021981727 233.13 


GRAY'S MUSICAL INSTRUMENTS 01-440010/18/2021981728 4,916.25 


Unpaid Tax .90- 4,915.35 


JUNIOR LIBRARY GUILD 01-430010/18/2021981729 693.40 


Unpaid Tax 3.19 696.59 


LEARNING WITHOUT TEARS 01-430010/18/2021981730 1,246.21 


Unpaid Tax 2.96- 1,243.25 


NATIONAL ASSOC OF SECONDARY 01-530010/18/2021981731 385.00 


OFFICE DEPOT 01-430010/18/2021981732 1,220.53 


PALACE BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 01-430010/18/2021981733 1,452.20 


PHOENIX CERAMICS SUPPLY 01-430010/18/2021981734 868.54 


PPD MULTIMEDIA 01-560010/18/2021981735 163.78 


Unpaid Tax .23- 163.55 


RIO GRANDE ALBUQUERQUE INC. 01-430010/18/2021981736 673.33 


Unpaid Tax .05 673.38 


SANTA CRUZ COE 01-580010/18/2021981737 550.00 


SANTA CRUZ METRO 01-580010/18/2021981738 405.00 


SEEDS COMMUNITY RESOLUTION 


CTR


01-580010/18/2021981739 20,000.00 


SISC 01-951410/18/2021981740 555,389.60 


SOQUEL CREEK WATER DISTRICT 01-551410/18/2021981741 9,598.68 


SUTTER HEALTH PLUS 01-951410/18/2021981742 419,564.53 


Lopez, Teodoro 01-430010/18/2021981743 71.34 


Vanderplas, Justyn F 01-430010/18/2021981744 32.98 


Hedrick-Farr, Amy R 13-430010/18/2021981745 1,596.92 


13-4700 3,770.99 2,174.07 


Della Mora, Ebby E 01-420010/18/2021981746 16.90 


Hernandez, Amariah A 01-430010/18/2021981747 84.37 


Turpin, Maritza 01-430010/18/2021981748 200.00 


Holladay, Orla G 01-580010/18/2021981749 195.00 


Lopez Hernandez, Juan J 01-520010/18/2021981750 51.00 


Asamoto, Erin E 01-439510/18/2021981751 48.15 


Page 2 of 4


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 28 2021  


7:45AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


28/329







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 10/15/2021 through 10/22/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


Toschi, Dina R 01-520010/18/2021981752 195.49 


O'Meara, Gregory 01-430010/18/2021981753 46.18 


Pfeiffer, Nehal T 01-430010/18/2021981754 163.82 


Rominger, Sarah A 01-430010/18/2021981755 33.98 


Griffith, Kathy L 01-430010/18/2021981756 30.17 


Smith, James R 01-430010/18/2021981757 269.95 


JACK MCCOMBIE 73-580010/18/2021981758 1,000.00 


JENNIFER NIXEN 01-951910/18/2021981759 242.71 


ALBION ENVIRONMENTAL INC 21-628010/18/2021981760 5,439.13 


BELLI ARCHITECTURAL GROUP INC 14-620010/18/2021981761 1,934.10 


21-6210 23,608.81 


21-6251 325.97 


40-6210 7,520.00 


40-6251 33,398.25 9.37 


ENVIROPLEX INC 21-620110/18/2021981762 7,410.00 


THE GARLAND COMPANY INC 21-620310/18/2021981763 5,419.60 


A SIGN ASAP 01-580010/18/2021981764 681.55 


AA SAFE & LOCK COMPANY 01-430010/18/2021981765 241.31 


ACCO ENGINEERED SYSTEMS 01-560010/18/2021981766 4,151.72 


AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES 01-430010/18/2021981767 200.84 


APPI 01-430010/18/2021981768 458.77 


C & N TRACTORS 01-640010/18/2021981769 11,409.95 


CINTAS CORPORATIONS 01-430010/18/2021981770 355.14 


COAST PAPER & SUPPLY 01-430010/18/2021981771 51.00 


EWING IRRIGATION PRODUCTS 01-430010/18/2021981772 206.79 


FERGUSON ENTERPRISES 01-430010/18/2021981773 282.45 


HINES PEST & WEED CONTROL 


DBA R AURIA INC


01-580010/18/2021981774 95.00 


HOME DEPOT INC 01-430010/18/2021981775 2,942.27 


KNORR SYSTEMS 01-430010/18/2021981776 1,004.65 


LINCOLN AQUATICS 01-430010/18/2021981777 2,629.14 


NORTH BAY FORD 01-560010/18/2021981778 309.42 


PSR ELECTRIC 01-580010/18/2021981779 3,150.00 


RIVERSIDE LIGHTING 01-430010/18/2021981780 210.89 


SAN LORENZO LUMBER AND HOME 


CENTER


01-430010/18/2021981781 773.92 


SANTA CRUZ AUTO PARTS INC 01-430010/18/2021981782 80.52 


SANTA CRUZ RECORDS 


MANAGEMENT


01-580010/18/2021981783 40.00 


STATE OF CALIFORNIA 01-580010/18/2021981784 250.00 


SURTEC INC 01-560010/18/2021981785 5,974.16 


ULINE 01-430010/18/2021981786 100.45 


1,218,152.32 Total Number of Checks 108 


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


Page 3 of 4


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 28 2021  


7:45AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


29/329







Board ReportReqPay12a


Checks Dated 10/15/2021 through 10/22/2021


Pay to the Order of
Fund-Object


Check 
Date


Check 
Number


Expensed
Amount


Check
Amount


Fund Recap


Fund Description Check Count Expensed Amount


GENERAL/COUNTY SCHOOL 101 1,160,461.12 01


CAFETERIA SPECIAL REVENUE 2 5,027.64 13


DEFERRED MAINTENANCE 1 1,934.10 14


BUILDING 4 42,203.51 21


SPL RESV CAPITAL OUTLAY PRJ 1 7,529.37 40


FOUNDATION PRIVATE-PURPOSE TRU 1 1,000.00 73


Net (Check Amount)


Less Unpaid Tax Liability


Total Number of Checks 1,218,155.74 


3.42-


1,218,152.32 


108 


Page 4 of 4


Generated for Suzanne Trinchero (STRINCHERO), Oct 28 2021  


7:45AM


014 - Santa Cruz City Schools


The preceding Checks have been issued in accordance with the District's Policy and authorization 


of the Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that the preceding Checks be approved.


30/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Long-Term Debt Annual Report 
 
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Long-Term Debt Report. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This is an annual report on the District’s long-term debt obligations.  The District’s long-term 
debt is currently composed of facilities Bond Measures and a Certificate of Participation (COP) 
that was issued in 2010 to install the artificial turf field at Branciforte Middle School.  The 
District investigated an early payoff of the COP, but there is a penalty for early payment as the 
financing was through the American Recovery and Investment Act of 2009.   
 
Long-Term Debt Summary and 2021-22 Annual Payment 


 Principal Interest 
Total Amount 


Owed 


Total Long Term Debt 217,630,664 83,899,971 301,530,635 


2021-2022 Annual Payment 8,376,023 7,024,663 15,400,686 


 
 
General Obligation Bonds: Secondary School District Debt Summary 


Debt Description Principal Interest Amount Owed 
Date of Final 


Payment 
Funding 
Source 


Measure H 1998 Election 1,320,969 2,979,031 4,3000,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure H 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 


19,565,000 3,138,200 22,703,200 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election,  
Series A 


42,585,000 21,573,650 64,158,650 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


40,070,000 20,178,300 60,248,300 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election, 
Series C 


42,000,000 9,470,135 51,470,135 8/1/2040 
Property 


Taxes 


Total Amount Owed Secondary 145,540,969 57,339,316 202,880,285   


31/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


2021-2022 Annual Payment 5,552,603 4,677,889 10,230,942   


 
General Obligation Bonds: Elementary School District Debt Summary 


Debt Description Principal Interest Amount Owed 
Date of Final 


Payment 
Funding 
Source 


Measure E 1998 Election 619,696 1,380,304 2,000,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure E 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 


9,785,000 1,503,900 11,288,900 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure B 2016 Election,  
Series A 


20,915,000 10,371,737 31,286,737 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure B 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


19,510,000 9,920,687 29,430,687 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Measure A 2016 Election, 
Series C 


20,400,000 3,199,155 23,599,155 8/1/2036 
Property 


Taxes 


Total Amount Owed 
Elementary 


71,229,696 26,375,783 97,605,479 
  


2020-2021 Annual Payment 2,683,420 2,287,018 4,970,438   


 
Branciforte Middle School Qualified School Construction Bond 


 Principal Interest Amount Owed 


2020-2021 Annual Payment 140,000 59,756 199,756 


Total Amount Owed 860,000 184,872 1,044,872 


Funding Source RDA Funds   


Date of Final Payment 05/01/2027   


 
Long Term Debt Recap 


District Debt Description Principal Interest 
Amount 


Owed 


Date of 
Final 


Payment 


Funding 
Source 


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 1,320,968 2,979,031 4,299,999 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure H 1998 Election 
2013 Refunding 


19,565,000 3,138,200 22,703,200 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure A 2016 Election,  
Series A 


42,585,000 21,573,650 64,158,650 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure A 2016 Election, 
Series B 


40,070,000 20,178,300 60,248,300 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Secondary 
Measure A 2016 Election, 
Series C 


42,000,000 9,470,135 51,470,135 8/1/2040 
Property 


Taxes 


32/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.1.2.3. 


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 619,696 1,380,304 2,000,000 2/1/2026 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure E 1998 Election 
2013 Refunding 


9,785,000 1,503,900 11,288,900 8/1/2029 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure B 2016 Election,  
Series A 


20,915,000 10,371,737 31,286,737 8/1/2042 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure B 2016 Election, 
 Series B 


19,510,000 9,920,687 29,430,687 8/1/2045 
Property 


Taxes 


Elementary 
Measure A 2016 Election, 
Series C 


20,400,000 3,199,155 23,599,155 8/1/2036 
Property 


Taxes 


Both 
2010 Certificate of 
Participation (QSCB) 


860,000 184,872 1,044,872 5/1/2027 RDA Funds 


 
Total Amount Owed 217,630,664 83,899,971 


301,530,63
5 


  


 
 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Total long-term debt is $217,630,664.  The 2021-22 annual payment is $15,400,686.  Funding 
source:  Property Taxes and Redevelopment Agency Funds (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


 


33/329







SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS


LONG TERM DEBT REPORT


Board Meeting November 3, 2021


34/329







Long Term Debt Summary and 2021-2022 Annual Payment


Principal Interest


Total 
Amount 
Owed


Total Long-Term Debt $217,630,664 $83,899,971   $301,530,635 


2021-2022 Annual 
Payment $8,376,023 $7,024,663 $15,400,686 


35/329







General Obligation Bonds
Secondary School District Debt Summary


Debt Description Principal Interest
Amount 
Owed


Date of Final 
Payment


Funding 
Source


Measure H 1998 Election 1,320,969 2,979,031 4,300,000          2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Measure H 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 19,565,000 3,138,200 22,703,200         8/1/2029 Property Taxes


Measure A 2016 Election, Series A 42,585,000 21,573,650     64,158,650         8/1/2042 Property Taxes


Measure A 2016 Election, Series B 40,070,000 20,178,300 60,248,300         8/1/2045 Property Taxes


Measure A 2016 Election, Series C 42,000,000 9,470,135 51,470,135         8/1/2040 Property Taxes


Total Amount Owed Secondary 145,540,969 57,339,316           202,880,285 


2021-2022 Annual Payment 5,552,603 4,677,889 10,230,492       


36/329







General Obligation Bonds
Elementary School District Debt Summary


Debt Description Principal Interest
Amount 
Owed


Date of 
Final 


Payment Funding Source


Measure E 1998 Election 619,696 1,380,304          2,000,000      2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Measure E 1998 Election 2013 
Refunding 9,785,000 1,503,900        11,288,900   8/1/2029 Property Taxes


Measure B 2016 Election, Series A 20,915,000 10,371,737   31,286,737   8/1/2042 Property Taxes


Measure B 2016 Election, Series B 19,510,000 9,920,687    29,430,687  8/1/2045 Property Taxes


Measure B 2016 Election, Series C 20,400,000 3,199,155    23,599,155  8/1/2036 Property Taxes


Total Amount Owed Elementary 71,229,696 26,375,783    97,605,479   


2021-2022 Annual Payment 2,683,420 2,287,018 4,970,438      


37/329







Branciforte Middle School
Qualified School Construction Bond


Principal Interest Amount Owed


2021-22 Annual Payment 140,000 59,756 199,756 


Total Amount Owed 860,000 184,872               1,044,872         


Funding Source RDA Funds


Date of Final Payment 05/01/2027


38/329







Long Term Debt Recap


District Debt Description Principal Interest
Total Amount 


Owed
Date of Final 
Payment Funding Source


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 1,320,968 2,979,031 4,299,999          2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure H 1998 Election 2013 Refunding 19,565,000 3,138,200 22,703,200         8/1/2029 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure A 2016 Election, Series A 42,585,000 21,573,650     64,158,650         8/1/2042 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure A 2016 Election, Series B 40,070,000 20,178,300 60,248,300         8/1/2045 Property Taxes


Secondary Measure A 2016 Election, Series C 42,000,000 9,470,135 51,470,135         8/1/2040 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 619,696 1,380,304          2,000,000      2/1/2026 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure E 1998 Election 2013 Refunding 9,785,000 1,503,900        11,288,900   8/1/2029 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure B 2016 Election, Series A 20,915,000 10,371,737   31,286,737   8/1/2042 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure B 2016 Election, Series B 19,510,000 9,920,687    29,430,687  8/1/2045 Property Taxes


Elementary Measure B 2016 Election, Series C 20,400,000 3,199,155    23,599,155  8/1/2036 Property Taxes


Both 2010 Certificate of Participation (QSCB) 860,000 184,872           1,044,872 5/1/2027 RDA Funds


Total Amount Owed 217,630,664 83,899,971 301,530,635 39/329







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.2.4 
 


 SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Investment Report for the Quarter Ending 9/30/21  
 
MEETING DATE: November 3, 2021 
 
FROM: Jim Monreal , Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH: Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Accept the 1st Quarter Investment Report for 2021-22. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
SB564, effective January 1, 1996, requires local governments in California, including school 
districts, to make quarterly reports to the Governing Board on the investments of the agency. 
 
District cash for all funds is on deposit with and is invested by the Santa Cruz County Auditor-
Controller.  The report of interest rates for the period 7/1/21 through 9/30/21 is attached.  The 
Quarterly Investment Report from the Santa Cruz County Treasurer's Office is an insert to the 
Board agenda book.  
 
The quarterly interest rate that applies to all funds has been: 
 


   1st Q 2nd Q 3rd Q 4th Q   


  2014-15 0.409% 0.425% 0.498% 0.517%   


  2015-16 0.623% 0.585% 0.676% 0.723%   


  2016-17 0.777% 0.764% 0.912% 0.965%   


  2017-18 0.977% 1.081% 1.307% 1.456%   


  2018-19 1.610% 1.863% 2.211% 2.330%   


  2019-20 2.312% 2.174% 1.965% 1.449%   


  2020-21 1.045% 0.723% 0.550% 0.400%   


  2021-22 0.373%      


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
The table above shows the interest rates in all funds since 2014-15. The interest earned year to 
date through the 1st Quarter of 2021-22 was $46,202.91. 
 


40/329







 AGENDA ITEM:  8.1.2.4 
 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


41/329







Dr. Faris Sabbah, Superintendent · 400 Encinal Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060


MEMO


DATE:


TO: DISTRICT BUSINESS MANAGERS


FROM: Michaela Cirerol, Sr. Account Specialist IV   466-5623


SUBJECT: 2021-2022 INTEREST SEPT 2021


The following summary of the Auditor - Controller's interest rates is provided for your information.


1ST QTR  2ND QTR


FY 21/22 JULY AUGUST SEPT. AVERAGE OCT. NOV. DEC. AVERAGE


0.395% 0.352% 0.372% 0.373% 0.000%


3RD QTR 4TH QTR


JAN. FEB. MARCH AVERAGE APRIL MAY JUNE AVERAGE


0.000% 0.000%


 FY 21/22 0.373%


PRIOR YEARS AVERAGE - PROVIDED BELOW IS A LISTING OF THE ANNUALIZED


    INTEREST RATES FOR THE LAST 24 FISCAL YEARS.


YEAR RATE YEAR RATE YEAR RATE


FY 20/21 0.68% FY 12/13 0.35% FY 04/05 2.20%


FY 19/20 1.98% FY 11/12 0.49% FY 03/04 1.30%


FY 18/19 1.97% FY 10/11 0.59% FY 02/03 1.99%


FY 17/18 1.21% FY 09/10 0.81% FY 01/02 3.28%


FY 16/17 0.86% FY 08/09 1.88% FY 00/01 6.28%


FY 15/16 0.65% FY 07/08 4.16% FY 99/00 5.82%


FY 14/15 0.45% FY 06/07 5.27% FY 98/99 5.40%


FY 13/14 0.36% FY 05/06 4.23% FY 97/98 5.57%


CC Rebecca Olker


October 27, 2021


42/329







COUNTY OF SANTA CRUZ Prepared by: 


INTEREST APPORTIONMENT Updated on: 


GENERAL FUND EARNINGS


RCUTVI MONTHLY RCUTVI TOTAL


JOB REF AVERAGE DAILY TOTAL GENERAL FUND % OF JOB REF DAILY AVERAGE TOTAL GENERAL FUND % OF 


BALANCE APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE* BALANCE APPORTIONED 40430/40434 TOTAL RATE*


(A) (B) (C) (D) (E) (A) (B) (C) (D) (E)


2638243 Jul-21 900,091,337.03       302,043.44               50,039.48                 16.567% 0.395% 2263744 Jul-19 808,820,836.23       759,577.68               84,313.80                 11.100% 1.106%


2666092 Aug-21 839,644,378.50       251,244.54               35,235.18                 14.024% 0.352% 2286446 Aug-19 743,070,488.57       671,499.51               72,434.00                 10.787% 1.064%


2694386 Sep-21 829,916,326.19       253,966.43               30,128.38                 11.863% 0.372% 2318392 Sep-19 727,870,616.16       576,628.33               61,113.35                 10.598% 0.964%


1ST QTR 807,254.41 115,403.04 14.296% 0.373% 1ST QTR 2,007,705.52 217,861.15 10.851% 1.045%


Oct-21 2341794 Oct-19 753,691,459.60       522,020.58               64,345.03                 12.326% 0.816%


Nov-21 2369559 Nov-19 775,182,662.16       462,979.34               83,764.83                 18.093% 0.727%


Dec-21 2396961 Dec-19 917,834,261.83       487,184.84               89,512.88                 18.373% 0.625%


2ND QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 2ND QTR 1,472,184.76 237,622.74 16.141% 0.722%


Jan-22 2423732 Jan-20 929,166,499.72       489,140.21               67,204.52                 13.739% 0.620%


Feb-22 2450647 Feb-20 891,774,893.13       384,133.37               44,665.33                 11.628% 0.542%


Mar-22 2480829 Mar-20 890,257,996.54       354,204.18               35,977.91                 10.157% 0.468%


3RD QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 3RD QTR 1,227,477.76 147,847.76 12.045% 0.543%


Apr-22 2511901 Apr-20 1,019,078,496.44    339,952.28               56,664.69                 16.668% 0.406%


May-22 2541230 May-20 1,000,526,706.99    333,731.62               47,166.20                 14.133% 0.393%


Jun-22 2592122 Jun-20 957,304,490.90       316,120.94               54,622.57                 17.279% 0.402%


4TH QTR 0.00 0.00 0.000% 0.000% 4TH QTR 989,804.84 158,453.46 16.009% 0.400%


TOTALS 807,254.41 115,403.04 14.296% 0.373% TOTALS 5,697,172.88 761,785.11 13.371% 0.678%


Cc: Barbara Dana <bdana@first5scc.org>


Brandon Marquez <Brandon.Marquez@santacruzcounty.us>


Brian Howard <Brian.Howard@santacruzcounty.us>


Carlos Palacios <Carlos.Palacios@santacruzcounty.us>


Central Water <admin@centralwaterdistrict.us.com>


Cheryl McGinley <Cheryl.McGinley@santacruzcounty.us>


Christina Mowrey <Christina.Mowrey@santacruzcounty.us>


Debbie Kinslow <dkinslow@scmtd.com>


Dora Ortega <Dora.Ortega@santacruzcounty.us>


Edith Driscoll <Edith.Driscoll@santacruzcounty.us>


Holly Alcorn <halcorn@scmtd.com>


Jessica Renda <Jessica.Renda@santacruzcounty.us>


Justine Wolcott <Justine.Wolcott@santacruzcounty.us>


Kathy Samms <Kathy.Samms@santacruzcounty.us>


Keith Rayburn <krayburn@sccrtc.org>


Kim Moore <Kim.Moore@santacruzcounty.us>


Kim Namba <Kim.Namba@santacruzcounty.us>


Lorraine Bayer <LBayer@scmtd.com>


Lynn Stipes <Lynn.Stipes@santacruzcounty.us>


Marcus Pimentel <Marcus.Pimentel@santacruzcounty.us>


Mark Huett <Mark.Huett@santacruzcounty.us>


Michaela Cirerol <mcirerol@santacruzcoe.org>


Minerva Torres <Minerva.Torres@santacruzcounty.us>


Nancy Gubash <Nancy.Gubash@santacruzcounty.us>


Roy Pirchio <ropirchi@cabrillo.edu>


Salvador Granados <Salvador.Granados@santacruzcounty.us>


shill@slvwd.com


Tracy Laine <Tracy.Laine@santacruzcounty.us>


Tracy New <tnew@sccrtc.org>


10/7/2021


Traci Turner


* (Total Apportioned / Number of Days in Month X 365) / Monthly Average Daily Balance = Rate


Interest Rate Distribution List


INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101


FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21


INTEREST ON CASH IN TREASURY GL 101


m:\1DODD_ATJEUB-FE97E5DBDD2D41CBA1F5F935C870801C21-22 Updated on 10/27/2021


43/329







44/329







45/329







46/329







47/329







48/329







49/329







50/329







51/329







52/329







53/329







54/329







55/329







56/329







57/329







58/329







59/329







60/329







61/329







62/329







63/329







64/329







65/329







66/329







67/329







68/329







69/329







70/329







71/329







72/329







73/329







74/329







75/329







      AGENDA ITEM:   


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  Disposition of Surplus Property  
 
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:     Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Authorize the Assistant Superintendent of Business Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose 
of the surplus property on the attached list(s) in accordance with Board Policy 3270 and 
Administrative Regulation 3270A. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Education Code Section 17545 (a) provides that the Board of Education may sell for cash any 
personal property belonging to the District if the property is not required for school purposes, 
or if it should be disposed of for the purpose of replacement, or if it is unsatisfactory or not 
suitable for school use. (b) The governing board may choose to conduct any sale of personal 
property authorized under this section by means of a public auction conducted by employees of 
the district or other public agencies, or by contract with a private auction firm. The board may 
delegate to the district employee responsible for conducting the auction the authority to 
transfer the personal property to the highest responsible bidder upon completion of the 
auction and after payment has been received by the district.  
 
Section 17546(a) If the governing board, by a unanimous vote of those members present, finds 
that the property, whether one or more items, does not exceed in value the sum of two 
thousand five hundred dollars ($2,500), it may be sold at private sale without advertising, by 
any employee of the district empowered for that purpose by the board. (b) Any item or items of 
property having previously been offered for sale pursuant to Section 17545, but for which no 
qualified bid was received, may be sold at private sale without advertising by any employee of 
the district empowered for that purpose by the board.  (c) If the board, by a unanimous vote of 
those members present, finds that the property is of insufficient value to defray the costs of 
arranging a sale, the property may be donated to a charitable organization deemed appropriate 
by the board, or it may be disposed of in the local public dump on order of any employee of the 
district empowered for that purpose by the board. 
 
Per Education Code 60530(b), instructional materials may be destroyed by any economical 
means, provided that no instructional material shall be destroyed until 30 days after the 
governing board has given notice to all persons who have filed a request for such notice. 
 
 


76/329







      AGENDA ITEM:   


FISCAL IMPACT: 
None. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metric: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


 


77/329







Approval Date: ___________________ Approved By: __________________________________ 
 


SCCS BOARD OF EDUCATION 


MEETING OF NOVEMBER 3, 2021 


SURPLUS PROPERTY 


 


 


DEPARTMENT: INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 


 #  Property Description Year/Age Condition  Value 


1. 46 CISCO 6851 (Office Phone) 2 years Good $85 each 


$3,910 total 


2. 16 YEALINK SIP-T46S (Office Phone) 2 years Good $25 each 


$400 total 


    Total $4,310 


 


The list provided was approved by the Information Technology Director, Curtis Gomez. These items 


will be sold at the value stated above. New office phones were purchased to allow for all the school 


sites and the District Office to be on the same network.  


 


It is recommended that the Board of Education authorize the Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services, or his designee, to sell or dispose of the surplus property in accordance with Board Policy 3270 


and Administrative Regulation 3270A.   


 


 


 


 


 


78/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Certificated Personnel Actions 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Molly Parks, Assistant Superintendent of Human Resources 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the certificated personnel actions as submitted. 


 
BACKGROUND: 
The attached certificated personnel actions are submitted in accordance with District policy, California 


Education Code and the negotiated contract. 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #1:  All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and career 


opportunities. 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the development of 


cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic groups 


within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting effective 


teaching. 


 
 
 


  


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


79/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


2021-2022 APPOINTMENTS: 


  


Certificated: 


 


Daniel Boyd, 1.0 School Nurse.  Daniel’s educational background includes a BA in Sociology from San 


Jose State University and a BSN in Nursing from Roseman University.  He holds a Preliminary School 


Nurse Services Credential.  Daniel has four years of nursing experience and his status is Probationary 


1. 


 


Hart Walsh, .60 Art / Drama Teacher at Branciforte Middle.  Hart’s educational background includes 


a BA in Political Science from UC San Diego.  She holds a Clear Single Subject Teaching Credential for 


English, a Multiple Subject Teaching Credential, an English Learners Authorization and a Limited 


Assignment Permit for Art.  Hart has eleven years of teaching experience and her status is 


Probationary 1. 


 


 


 


2021-2022 EXTRA WORK ASSIGNMENTS: 


 


Certificated: 


 


Marina Aceves Gagne, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Amber Al-Khatib Sears, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Gerri Ashton, Restorative Justice Coach, Branciforte Small Schools, 10/15/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 


40 hours. 


 


Julia Baginski, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not 


to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Branna Banks, Saturday School Student Supervisor, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 5/15/21, not to exceed 32 


hours. 


 


Blake Battles, SIPPS Training, Branciforte Middle, 9/21/21, not to exceed 1 hour. 


 


80/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


Dawn Baxter, AVID Site Team, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 11 hours. 


 


Erin Blevins, AVID Site Team, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 11 hours. 


 


Erin Blevins, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Joshua Blevins, Saturday School Student Supervisor, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 5/21/21, not to exceed 


64 hours. 


 


Cassidy Boggard, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Danielle Brown, Making Meaningful Assessment, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Danielle Brown, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 


– 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Jessica Brown, COE Ethnic Studies Lecture Series, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Jessica Brown, 8th Grade Core Planning, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/22, 


not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Crysta Bullard, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Dustin Carr, PSAT Proctor, Santa Cruz High, 9/16/21 – 10/15/21, not to exceed 2 hours. 


 


Adam Carter, SIPPS Training, Branciforte Middle, 9/21/21, not to exceed 1 hour. 


 


 


Jason Chew, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Sarah Corbin, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


81/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


 


Luis Curiel, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Alison Daniel, Saturday School Student Supervisor, Soquel High, 8/16/21 – 5/21/21, not to exceed 18 


hours. 


 


Melissa Dear, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Casey Denning, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 


– 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Casey Denning, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, 


not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Stacey Falls, Science Curriculum & Assessment Team Meeting, Curriculum, Intervention & 


Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Sarina Fernandez, Science Curriculum & Assessment Team Meeting, Curriculum, Intervention & 


Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Marissa Ferejohn Swett, Making Meaningful Assessment, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


9/16/21 – 6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Malcolm Fliesler, Creating SPED Student Schedules, Soquel High, 8/6/21, not to exceed 8 hours. 


 


Katharine Garkey, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Lars Gilbert, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Sara Goldfarb, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, 


not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Sara Goldfarb, 8th Grade Core Planning, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/22, 


not to exceed 10 hours. 


82/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


 


Alicia Guzman, COE Ethnic Studies Lecture Series, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Rhea Hadzis, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Pamela Hernandez, Elementary ELPAC Examiner, Gault Elementarty, 9/16/21 – 10/15/21, not to 


exceed 29 hours. 


  


Karina Herrera Agosti, Saturday School Student Supervisor, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 5/15/21, not to 


exceed 32 hours. 


 


Karina Herrera Agosti, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 


– 12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Orla Holladay, Saturday School Teacher, Harbor High, 9/16/21 – 12/15/21, not to exceed 20 hours. 


  


Jessica Hoffschneider, Creating SPED Student Schedules, Soquel High, 8/3/21 – 8/4/21, not to exceed 


10 hours. 


 


Zoe Iyer, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 12/15/21, 


not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Zoe Iyer, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Sarah Lipson, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Sarah Lipson, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Charity Maramonte, AVID Site Team, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 11 hours. 


 


Charity Maramonte, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


83/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


Sarah Millar, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Samantha Moses, AVID Site Team, Mission Hill Middle, 8/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 11 hours. 


 


Samantha Moses, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Jill Murgia, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Jessica Murray, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 


– 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


David Norman, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, 


not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Tyler Olson, COE Ethnic Studies Lecture Series, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Jeffrey Osborne, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Jana Peale, SIPPS Training, Branciforte Middle, 9/21/21, not to exceed 1 hour. 


 


Jana Peale, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to 


exceed 10 hours. 


 


Max Prescott, Critical Missions Inquiry Group, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 10/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 5 hours. 


 


Elaina Ramer, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Gwendolyn Rendon, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


84/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


Sarah Rominger, After School Homework Club, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 80 


hours. 


 


Cynthia Ruhsam, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Stacey Saady, Making Meaningful Assessment, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 


6/30/22, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Stacey Saady, Integrating Mexican-American History into Your Curriculum, Curriculum, Intervention & 


Assessment, 10/16/21 – 11/15/22, not to exceed 5 hours. 


 


Jon Sapp, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 12/15/21, 


not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Jon Sapp, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Melissa Schilling, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Matthew Schilz, Saturday School Student Supervisor, Soquel High, 9/16/21 – 5/15/21, not to exceed 


32 hours. 


 


Elizabeth Shafer, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Elizabeth Shafer, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Christina Stumbo, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 


9/16/21 – 6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Kyle Suess, English Prep Time and Planning Meetings, Mission Hill Middle, 7/16/21 – 6/15/21, not to 


exceed 8 hours. 


 


Kyle Suess, ELA Map Collaboration, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to 


exceed 10 hours. 


85/329







AGENDA ITEM:   8.1.3.1 


 


Kyle Suess, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours 


 


Blake Toro, Science Curriculum & Assessment Team Meeting, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Tyson Van, Science Curriculum & Assessment Team Meeting, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 


9/16/21 – 6/30/21, not to exceed 10 hours. 


 


Carina Wandel, Asilomar Math Conference, Curriculum, Intervention & Assessment, 11/16/21 – 


12/15/21, not to exceed 12 hours. 


 


Dustin Wells, English Language Proficiency Program Form Completion, Mission Hill Middle, 9/16/21 – 


6/15/22, not to exceed 2.5 hours. 


 


Seth Wilson, PSAT Proctor, Santa Cruz High, 9/16/21 – 10/15/21, not to exceed 3 hours 


86/329







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Classified Personnel Actions 


  


MEETING DATE:   November 3, 2021 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


RECOMMENDATION: 


Approve the classified personnel actions as submitted. 


           


BACKGROUND: 


The attached lists of classified personnel actions are submitted in accordance with the District, 


SCCCE Agreement and the Merit Rules. 


  


This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


 


 


 


 


  


 


 


 


 


 


87/329







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


 


CLASSIFIED EMPLOYEE ACTIONS  


 


Reviewed by Director-Classified Personnel: Keneé Houser 10/25/21 


 


• Employment Actions Concerning Regular Assignments • 


Probationary (New Hires or Temporary Employees Made Regular):   


Bachman, Isabella, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - GA, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/11/21 


Chavez Cruz, Laura, Food Service Worker I - FS, 3.5 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/19/21 


Garcia, Ruben, Night Custodian - DL, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/25/21 


Hernandez, Erick, Yard Duty Monitor - BV, 1.6 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/18/21 


Marquez, Ashley, Paraeducator-After School - GA, 3 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/7/21 


Murphy, James, Paraeducator-After School - GA, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/8/21 


Olazo, Lizbeth, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - HHS, 8 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/19/21 


Randazzo, Tim, Night Custodian - HHS, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/25/21 


Sanchez Ortega, Martin, Night Custodian - WL, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/25/21 


Velasco, Raymundo, Night Custodian - HHS, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/25/21 


Promotion: 


Hammonds, Todd, from Paraeducator-MH, 2.4 hrs/9 mos to Attendance Technician - SC, 8 


hrs/10 mos, effective 11/1/21 


Weizman, Naomi, from Office Assistant - GA, 3 hrs/9 mos to Paraeducator-SPED - Sped, 5 hrs/9 


mos, effective 11/1/21 


Retirement: 


Della Mora, Ebby, School Administrative Assistant IV - GA, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 7/1/22 


Separation from Service:  


Estuesta, Amy, Executive Assistant I - ES, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 11/5/21 


Johnston, Cassandra, Paraeducator-After School - BV, 3.9 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/19/21 


Medina, Ruth, Food Service Worker II - FS, 6 hrs/9 mos, effective 10/29/21 


Spilman, Laura, Administrative Assistant - M/O, 8 hrs/12 mos, effective 10/29/21 


 


• Limited Term Project (not to exceed 126 days)/Substitutes • 


New Temporary Employees:  


Quevedo, Vivian, Paraeducator - BV, effective 10/12/21 


88/329







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Wilson, Anita, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - various, effective 10/19/21 


Temporary Employees (Limited Term Assignments):  


Kemerling, Mark, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 100 hrs, 10/11/21 - 5/27/22 


Regular Employees (Extra Hours or Limited Term Assignments):  


AlRashid, Sama, Paraeducator-After School - SHS, not to exceed 80 hrs, 9/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Benton, Alyssa, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Carrillo Salinas, Pilar, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 30 hrs, 9/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Castaneda, Frances, School Bus Driver, not to exceed 25 hrs, 9/23/21 - 5/27/22 


Corbella, Judy, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Delgado, Sandra, Paraeducator - BV, not to exceed 23 hrs, 8/3 - 9/15/21 


Dew, Christopher, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 12 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Elrod, Edward, Day Custodian - M/O, not to exceed 200 hrs, 9/25/21 - 6/30/22 


Flores, Evelyn, ELPAC Proctor - CIA, not to exceed 7 hrs, 8/16 - 10/15/21 


Gomez Juarez, Marciel, School Bus Driver - TR, not to exceed 25 hrs, 10/14/21 - 5/27/22 


Gonzales, Elisa, ELPAC Proctor - BV, not to exceed 11 hrs, 8/16 - 10/15/21 


Gonzales, Elisa, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BV, not to exceed 125 hrs, 9/16/21 - 


5/31/22 


Gonzales, Elisa, Translator - BV, not to exceed 20 hrs, 10/11/21 - 5/31/22 


Gonzales, Laura, Translator - BV, not to exceed 10 hrs, 10/11/21 - 5/31/22 


Gregoire, Paula, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 20 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Jakl, Sara, Administrative Assistant - CIA, not to exceed 120 hrs, 9/16 - 12/15/21 


Lopez, Areli, Paraeducator-After School - GA, not to exceed 96 hrs, 10/16/21 - 2/15/22  


Maldonado, Arlett, Paraeducator-After School, not to exceed 6.5 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Marizette, Gail, Office Assistant - BV, not to exceed 119 hrs, 9/8/21 - 6/15/22 


Marquez, Ashley, Paraeducator-After School, not to exceed 6.5 hrs, 10/7 - 10/15/21 


Martinez, Manuel, Warehouse Worker - FS, not to exceed 120 hrs, 9/16/21 - 6/15/22 


McCombie-Murray, Paula, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Medina Bahena, Rita, ELPAC Proctor, not to exceed 8.5 hrs, 8/16 - 10/15/21 


Mejia, Lita, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 6 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Mojica, Anarbol, Night Custodian - HHS, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/7 - 9/15/21 


Mojica Garcia, Cesar, Head Custodian - HHS, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/7 - 9/15/21 


Murphy, James, Paraeducator-After School, not to exceed 8 hrs, 10/11 - 10/15/21 


89/329







 


 


AGENDA ITEM 8.1.3.2  


Noguera, Marion, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Orlando, Thomas, Food Service Worker I - FS, not to exceed 50 hrs, 10/16/21 - 6/15/22 


Ortiz, Mikayla, Paraeducator-After School, not to exceed 3.5 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Pavlak, Jessica, Instructional Specialist - Life Lab - BV, not to exceed 140 hrs, 10/6 - 12/15/21 


Stocker, Christina, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 7 hrs, 9/3 - 10/15/21 


Tolamatl, Hector, Night Custodian - HHS, not to exceed 6 hrs, 8/7 - 9/16/21 


Tuscano, Jose, Head Custodian - SHS, not to exceed 16 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21  


Ulfvengren, Emma, Paraeducator-After School - BV, not to exceed 9.25 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Vargas, Alexis, ELPAC Proctor - GA, not to exceed 4.5 hrs, 9/16 - 10/15/21 


Waters, Peggy, Yard Duty Supervisor - DL, not to exceed 60 hrs, 9/16/21 - 5/27/22 


White, Gabrielle, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - HHS, not to exceed 300 hrs, 9/16/21 - 


3/15/22 


Williams, Julie, Paraeducator-Sped - SP, not to exceed 10 hrs, 9/1/21 - 5/31/22 


Young, Jaime, Paraeducator-Academic Intervention - BV, not to exceed 80 hrs, 9/16/21 - 


6/30/22 


 


• Eligibility Lists Established •  


Administrative Assistant  


Office Assistant 


 


90/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:     Consultant Services Agreement: Project Based Learning 101 
 
MEETING DATE:   November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:   Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve the Consultant Service Agreement for Project Based Learning 101 (PBL Works) for 
Costanoa High School.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
PLB Works provides high quality professional development for educators, which is essential for 
Costanoa staff as they embark on a restructuring of their instructional model. The specific focus 
of this three-day professional development series, titled PBL 101 -Face to Face, will support 
teachers to design a Gold Standard project, which will be used in the classroom or can be 
adapted for remote learning. It provides participants with the knowledge and skills needed to 
implement a rigorous, standards-based project. Throughout the workshop, participants will 
consider educational equity in their classroom and in their projects. Facilitated by one of their 
expert National Faculty, PBL 101 is a balanced blend of direct instruction, video analysis, hands-
on work, resource sharing, and peer collaboration and feedback 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$14,300, CSI Grant (Restricted)  
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 


 


 
 


91/329







92/329







93/329







94/329







95/329







96/329







AGENDA ITEM 8.2.2.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


AGENDA ITEM:  True North  


MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 


BY:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 


RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve agreement with True North to conduct a voter opinion survey for potential 2022 
general obligation bond measure. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
True North has conducted several surveys for SCCS over the past few years for the District’s 
parcel tax and bond measures.  True North will draft a survey to assess the overall level of 
support for a bond measure as well as levels of support for specific projects or categories of 
projects.  True North will survey a representative sample of likely 2022 voters via phone calls 
and potentially online surveys. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $26,850, LCFF Base (Unrestricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


97/329







98/329







Research Proposal


True North Research, Inc. © 2021 1Santa Cruz City Schools
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .


R E S E A R C H  P R O P O S A L


True North Research, Inc. (True North) is pleased to be Santa Cruz City Schools’ (District)
research partner for the forthcoming bond feasibility survey. Our recent conversations with Dis-
trict staff and our past work with the District related to bond measures (Measures A & B) and par-
cel tax measures (Measures T & U) have been quite helpful to our understanding of the District’s
objectives and needs with respect to the proposed research, and we have crafted this summary
description of the proposed work scope and associated costs accordingly. However, if we missed
an important detail—or if other issues have arisen that should be factored into the study—please
feel free to contact us (760.632.9900) and we’ll be happy to revise this estimate.


SCOPE OF WORK   Creating revenue measures that are ultimately approved by the necessary


percentage of voters is difficult, especially in the State of California. Successful measures require
insightful research and sound, strategic advice. The overriding objective of the survey is thus to
produce an unbiased, statistically reliable evaluation of voters' interest in supporting local bond
measures, as well as identify how best to align the measures with community priorities and posi-
tion them for voter approval.


The scope of services that we propose to perform for the District includes all tasks associated
with designing, conducting and analyzing the survey, as well as presenting the results. Briefly,
the scope of services includes:


• Meet with the District to thoroughly discuss the research objectives and methodology for
the study, as well as discuss potential challenges, concerns, and issues that may surround
the study.


• Develop a stratified and clustered random sample of voters who—based on their voting his-
tory and registration status—are likely to participate in the elections of interest (June 2022 
and November 2022).


• Develop a draft questionnaire for the District’s review and make revisions as needed until all
parties approve of the instrument.


• Pre-test the survey instrument to ensure its integrity.


• CATI (Computer Assisted Telephone Interviewing) program the finalized survey instrument
to ensure accurate and reliable data collection using professional, high quality interviewers.


• Web program the same survey instrument to allow for secure, password-protected online
data collection to compliment the telephone recruitment and data collection.


• Recruit participation in the survey using a combination of email invitations, text invitations,
and telephone calls.


• Complete at least 500 interviews. A sample of this size will produce statistically reliable
results with a maximum margin of error due to sampling of +/- 4.4% at the 95% confidence
level. If more than 500 interviews are completed, they will be provided to the District at no
additional charge.


• Process the data, which includes conducting validity checks, cleaning, recoding, coding
open-end responses, and adjusting for strategic oversampling (if used) through a statistical
procedure known as ‘weighting’.


• Prepare an initial topline report which presents the overall findings of the survey.


99/329







Research Proposal


True North Research, Inc. © 2021 2Santa Cruz City Schools
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .


• Prepare a full report on the findings, including a detailed question-by-question analysis,
description of the methodology, an executive summary of the key findings and conclusions/
recommendations, as well as a comprehensive set of crosstabulations showing how the
answers varied by subgroups of voters.


• Prepare an electronic copy of the final report to allow the District to reproduce the report as
needed.


• Prepare a PowerPoint presentation of the results and present the results to the District.


• Be available to assist and provide advice to the District after the survey is complete.


COSTS   True North’s fixed-fee cost estimate to design and conduct the survey as described in


this proposal is $26,850. With the exception of travel expenses (if needed), this cost is inclu-
sive—there will be no additional charges associated with the study.


SURVEY TIME LINE   True North will work with Santa Cruz City Schools to establish a project


schedule that meets the District’s needs. Below is a proposed time line for the study that shows
the typical stages of a bond survey project, the number of days that we recommend devoting to
each stage, as well as the key research tasks that are completed in each stage. We have the flex-
ibility and resources to adjust this time line if the District desires.


FIGURE 1  PROPOSED TIME LINE


ABOUT TRUE NORTH   For the past 20 years, True North has specialized in providing


school districts and other public agencies with statistically accurate research and insightful stra-
tegic advice. To date, our team has designed and conducted over 1,000 survey research studies
for public agencies in California, including more than 400 revenue measure feasibility studies
that captured the pieces of information needed for estimating the feasibility of a measure and—
if feasible—identifying how best to package the measure for success. We have the highest verifi-
able success rate in the industry for bonds and tax measures over the past decade (95%), includ-
ing 100% success in five of the past six election cycles including November 2020. In total, the


5 days 10 days 10 days 14 days 5 days 10 days Ongoing


� Kickoff
Meeting


� Background 
Research


� Share Plans 
& Documents


� Questionnaire 
Design, Review 
& Approve


� Pre-Test
� Sample


� CATI 
Program/Test


� Web 
Program/Test


� Interviewer 
Training


� Invitations


� Email, Text 
& Phone 
Recruiting


� Online 
Surveys


� Telephone 
Interviews


� Monitoring


� Data 
Processing


� Coding
� Weighting
� Crosstabs
� Topline


Summary


� Statistical 
Analysis


� Full Report
� Powerpoint


Summary


� Staff 
Presentation


� Board 
Presentation


� Strategic Advice 
for Measure


Project 
Initiation


Design


Prepare to 
Field


Data 
Collection


Data 
Processing


Analysis & 
Reporting


Presentations


Ongoing 
Strategic 


Consulting


100/329







Research Proposal


True North Research, Inc. © 2021 3Santa Cruz City Schools
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .


research that True North has conducted has led to over $33 billion in successful local revenue
measures, including Santa Cruz City Schools’ Measures A & B (2016) and T & U (2020).


PROJECT MANAGER BIO   Timothy McLarney, Ph.D., will serve as the Project Manager for


the proposed survey, will be the District’s day-to-day contact for all matters related to the study,
and will lead all design, analysis, reporting, and presentation tasks. Approximately 75% of the
research tasks will be performed by Dr. McLarney.


Dr. McLarney has more than 25 years of experience in survey methodology, statistics, public
opinion analysis, and providing data-driven strategic advice to public agencies. Since co-found-
ing True North in 2002, Dr. McLarney has occupied a lead role in over 1,000 research studies,
more than 400 of which had research objectives similar to those of Santa Cruz City Schools. 


Dr. McLarney earned his Ph.D. and M.A. in Government from Cornell University with an emphasis
in survey methodology, sampling theory and public opinion analysis, as well as a Bachelor's
degree in Politics from the University of California, Santa Cruz. His research has been recognized
at numerous national and state conferences, has been published in academic journals, and has
earned him honors including the title of Visiting Scholar at the Institute of Governmental Studies
at UC Berkeley. He has also served as an independent expert witness in survey research method-
ology for California legal cases.


101/329







Letter of A
greem


ent


True North Research, Inc. © 2021 4Santa Cruz City Schools
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .


L E T T E R  O F  A G R E E M E N T


This proposal and the standard business terms (see below) will serve as a letter of agreement
between True North Research and Santa Cruz City Schools for the services described previously.
In fulfillment of this agreement, True North will perform the services described in the Scope of
Work on page 1. True North will invoice the full amount of the contract upon delivery of the
report, with full payment due within 30 days of receiving the invoice.


Sincerely, Agreed to and accepted by:


Timothy McLarney, Ph.D. Kris Munro
President Superintendent
True North Research Santa Cruz City Schools
1592 N Coast Highway 101 133 Mission Street, Suite 100
Encinitas CA 92024 Santa Cruz, CA 95060


BUSINESS TERMS   Contracts and agreements between True North Research and its clients


include the following general terms and conditions unless otherwise specified in a contract or
agreement.


Flat Fees Unless otherwise specified, True North Research charges a flat fee for all
or a portion of its services to a client in lieu of hourly charges.


Notices Any and all notices, demands, or other communications required or
desired to be given hereunder by any party shall be documented in writ-
ing.


Confidentiality True North Research acknowledges that during the engagement it will
have access to and possibly become acquainted with trade secrets,
inventions, innovations, processes, information, records, and specifica-
tions owned or licensed by the Client in connection with the operation of
its business including, business and product processes, methods, cus-
tomer lists, accounts, and procedures. True North Research agrees that
it will not disclose any of the aforesaid, directly or indirectly, or use any
of them in any manner, either during the term of this Agreement or at
any time thereafter, except as required in the course of this engagement
with the client, or without written consent from the client.


Acting as Agent In compliance with California sales tax regulation, True North Research
is designated as an Agent for the acquisition of tangible personal prop-
erty and services as they apply to its clients' marketing activities.


102/329







Letter of A
greem


ent


True North Research, Inc. © 2021 5Santa Cruz City Schools
. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .


Merger The merger or consolidation of the client into or with any other entity
shall not terminate or otherwise modify this Agreement.


Ownership of Materials In producing finished products, it is expressly understood that owner-
ship of all materials purchased by True North Research to complete the
materials to be produced passes to its clients at the time of purchase
and prior to any use by True North Research.


Independent Contractor This Agreement shall not render True North Research an employee, part-
ner, agent of, or joint venturer for the client for federal, state or local tax
purposes, or for any other purpose.


Amendment Provision This contract contains the entire agreement between the parties, and is
subject to and will be construed under the laws of the State of California,
and may be amended only in writing signed by both parties.


Successors Any agreement between the agency and a client shall be binding upon,
the heirs, successors and assignors of the parties.


Termination The contract may be terminated by mutual consent of both parties, or by
10 days notice by either party. If the agreement is terminated, True
North Research will bill the client for all work completed to date (includ-
ing subcontractors' work).


Attorneys' Fees Should any action be brought by one party against the other party to
enforce any agreement, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover
from the other party its reasonable attorneys' fees, costs and expenses.


Governing Law Any agreement between True North and a client shall be governed by
California law and any action arising out of it shall be instituted and
prosecuted in the Municipal or Superior Court of the County of San
Diego.


103/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: ACCO Engineered Systems Proposal for Annual Preventative 


Maintenance 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve ACCO Engineered Systems proposal for annual heating, ventilation and air 
conditioning systems checks and filter changes.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of an annual plan to inspect the heating, ventilation and air conditioning 
systems (HVAC) at all schools in the District. All District HVAC system equipment will be 
inspected and monitored three times a year to ensure they meet air quality standards. With 
each inspection, all filters will be replaced with new high efficiency MERV 12 or 13 filters. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$126,235.00 Elementary and Secondary Redevelopment Agency Funds (If ESSER funds become 
available, the District may make a budget transfer.) (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


104/329







Page 1


ACCOcare
Heating, Ventilating, and Air Conditioning 


System


Preventive Maintenance Service Agreement


BETWEEN


Santa Cruz City Schools


AND


ACCO Engineered Systems DBA Geo. H. Wilson
250 Harvey West Blvd.
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


831.423.9522
Service: 800-598-2226


Proposal Number:    1.0   Proposal Date: October 14, 2021


105/329







Page 2


ACCOcare Service Agreement
ACCO Engineered Systems, hereinafter referred to as ACCO, proposes to furnish Santa Cruz City School 
District its ACCOcare service on the system at:


BILLING NAME:


Santa Cruz City Schools
536 Palm Street, Santa Cruz, CA 95060
ATTN: Trevor Miller


The ACCOcare plan provides for inspections of the equipment.  The plan covers the cost of all 
maintenance inspections and optional services which are necessary to maintain the equipment in 
operating condition.  An equipment service program for your air conditioning system.


SCHEDULE OF WORK (SOW) 
The following matrix delineates HVAC maintenance services included with the equipment / systems listed 
in this agreement. 


Coverage Name Description Included 
(Yes/No) Frequency


Preventive Maintenance
Service labor to perform periodic diagnosis and 
maintenance of equipment. Reference Attachment 
B for tasking inclusions


Yes 3X


Repair Services Service labor and materials used to support 
repairs of equipment No; QAN -


Emergency Service Service labor and materials used to support 
emergency calls No; T&M -


Air Filter Replacement Service labor and materials necessary to change 
air filters on air handling equipment Yes 3X


Belt Replacements Service labor and materials necessary to change 
belts on air handling equipment No; QAN -


Condenser Coil Cleaning Service labor and materials necessary to clean 
condenser coils No; QAN -


Boiler Annual Service labor and materials used to perform boiler 
annual with piolet / flame rod replacement No -


Building Management System 
(BMS) Service


Service labor used to perform periodic 
maintenance of the BMS No -


QAN – Quote as Needed – ACCO to firm price quote any repairs and only perform work that has been 
authorized with a written contract or written notice to proceed


T&M – Time and Material – ACCO to perform work on demand as directed by the client and to bill on a 
time and materials basis per Attachment A


106/329







Proposal Number:              Page 3 10/14/21


EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
See Appendices 1-10 for site equipment lists.


ACCO AGREES:
To perform services as required.
1. Service, repair, adjust, clean, or to perform services per the SOW for the equipment listed
2. To furnish the customer with a report of any irregularities revealed as a result of the inspection and 


adjustments.  Corrective measures or repairs that are required will be recommended to customer.  
Customer approval is required on repair work.


3. To service only the equipment listed.
4. To report to the person or office designated in writing by customer.  Customer to inform of changes of 


personnel.


EXCLUDED FROM THIS PLAN:
1. Service, repair, adjust, clean, or replace parts of any of the following:  Air balancing; boiler tubes, duct 


work; cabinet interiors and exteriors; drains which are not a part of the equipment covered by this 
plan; heating and cooling coils; electrical service beyond the subject equipment disconnect; surfaces 
exposed to air and water as part of the system performance (such as sump pans, evaporative 
condenser tube bundles, tower and evaporative condenser distributors, panels, fans, shafts, etc.); 
recording instruments, gauges, and thermometers.


2. The cost of repair parts, replacement parts, emergency calls, refrigerant.
3. Labor costs other than that required under the ACCOcare agreement (please see Attachment A).


TERMS:
1. The ACCOcare service shall commence on _________ and shall continue thereafter until terminated.  


Either party may terminate this agreement by giving the other party thirty (30) days prior written 
notice.


2. Failure to make payment when due, or impairment of owner’s credit, shall relieve ACCO of the 
obligation of further performance of this agreement.


3. This agreement is subject to annual price escalation unless otherwise agreed upon as stated in this 
agreement.


4. Pricing below is contingent on all campuses being accepted as a package. Breakout pricing 
has been provided for accounting and invoicing purposes if desired. 


PRICING:


Branciforte Small School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $3,047.36
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $9,142.09


Branciforte Middle School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $3,327.38
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $9,982.14


Bayview Elementary School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $3,468.80
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $10,406.40


Delaveaga Elementary School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $4,501.35
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $13,504.06


Gault Elementary School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $3,568.25
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $10,704.76


107/329







Proposal Number:              Page 4 10/14/21


Harbor High School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $7,034.83
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $21,104.48


Mission Hill Middle School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $4,401.89
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $13,205.68


Santa Cruz High School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $4,451.37
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $13,354.11


Soquel High School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $5,261.00
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $15,783.00


Westlake Elementary School:
Customer shall be invoiced every 120 days in the amount of $3,016.09
The total annual cost for this maintenance incorporating the above listed schedule is $9,048.28


Total triannual cost for all schools ...........................................................................$42,078.32


Total annual cost for all schools .............................................................................$126,235.00


108/329







Proposal Number:              Page 5 10/14/21


GENERAL CONDITIONS:
1. ACCO will make every effort to service units located inside classrooms during non-occupied 


hours. However, there may be times when this is not feasible. If all services are required to be 
completed in unoccupied classrooms, contract pricing may be subject to change.


2. For the convenience of both Customer and ACCO, Customer will permit ACCO personnel the use of 
his common building equipment, such as ladders, elevators, etc., together with free and timely access 
to necessary areas.


3. ACCO will not be required to remove, replace or alter any part of the building structure in the 
performance of this agreement.


4. Both Customer and ACCO agree that all work referred to in this agreement shall be performed during 
the regular working hours of 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM, Monday through Friday, except Holidays.


5. This ACCOcare agreement takes into consideration the extension of the manufacturer’s warranties to 
Customer on the equipment outlined herein.


6. Customer agrees to make prompt payments.  Should a payment become thirty (30) days delinquent, 
this contract may become null and void at any time thereafter at the option of ACCO, and all moneys 
owed ACCO will become due upon demand.


7. To assure best performance Customer should operate the system and all equipment properly and as 
per manufacturer’s instructions.  Expenses to ACCO caused by improper operation, negligence, 
misuse of the equipment, or by any cause beyond the control of ACCO, shall be paid by Customer at 
current material prices published in the Air Conditioning and Refrigeration Price Reporter, plus labor 
charges.


8. Operational efficiency will be assured if all necessary work is performed or equipment added by 
qualified ACCO personnel.  In the event of any alterations, additions, adjustments, or repairs by 
others (unless authorized by ACCO) ACCO assumes no responsibility and has option to terminate 
this agreement.


8. Any parts that are not available from normal sources in the judgment of ACCO, and which may impair 
proper operation, may be replaced by ACCO and paid for by Customer.


9. Loss of business or any delays occasioned by events that ACCO cannot control, such a strikes, riots, 
lock-outs, transportation delays, accidents, Acts of God, force majeure or any other cause beyond 
ACCO’s control shall not be the responsibility of ACCO.


10. Any item of equipment or labor required by insurance companies, federal, state, municipal or other 
authorities will not be required to be furnished by ACCO.


11. ACCO shall not be responsible for original system design, installation or it performance in maintaining 
design conditions, except through failure of equipment covered herein.


12. This agreement covers the complete understanding between ACCO and Customer, and shall become 
a valid contract only when accepted and approved by authorized person for both parties.  No verbal 
representations shall be binding on either party.


13. This pricing above is for breakout purposes only. They are not intendent to be standalone numbers. 
This is a lump sum contract for all (19) locations. 


109/329







Proposal Number:              Page 6 10/14/21


CUSTOMER ACCO Engineered Systems
Accepted by & Approved: Submitted By:


  
Authorized Signature Jack Irwin, Project Manager


     10/14/2021
Name / Title Date


Date


APPROVED AND ACCEPTED:


Authorized Signature


Tareq Barakzoy
Sales Manager – Geo. H. Wilson


Date


110/329







Proposal Number:              Page 7 10/14/21


ATTACHMENT A 


ACCO TIME AND MATERIAL (T&M) RATES AND FEE SCHEDULE


Attachment A defines how T&M rates apply to service calls placed by the client.  Any recommended repairs 
identified by ACCO or the client during a regular maintenance service or scheduled job walk are to be firm 
price quoted in lieu of T&M.


a. Placing a Service Call:


ACCO will provide 24 / 7 / 365 on-site emergency service at the ACCO Service rates published in 
this attachment.  Although not guaranteed, contract customers can expect a 2-hour technician 
response time during standard business hours and a 4-hour response time for non-standard 
business hours, when service calls are placed via dispatch.  Dispatch can be reached at:


Northern California Dispatch Phone ................................................................(831) 423-9522
  


b. Current ACCO Contract Service Labor Rates*


HVAC / Plumbing Service Technician Standard Time+.........................................$165.00 / hr
HVAC / Plumbing Service Technician Overtime++ ................................................$205.00 / hr
HVAC / Plumbing Service Technician Premium Time+++ ......................................$230.00 / hr


+ Standard Business Hours are 7:00 AM to 4:00 PM M-F, except for Holidays
++ Overtime labor rates apply for non-standard business hours, except for Holidays and Sundays
+++ Premium Time labor rates apply for Sunday & Holidays


* ACCO employs union labor technicians who are subject to receive annual wage increases per their union bylaws in 
order to keep up with rising living costs in the Bay Area.  As a result, contract labor rates may increase proportionally 
to any union labor increase established by the unions.  Any contract labor increase implemented is set to go into effect 
with the local union increases (July 1 every year).  ACCO to notify client of any new T&M wage increase.


c. Charges


The customer agrees to pay ACCO for the following during a T&M service call:


1) Any labor, materials, equipment, and subcontractors required to complete the service call
2) Any rental, disposal, and cleaning fee required to complete the service call
3) Any special tool charge required to complete the service call
4) A technician truck charge of $60.00 per visit, per technician


In addition, ACCO has the following minimum charges for service calls:


1) One truck charge fee
2) Minimum 1 hour portal-to-portal charge to travel to job site 
3) Minimum 1 hour charge once on job site
4) Minimum 1 hour charge for phone support


111/329







Proposal Number:              Page 8 10/14/21


ATTACHMENT B
SERVICE MAINTENANCE PROGRAM CHECKLIST


ACCO Engineered Systems DBA Geo. H. Wilson
CONTRACTOR'S LIC. #1042403


250 Harvey West Blvd.
Santa Cruz, CA 95060


831.423.9522
Service: 800-598-2226


Customer: Santa Cruz City School             
Address: 536 Palm Street       
City, State, Zip: Santa Cruz, CA 95060    


THE FOLLOWING CHECKED ITEMS WILL BE INVESTIGATED AND ACTED UPON, IF INDICATED.


GENERAL AIR HANDLING SYSTEMS  CONTROLS  
General Operation & condition Lubricate fan bearings Check/calibrate thermostats, humidistats
Unusual noise & vibration Check fan belts & drive alignment Check automatic control valves, damper


Change air filters as per agreement & vane operators & central control panels
REFRIGERATION SYSTEM  Check/clean drip pans and drains
Align & adjust drives, belts, couplings Check expansion valves & bulb clamps AIR COMPRESSOR  
Record refrigerant & oil pressures Check condition of fans, scrolls & coils Check drive belt tension & alignment
Check refrigerant charge & controls Compressor oil level
Inspect shaft seals & packing    Drain condensate from receiver
Operation of capacity & safety controls Operation & adjustment of pressure


HEATING SYSTEM      switch/valve
CENTRIFUGAL CHILLER  Condition of heat exchangers
Chilled & condenser water circuits Heating coils, traps, strainers & valves ELECTRICAL  
Purge system Electric resistance heaters Record voltage & motor amperage
Oil system – level, pressure & proper Operating & safety controls Lubricate motor bearings
    operation of oil cooler & differential Condensate return pump Magnetic starter connections
Operating pressures, temps. & vacuum Burner operation and flue stack Control box covers
Capacity & safety controls, flow j Expansion tank
switches, full load test chiller, check CONDENSING MEDIUM 
for proper starter operation WATER PUMPS Tower  Evaporative  Air Cooled 


Condenser    Chilled   Hot  Lubricate fan bearings 
WATER TREATMENT  Lubricate pump bearings Check condenser coil for leaks & scale 
Closed loop(s) only  Check operating pressures Clean air intake screens 
Water analysis Check drive alignment Operating & safety controls 
Add chemicals Check seals and packing glands Check sumps, chemicals & algae 
Adjust bleed rate Purge air from pumps Dampers, damper motors & linkage 
Drain, flush & clean sumps Eliminators & spray nozzles 


SERVICE PROGRAMS


 ACCOGUARD: ACCO will regularly & systematically  ACCOSERVE: ACCO will regularly & systematically 
examine, adjust & lubricate your system as required; and, as examine, adjust & lubricate your system as required. The 
conditions warrant, will repair or replace moving parts to keep ACCOSERVE contract includes labor portion of normal 
your system operating. The ACCOGUARD agreement includes maintenance, emergency service and cost of labor for 
normal maintenance & emergency service labor, parts & repairs. repairs. All parts and materials will be billed extra.


 ACCOCARE: ACCO will regularly and systematically  ACCOAUDIT: ACCO will, at regular intervals, 
examine, adjust & lubricate your system as required. Under an supervise your employees or make an inspection of your 
ACCOCARE agreement all other service calls, including labor & system and report findings in writing. ACCOAUDIT 
replacement parts, will be done on proper customer Agreement cost is based on estimated time spent, or 
authorization and billed extra. fixed fee.


112/329







Proposal Number:              Page 9 10/14/21


APPENDIX 1
Branciforte Small School


840 N Branciforte Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AC UNIT TRANE WH421-A10 CLASSROOM 21
AC UNIT TRANE WH421-A10M4XXX CLASSROOM 22
AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB006UA0A0UA AUDITORIUM NORTH
AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB006UA0A0UB AUDITORIUM SOUTH
BOILER BRYAN AB250-W-FDG BOILER
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-B70-QD BOYS RESTROOM 3RD FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SE-8-426-D-X CUSTODIAN
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SQ-130BX-QD BOYS MAIN RR
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK JA2C227D UNISEX 2ND FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK JA2C227D ADULT UNISEX 2ND FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN NUTONE LS-80L MAIN STAFF RM 2ND FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK CSP-B150-QD COUNSELORS 2ND FL
EXHAUST FAN BRAUN TBD K-1 KINDERGARTEN
EXHAUST FAN BRAUN TBD  K-2 KINDERGARTEN 
EXHAUST FAN ORBIT 0EP110  (N) PORTABLES RESTOOM 
EXHAUST FAN ORBIT FANG 0EP110  LAUNDRY 
EXHAUST FAN BROAN 678-G/26787F-A CLASSROOM 26 RESTROOM
EXHAUST FAN BROAN 678-G/26787F-A CLASSROOM 26 FCP ROOM
EXHAUST FAN BROAN 678-G/26787F-A CLASSROOM 26 STORAGE
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-B70-QD  GIRLS RR 3RD FLOOR 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SQ-130BX-QD  MAIN GIRLS RR 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK CSP-B150-QD  ROOM 112A 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK CSP-B150-QG  STAFF ROOM 
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 3
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 4
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 5


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0201KA0A0H1DAG2M000002K0E-
G200000000Q00000 CLASSROOM 6


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 6A
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 7
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 LIBRARY
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 LIBRARY
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE  TBD STAFF ROOM


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0201KA0A0H1DAG2M000002K0E-
G200000000Q00000 COUNSELOR


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0201KA0A0H1DAG2M000002K0E-
G200000000Q00000 COMMUNITY COORDINATOR


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 9
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 ADMIN OFFICE
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 12
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 13
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 14
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 15


113/329







Proposal Number:              Page 10 10/14/21


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 16
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 17
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE WH482-A05VX4XXX CLASSROOM 26
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD PRINCIPAL
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD TEA ROOM
FAN COIL UNIT BARD I4281-A05MP1X3X CLASSROOM 30
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 CLASSROOM 11
FAN COIL UNIT BARD I48H1-A04MP1X3X CLASSROOM 31
FAN COIL UNIT BARD I48H1-A04MP1XXX CLASSROOM 32
FAN COIL UNIT BARD I142H1-A05MP1XXX CLASSROOM 34
FAN COIL UNIT BARD WH482-A05UX4XXX CLASSROOM 37
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010P0H1BXZA0WH1002110 MAIN BUILDING


114/329







Proposal Number:              Page 11 10/14/21


APPENDIX 2
Branciforte Middle School


315 Poplar Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


FURNACE JANITROL BM-22-FUR-6
BM-21-FUR-5 ROOM 1


HEAT PUMP BARD 50VT-C48-50 MUSIC CLASSROOM 25
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 8
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 6
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 7
HEAT PUMP TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 12
HEAT PUMP TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 11
HEAT PUMP TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 10
HEAT PUMP TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 9
HEAT PUMP TRANE TBD CLASSROOM 5
HEAT PUMP TRANE TBD CLASSROOM 8A
HEAT PUMP STERLING E3GPV35A6B01B43P5MA2B5E2J1K5L3 BIG GYM (NORTH)
HEAT PUMP STERLING E3GPV35A6B01B43P5MA2B5E2J1K5L3 BIG GYM (SOUTH)
FURNACE DAY & NIGHT 395CAV060130 BOYS LOCKER RM
FURNACE DAY & NIGHT 395CAV060130 GIRLS LOCKER RM
FURNACE REZNOR XL-30-3 ROOM 1A
FURNACE JANITROL TBD ROOM 2
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-071-4X-QD-R2 GIRLS BATHROOM ROOM 9
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK TBD ADMIN WOMENS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK TBD ADMIN MENS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK TBD ADMIN UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN AMERICAN BLOWER 165CZ CLASSROOM 21A
EXHAUST FAN AMERICAN BLOWER 165CZ BOYS LOCKER SHOWER 
EXHAUST FAN AMERICAN BLOWER 165CZ BOYS TOILET LOCKER 
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD  BOYS LOCKER ROOM OFFICE 
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD BOYS DRYING ROOM
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD GIRLS LOCKER ROOM
EXHAUST FAN  TBD TBD GIRLS LOCKER SHOWER 
FURNACE BRYANT 395CAV060135 SMALL GYM
FURNACE BRYANT  TBD CLASSROOMS 3 & 4
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE  TBD CLASSROOM 22
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010 CLASSROOM 23
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010 CLASSROOM 21
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010 CLASSROOM 19
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010 CLASSROOM 18
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010 CLASSROOM 17
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 16
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 13
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 15
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010B CLASSROOM 14
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YCD240B3LGGA MULTIPURPOSE 
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YHC092F3RLA2 LIBRARY 1
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YHC092F3RLA2 LIBRARY 2


115/329







Proposal Number:              Page 12 10/14/21


PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YHC074F3RLA0 OFFICE
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YHC074F3RLA0 OFFICE
TRANSFER FAN TBD TBD  GIRLS LOCKER ROOM 
TRANSFER FAN TBD  TBD  BOYS LOCKER ROOM  


116/329







Proposal Number:              Page 13 10/14/21


 APPENDIX 3
Bayview Elementary School


1231 Bay Street, Santa Cruz, CA  95060
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


BLOWER AMERICAN 
BLOWER 200-FV MPR KITCHEN


BOILER BRYAN D350-W-FDG BOILER CLASSROOM 
MEDIA LIBRARY


BOILER BRYAN D450-W-FDG BOILER CLASSROOM NXT 
TO BAY


CEILING CASETTE DAIKIN TBD 4 OFFICE CLASSROOMS
CONDENSING UNIT TRANE TTA060D300A0 MEDIA CTR ABV COMP LAB
CONDENSING UNIT TRANE TTA060D300A1 MEDIA CTR WING ABV LIB
CONDENSING UNIT TRANE TTA060D300A1 MEDIA CTR WING ABV LIB


EXHAUST FAN PENN ZEPHANETTE KINDERGARTEN ROOM 1 
RR


EXHAUST FAN ILG TBD MEN'S RR "K"
EXHAUST FAN ILG CRBCA086D115101 MEN'S RR MONARCH
EXHAUST FAN NUTONE TBD MEN'S RR YARD
EXHAUST FAN COOLAIR CFL15A1151 MEN'S STAFF OUTSIDE
EXHAUST FAN PENN ZEPHANETTE UNISEX KINDER #1
EXHAUST FAN PENN ZEPHANETTE UNISEX KINDER #2
EXHAUST FAN ILG CRBCA086D115101 WOMEN'S RR "K"
EXHAUST FAN ILG CRBCA086D115101 WOMEN'S RR MONARCH
EXHAUST FAN NUTONE TBD WOMEN'S RR YARD
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD WOMEN'S STAFF OUTSIDE


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FC0B0301JP0AHG20AC2A00000- 
4K0EG00002000Q00000 2 UNITS MEDIA LAB


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FC0B0601JP0AHG20AC2A00000- 
4K0EG00002000Q00000


CLASS CLASSROOM MEDIA 
CTR LIB


FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572BA CLASSROOM 02
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572BA CLASSROOM 03
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572CA CLASSROOM 04
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572AA CLASSROOM 05
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572AA CLASSROOM 06
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572AA CLASSROOM 07
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572CA CLASSROOM 09
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572DA CLASSROOM 10
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572AA CLASSROOM 11
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN X1A572DA CLASSROOM 12
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE XJW72 CLASSROOM 14
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE X1A572AA CLASSROOM 15


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010F0H6AXZ0A-
W11CG100D02310 CLASSROOM 16


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010F0H6AXZ0A-
W11CG100D02310 CLASSROOM 17


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010F0H6AXZ0A-
W11CG100D02310 CLASSROOM 18


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE X1A572AA KINDER #1 KITCHEN 
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE X1A572DA KINDER #2 KITCHEN 


117/329







Proposal Number:              Page 14 10/14/21


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE X1A572AA KINDERGARDEN 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE X1A572AA KINDERGARDEN 2
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN TBD MAIN BLDG MEDIA CTR LIB
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN TBD MAIN BLDG MEDIA CTR LIB
FAN COIL UNIT DAIKIN TBD MEDIA CTR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10010F0H6AZ0AW11CG100D02310 MEDIA CTR BY BOILER
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC12510F0FACXX1A-11CG100D02310 MEDIA CTR COMP LAB


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FC0B0301JP0AHG20AC2A00000- 
4K0EG00002000Q00000 MEDIA CTR LIB


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010F0FACXX1AE11CG100D02310 MEDIA CTR LIB
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC15010F0FACXX1AE11CG100D02310 MEDIA CTR LIB


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10010F0H6AZ0AW11CG100D02310 MEDIA CTR LIB MEDIA 
CLASSROOM


FURNACE RENZOR XL-125 MPR
FURNACE RENZOR XL-126 MPR
PACKAGE UNIT ICP PGD324060K001C1 ADMIN. STAFF ROOM
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE 2YCC3036A1064AA PORTABLE CLASSROOM 20
PACKAGE UNIT TRANE 2YCC3048A1096AB PORTABLE CLASSROOM 21
PACKAGE UNIT LENNOX 13GEP36075ALP-3A PORTABLE CLASSROOM 22
RTU PACKAGE UNIT TRANE 58SJJW02407SABAE MPR ROOF ABV STAFF LNG


RTU PACKAGE UNIT TRANE 4YCC3048A3096AA OFFICE ROOF ABV 
CLASSROOM 2


RTU PACKAGE UNIT TRANE 4YCC3048A3096AA OFFICE ROOF ABV OFFICE
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD KINDER
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH4-A00XX4 PORTABLE CLASSROOM 24 
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH421-A00XY4 PORTABLE CLASSROOM 25
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WA421-A00XX PORTABLE CLASSROOM 26
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 27
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 28
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH48L-A00VP4 PORTABLE CLASSROOM 29
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH481-A00 PORTABLE CLASSROOM 30
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH483-A00VP4XX PORTABLE CLASSROOM 33
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH2131-A00VFHX PORTABLE CLASSROOM 34
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 35
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 36
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 40
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 41
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 42
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 43
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 44
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE CLASSROOM 45
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH421LA08XX4XXX PORTABLE DAY CARE


118/329







Proposal Number:              Page 15 10/14/21


APPENDIX 4
Delaveaga Elementary School


1145 Morrissey Blvd, Santa Cruz, CA 95065
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AIR HANDLER SEASONS 4 TBD ADMIN
AIR HANDLER SEASONS 4 TBD ADMIN
AIR HANDLER SEASONS 4 TBD ADMIN
MAKEUP AIR UNIT REZNOR TBD FOOD STORAGE
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP MARVAIR HVPSA49HP1 PORTABLE 11
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP MARVAIR HVPSA49HP1 PORTABLE 12
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD W42HD-A04CP4 PORTABLE 23
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH421LA08XX4XX PORTABLE 25
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH483-A0BB4XX PORTABLE 26
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH4216A08XX40XX PORTABLE 27
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VNY PORTABLE 28
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VXY PORTABLE 29
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VXY PORTABLE 30
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 31
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP MARVAIR TBD PORTABLE 32
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 33
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP MARVAIR HVPSA49HP1 PORTABLE 34
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP MARVAIR HVPSA49HP1 PORTABLE 35
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD I42H1A05MP PORTABLE 36
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD J42H1A05MP PORTABLE 37
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD I42H1A05MP PORTABLE 38
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD I42H1A05MP PORTABLE 39
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 40
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 41
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK G-070-DGEX-QD BOYS LOWER FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK TBD GIRLS LOWER FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 100C3B BOYS MID FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 100C3B GIRLS MID FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B GIRLS UPPER FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B BOYS UPPER FIELD TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 100C3B ADMIN WOMENS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 100C3B ADMIN MENS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B ADMIN OFFICE TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B ADMIN NURSE
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 120C3B ADMIN OFFICE TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B ADMIN GIRLS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 80C3B ADMIN BOYS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK TBD KITCHEN TOILET
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK 120C3B FOOD STORAGE
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVYPO54AM141A ROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVYPO54AM141A ROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TYVFY012AM14HA ROOM 1A
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY054AM141A ROOM 3


119/329







Proposal Number:              Page 16 10/14/21


FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY036AM141A ROOM 6A
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY036AM141A RM6A LITTLE THTR
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 4
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM14AA ROOM 4A WORK RM
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 5
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 6
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A ROOM 22A
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 22
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A ROOM 21A
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 21
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PLFY-P12NFMN-E ROOM A8
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 20
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A  RM 19A WORK RM
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 19
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY012AM141A ROOM A7
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY012AM141A ROOM A2
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PLFY-P12NFMN-E ROOM A5
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A ROOM A12/A14
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP024AM141A ROOM A1/A1A/A13
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 8
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PVFYP48NAMU-E1 ROOM 7
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A ROOM 7A
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP054AM141A ROOM 9
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PVFY-PN8NAMU-E1-1 ROOMS 10-15
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PVFY-PV8NAMU-E1-1 RM L-1 MEDIA CTR
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY054AM141A RM L-1 MEDIA CTR
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFY024AM141A ROOM L-2
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI TPVFYP012AM141A ROOM L-3 OFFICE
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PVF4-P48NAMU-E1-1 ROOM L-4 STORAGE
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PUA-A24K47 ROOM 21C
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PKA-A24K47 ROOM A13 DATA
FAN COIL UNIT MITSUBISHI PKA-A24K47 ROOM 16
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 2A UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 2B UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 22B TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 21B TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A780 ROOM A10 BOY'S
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A780 ROOM A9 GIRL'S
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 20A TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM 19B TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM A3 STAFF
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A220 ROOM A6 TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 ROOM A4 TOILET
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD FUTURE
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-A290 RM L-5 CERMANICS


120/329







Proposal Number:              Page 17 10/14/21


APPENDIX 5
Gault Elementary School


1320 Seabright Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD PORTABLE BOYS
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD ADMIN BOYS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN CARNES TBD KINDERGARDEN
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z-8 CONF ROOM 1
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z-8 CONF ROOM 2
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD PORTABLE UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD PORTABLE GIRLS
EXHAUST FAN PENN ZEPERETTE STAFF TOILET #1
EXHAUST FAN PENN ZEPERETTE STAFF TOILET #2
EXHAUST FAN CARNES TBD PRINCIPLE
EXHAUST FAN PENN TBD NURSES
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD ADMIN GIRLS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN BROAN TBD KIDS CONNECTION
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB1001 MAIN BLDG
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD CONF ROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD CONF ROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD AUDITORIUM
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD AUDITORIUM
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD AUDITORIUM
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD AUDITORIUM
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD STAGE
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD ROOM A1.1 (K)
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD ROOM A1.2 (K)
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TUVA15VA… ROOM A3
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TUVA15VA… ROOM A2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE MCCB0034A0C0UA ENTRANCE
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FF13B1001JW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0801KW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0801KW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0801KW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0801KW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB0801KW AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB021JWG AUDIO/MPR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010J0H ROOM 9
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHOH ROOM 5
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHOH ROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHOH LIBRARY 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHOH LIBRARY 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE FFBB021JWG HALL
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010J0H ROOM 10
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC10010J0H ROOM 11
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHUH ROOM 8
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHUH ROOM 7


121/329







Proposal Number:              Page 18 10/14/21


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHUH ROOM 6
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC1001OHOH ROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE MCCB0034A0C0UA ADMINISTRATION
CEILING HEAT PUMP BARD TBD KIDS CONNECTION
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05… PORTABLE 14
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05… PORTABLE 15
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05… PORTABLE 16
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05… PORTABLE 17
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH492-A05… PORTABLE 18
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD 45WH1-A08… PORTABLE 19
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WA640B-A54K PORTABLE 20
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WA640B-A54K PORTABLE 21
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH421-A10XXXX PORTABLE 22
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH421-A10XXXX PORTABLE 23
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH422-A05VXXXXX PORTABLE 24


122/329







Proposal Number:              Page 19 10/14/21


APPENDIX 6
Harbor High School


300 La Fonda Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95062
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AIR HANDLER SEASONS 6MJB19-XXX-DN3.0-04SE FINE ARTS ROOF
AIR HANDLER SEASONS 6MJB19-XXX-DN3.0 FINE ARTS
AIR HANDLER SEASONS 6MJB19-XXX-DN3.0 FINE ARTS
ELECTRIC HEATER FEDERAL USA28300 WOODSHOP
ELECTRIC HEATER FEDERAL USA28300 WOODSHOP
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-080-4X-QD-R2 ADMIN MENS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-101-4X ADMIN WOMENS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 ADMIN ELECTRICAL 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 ADMIN STORAGE CLOSET


EXHAUST FAN COOK 90C10DH HUMANITES ELECTRICAL RM 
ROOF


EXHAUST FAN COOK 70C15DH HUMANITIES JANITOR ROOF
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD PA DARK ROOM
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 120C3B PA BLDG ROOF - PHOTOGRAPHY
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 120R5B S BLDG ROOF FUME HOOD
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO 165C5B COMMON TOILETS OUTSIDE 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 MPR CUSTODIAN ROOF


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-101-4-X MPR ROOF - GIRLS TOILET 
OUTSIDE


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-101-4-X MPR ROOF - BOYS TOILET 
OUTSIDE 


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 MPR ROOF - ELECTRICAL ROOM
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 MPR KITCHEN ROOF
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 MPR KITCHEN TOILET 
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-070-4X-QD-R2 MPR ROOF - FOOD STORAGE 
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO 165C5B BLOCK HSE RR LOWER


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 90W10DH LOCKER RM SIDE WALL MT 
ELECT RM


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 120C3B LCKER RM ROOF GIRLS' TEAM
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 135C3B LKER RM ROOF GIRLS RR
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 70C3B LCKER RM ROOF GIRL'S OFFICE


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 70C3B LCKER RM ROOF GIRL'S SHOWER 
#1


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 135C3B LKER RM ROOF BOY'S SHOWER 
#1


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 135C4B LCKER RM ROOF BOY'S SHOWER 
#2


EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 135C4B LKER RM ROOF BOY'S OFFICE
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 120C3B LKER RM ROOF BOY'S RR
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 135C4B LCKER RM ROOF BOY'S TEAM
EXHAUST FAN LOREN COOK CO. 100C3B LCKER RM ROOF BOY'S TRAIN'G
FAN COIL UNIT CARRIER 40QAB048321 PA BLDG 10
FAN COIL UNIT CARRIER 40QAB048321 PA BLDG 12
FAN COIL UNIT CARRIER 40QAB060311 PA BLDG 1A
FAN COIL UNIT CARRIER 40QAB060311 PA BLDG 3A
FAN COIL UNIT CARRIER 40QAB024330 08-09A SCIENCE
FURNACE REZNOR HCRGB300-S HV-1 ADMINISTRATION ROOF


123/329







Proposal Number:              Page 20 10/14/21


FURNACE REZNOR HCRGB225-S HV-2 ADMINISTRATION ROOF
FURNACE TRANE GRAA20G H BLDG 
FURNACE TRANE GRAA20G H BLDG
FURNACE REZNOR CRGBL400 HV-MP1 MPR ROOF
FURNACE REZNOR HCRGB225-7-S HV-MP2 KITCHEN ROOF
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G3 M BLDG 100
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G2 M BLDG 101
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G1 M BLDG 102
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G1 M BLDG 103
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G8 M BLDG 200
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G7 M BLDG 201
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G6 M BLDG 202
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G5 M BLDG 203
FURNACE COMFORTMAKER GNL050N12G4 M BLDG 204
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD S BLDG ROOM 3
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD S BLDG ROOM 4
HEAT PUMP BARD TBD S BLDG ROOM 4
KITCHEN EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK CUBE-180MP-15-G KITCHEN ROOF
MINI SPLIT CARRIER 38HDC024331 CU SCIENCE ROOF
MINI SPLIT TRANE 47XK2724A10N0AA S BLDG ROOF
MINI SPLIT TRANE 47XK2724A10N0AA S BLDG ROOF
ROOFTOP PACKAGE UNIT TRANE YHC060A4RHA0JD2 KITCHEN ROOF
ROOFTOP PACKAGE UNIT LENNOX KHB07454TNIG WEIGHT ROOM
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XXDN6.0-11SE PA BLDG ROOF HV8
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XXDN6.0-10SE PA BLDG ROOF HV7
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 GMJB19-XXDN4.0-07SE H BLDG-LOWER HV8
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 GMJB19-XXDN4.0-07SE H BLDG ROOF-LOWER HV9
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 GMJB19-XXDN4.0-07SE H BLDG ROOF-LOWER HV10
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 GMJB19-XXDN4.0-07SE H BLDG ROOF LOWER HV11
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XXXX-DN3.0-04SE LIBRARY
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XXXX-DN3.0-04SE LIBRARY
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XX-DN6.0-09SE S BLDG ROOF-HV4
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19-XXXX-DN6.0-09SE S BLDG ROOF-HV5
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19XXXX-DN4-0-05SE GYM HV-16
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6MJB19XXXX-DN4-0-05SE GYM HV-17
RTU - GAS HEAT SEASONS 4 6SJB16-XXX-MN80-12 LOCKER RM ROOF HV-17
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD W48H1-A04XX4XXX PORTABLE 10
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD W48H1-A04XX4XXX PORTABLE 11
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD W48H1-A04XX4XXX PORTABLE 12
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 3
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH483-A04XX4XXX PORTABLE 1-A
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD PWY048BKAVXA·10 PORTABLE HEALTH OFFICE
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XX PORTABLE 1
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP INTERTHERM PWY048BKAVXA PORTABLE 2
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 4A
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD PORTABLE 4B
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05BX4XXX PORTABLE 6 /WORK ABILITY 
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WAG40B-A54X PORTABLE 5


124/329







Proposal Number:              Page 21 10/14/21


APPENDIX 7
Mission Hill Middle School


425 King St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB01-UAUAA00 ART ROOM 5
AIR HANDLER TRANE CLIMATE CHANGER BOYS RR 1ST FLOOR
AIR HANDLER TRANE CLIMATE CHANGER SCIENCE OFFICE AND RTI


AIR HANDLER TRANE CLIMATE CHANGER STAFF LOUNGE AND 
WORKROOM


AIR HANDLER TRANE CLIMATE CHANGER FIRST FLOOR WOMEN'S
AIR HANDLER TRANE TYPE-7 ADMINISTRATION
AIR HANDLER TRANE CLIMATE CHANGER TYPE-3 COUNSELOR OFFICE
AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB003UAOAA0 CLASSROOM 8 / KITCHEN
AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB07UAUAAUA MPR/AUDITORIUM
AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCB014UAOAA0B LIBRARY
AIR HANDLER TRANE TBD CLASSROOM 27
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB200-15-X GIRL'S LOCKER
EXHAUST FAN DAYTON 4C097A GIRL'S LOCKER / OFFICE
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP6 GIRL'S LOCKER TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-180-7-X BOY'S LOCKER
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10SR BOY'S LOCKER OFFICE


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-6B BOY'S LOCKER OFFICE 
TOILET


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SP-6B CLASSROOM 30 WOODSHOP 
RR


EXHAUST FAN FLO AIR DDAR12 WOODSHOP SPRAY BOOTH 
CLASSROOM 30


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-200-7-X KITCHEN
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-220-7-X KILN
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-141-4-QD RESTROOMS NEAR ART


EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD ADMINISTRATION HEALTH / 
OFFICE


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SFB-185-10-CW-TH UNISEX RR 2ND FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD MEN'S RR 1ST FLOOR
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-080-4X-QD-R2 WOMEN'S RR 1ST FLOOR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 14
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 13
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 9
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 10
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 11
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 12
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 3
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD CLASSROOM 4
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 23
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 24 A
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 24 B
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC2001OFOFACXY1EEH100D2310 CLASSROOM 21 COMP LAB A
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE HUVC2001OFOFACXY1EEH100D2310 CLASSROOM 21 COMP LAB B


125/329







Proposal Number:              Page 22 10/14/21


FAN COIL UNIT TRANE CS3M12H1 CLASSROOM 22
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TYPE-3 CLASSROOM 25
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD CLASSROOM 26
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD MUSIC
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE TBD MUSIC ROOM
FURNACE ICP TFIE-HN9MSE0601714A1 CLASSROOM32


FURNACE DAY & NIGHT N9MSE0601714A1 CLASSROOM 33 
WOOD/METAL SHOP


PACKAGE UNIT TRANE GRAA15GDBE0N1BQ50101 SIDE OF BLDG WOOD/METAL 
SHOP #30


PACKAGE UNIT TRANE TBD SIDE OF BLDG WOOD/METAL 
SHOP #31


PACKAGE UNIT TRANE GFAA20GDDE GYM - SMALL 


RTU PACKAGE TRANE MECA CLASSROOM 7 / 
CLASSROOM 20


RTU PACKAGE TRANE GRAA15GDAE GYM - BOYS LOCKER
RTU PACKAGE TRANE GRAA15GDAE GYM - GIRLS LOCKER
RTU PACKAGE TRANE GFAA20 GYM - MAIN
RTU PACKAGE TRANE VR20 GYM - MAIN
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XXX PORTABLE 1
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XXX PORTABLE 2
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XXX PORTABLE 3


126/329







Proposal Number:              Page 23 10/14/21


APPENDIX 8
Santa Cruz High School


415 Walnut Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95060
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location
AIR HANDLER AMERICAN BLOWER 2157465-A MAIN BLDG BASEMENT
AIR HANDLER AMERICAN BLOWER 3187465-B MAIN BLDG 3RD FLOOR
AIR HANDLER AMERICAN BLOWER 215-7465-D CAFETERIA
AIR HEATER AMERICAN STD SIZE 35L GYM GIRLS LOCKER ROOM
AIR HEATER AMERICAN STD SIZE 35L GYM BOYS LOCKER ROOM
AMERICAN BLOWER AMERICAN BLOWER 2157465-A MAIN BLDG BASEMENT
DUCT HEATER DOERR TBD LIBRARY
DUCT HEATER REZNOR HX225-8-E LIBRARY
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK W2-30-7 GIRLS SHOWER
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK W2-30-7 BOYS SHOWER
EXHAUST FAN CAPTIVEAIRE DR50HFA 1ST FLOOR BOYS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK W4-10-4 1ST FLOOR GIRLS TOILET
EXHAUST FAN CAPTIVEAIRE ER50HFA 1ST FLOOR TRAINING ROOM
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SFB-15-20-CW-TH ADMIN TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN PENN TBD METAL SHOP
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z5H AUTO UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z6H SCIENCE MENS
EXHAUST FAN PENN SX095VC SCIENCE CHEM STORAGE
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z6H SCIENCE WOMENS
EXHAUST FAN COOK ACLU SCIENCE STORAGE
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z-8S MENS CAFÉ OUTSIDE
EXHAUST FAN CAPTIVAIRE TBD KITCHEN
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10R HOME EC TOILET
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD CAFETERIA OFFICE
EXHAUST FAN PENN Z-8S WOMENS CAFÉ OUTSIDE
EXHAUST FAN TBD 4YC44 MUSIC BLDG RESTROOM
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10R SCIENCE OLD CHEM STORAGE
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10R LIBRARY 
EXHAUST FAN CAPTIVEAIRE NCA16FA KITCHEN
FURNACE HAYS 105HF10 MUSIC
FURNACE HAYS 140HF15/11 MUSIC
FURNACE HAYS 175HF15 MUSIC
FURNACE HAYS 175HF15 MUSIC
FURNACE BRYANT 310JAV048 HOME EC 55A
FURNACE BRYANT 311JA36110 SCIENCE
FURNACE BRYANT 311JAV036110 SCIENCE
FURNACE TRANE TUD1C100A9481AA SCIENCE
FURNACE TRANE TUD1C100A9481AA SCIENCE
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 11
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 12
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 13
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 14
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 15
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 16
FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 17


127/329







Proposal Number:              Page 24 10/14/21


FURNACE BRYANT TUD100C MATH RM 18
FURNACE BRYANT 311JAV048090 INDUSTRIAL ARTS AUTO SHOP
FURNACE CAPTIVE AIRE AI-1BT150-GT10 Weight Room N
FURNACE CAPTIVE AIRE AI-1BT150-GT10 Weight Room S
FURNACE ARMSTRONG GID80BT150D20 TRIDENT
FURNACE BRYANT 310JAV048 HOME EC
FURNACE BRYANT 310JAV048 HOME EC
FURNACE REZNOR CREB75-6W2 SCIENCE
FURNACE REZNOR CREB75-6W2 SCIENCE
FURNACE REZNOR RPBL-400 GYM (ROOF)
FURNACE REZNOR RPBL-400 GYM (ROOF)
FURNACE REZNOR RPBL-400 GYM (ROOF)
FURNACE REZNOR RPBL-400 GYM (ROOF)
SPLIT HP CARRIER 400A0060 TRIDENT
SPLIT HP CARRIER 400A0060 TRIDENT
SPLIT HP CARRIER 400A0060 TRIDENT
SPLIT HP CARRIER 400A0060 TRIDENT
UNIT HEATER JANITROL UAS85-14 ART
UNIT HEATER DAYTON 2RYV3 BIKE SHOP
UNIT HEATER JANITROL UAS85-14 ART
UNIT HEATER JANITROL TBD BIKE SHOP
UNIT HEATER JANITROL UAS100-14 ART
UNIT HEATER JANITROL USA85-14 BIKE SHOP
UNIT HEATER JANITROL TBD ART
UNIT HEATER JANITROL USA85-14 WOOD SHOP
UNIT HEATER JANITROL UAS100-14 ART
UNIT HEATER JANITROL USA85-14 WOOD SHOP
UNIT HEATER JANITROL USA85-14 WOOD SHOP


128/329







Proposal Number:              Page 25 10/14/21


APPENDIX 9
Soquel High School


401 Soquel San Jose Rd, Soquel, CA 95073
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AIR HANDLER TRANE T17 BLDG 300 CENTER CLASSROOMS
AIR HANDLER TRANE T10 BLDG 300 EAST CLASSROOMS
AIR HANDLER TRANE TBD BLDG 300 WEST CLASSROOMS
AIR HANDLER TRANE LPCAD BOYS LOCKER ROOM
AIR HANDLER TRANE LPCAD GIRLS LOCKER ROOM
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD B-700 GYM
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE H-1622 BLDG 100 ADMIN
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD BLDG 100 EAST
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE H1636 BLDG 100 WEST
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD BLDG 200 EAST CLASSROOMS
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD BLDG 200 WEST CLASSROOMS
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE STYLE SFY4376 METAL SHOP CEILING 501
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD MULTIPURPOSE RM/CAFETERIA
AIR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE TBD MUSIC ROOM
AR HANDLER WESTINGHOUSE SFY4376-5 MPR
AIR HANDLER TBD TBD B-200 ROOM 206 CHEMISTRY
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK SWB-12-5-CW-U BLDG 200 ROOM 206 FUMEHOOD
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD BLDG 200 ROOM 206 CEILING
EXHAUST FAN TBD TBD BLDG 300 EAST
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX13Q BLDG 100 ADMIN TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX30 BOY'S LOCKER
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10R BOY'S RR INSIDE POOL
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX13S COUNTY MEN'S OUTSIDE TOILET
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX13S COUNTY WOMEN'S OUTSIDE TOILET
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX30B GIRLS' LOCKER ROOM
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX110 MPR / SNACK BAR 400A
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX10R MUSIC BOY'S UPPER TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN PENN DX110 MUSIC RM EXTERIOR TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN TRANE 10G2 B-300 EAST TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN TRANE 13H4 B-300 WEST TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN WESTINGHOUSE 3022 BLDG 200 TOILETS / JANITORIAL
FAN COIL UNIT MCQUAY TBD METAL SHOP CEILING 501


FURNACE TRANE S9X1B040UPS MUSIC RM 403B MECHANICAL 
CLOSET


HEAT ONLY TRANE 168WL WEIGHT RM 505
HEAT ONLY TRANE 168WF WEIGHT RM 505
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XX PORTABLE 506
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XX PORTABLE 507
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WH482-A05VX4XX PORTABLE 508
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WG491-A11UX4XXX PORTABLE 600
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD WG422-A11BU74XXX PORTABLE 601
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD W4421-LA09XX4XXX PORTABLE 602


129/329







Proposal Number:              Page 26 10/14/21


APPENDIX 10
Westlake Elementary School


1000 High St, Santa Cruz, CA 95060
EQUIPMENT INCLUDED:
The following equipment is included with the SOW.


Type Make Model Location


AIR HANDLER TRANE MCCA021UB000400AO MULITPURPOSE
AIR HANDLER TRANE TBD LIBRARY WEST
AIR HANDLER TRANE YHC036A3RHA0 LIBRARY EAST
EXHAUST FAN FANTECH 10XL LIBRARY KITCHEN
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-161-3 KITCHEN HOOD
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-101-4X-QD-R4 LIBRARY KILN
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-080-6 MAIN BUILDING RESTROOMS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-080-6 KINDERGARDEN RESTROOMS


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK G-HB120-22-BISW UPPER INTERMEDIATE 
CLASSROOMS


EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-101-4X-QD-R4 UPPER INTERMEDATE TOILETS
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-22-BISW-21-10-1 UPPER CLASSROOM EXHAUST
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-080-6 MPR UNISEX
EXHAUST FAN GREENHECK GB-08000-6 MPR RESTROOMS
EXHAUST FAN BROAN Nuton 672RB GIRL'S UPPER RR
EXHAUST FAN BROAN Nuton 672RB BOY'S UPPER RR
EXHAUST FAN BROAN Nuton 672RB UPPER UNISEX RR
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 1
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 2
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 3
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 4
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 5
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 6
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 7
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 8
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 9
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10010 KINDERGARDEN 19
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10010 KINDERGARDEN 20
FAN COIL UNIT MAGIC AIR 90-BV B BLOWER ADMIN/BOILER ROOM
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 10
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 11
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 12
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 13
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 14
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 15
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC10110KOH CLASSROOM 16
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 17
FAN COIL UNIT TRANE VUVC100110KOH CLASSROOM 18
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSOOM 22
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSOOM 23
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSOOM 24
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSOOM 25
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CAMPUS KIDS A
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CAMPUS KIDS B


130/329







Proposal Number:              Page 27 10/14/21


WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 32
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 33
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 28
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 29
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 30
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 31
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 27
WALL MOUNT HEAT PUMP BARD TBD CLASSROOM 26


131/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.3.  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Electric School Bus Grant 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION:   
Approve the grant for the purchase of a new Lion-A electric school bus. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2019 and 2020 the Monterey Bay Air Resources District Zero Emission School Bus Program 
funded Santa Cruz City Schools first two electric buses. The first electric bus is in daily service 
shuttling up to 52 students to and from the Grant Street Park, as well as providing local field 
trips for Santa Cruz City Schools students.  The second electric bus, designed to transport 
students with special needs, is anticipated to arrive in December 2021. 
 
In 2021, Monterey Bay Air Resources District did not open the Zero Emission School Bus 
Program, and there is no commitment currently for this program in 2022.  This required the 
District to look for other funding opportunities for electric school buses. The Central Coast 
Community Energy (3CE) and the Hybrid and Zero-Emission Truck and Bus Voucher Incentive 
Project (HVIP) have funding available today.   
 
Santa Cruz City Schools has applied for both grants and combined defray 87% of the expense of 
a third new electric school bus. The Board approve the purchase of a third bus at the October 5, 
2021 Board Meeting using these grant resources. 
 
This past week, the Monterey Bay Air Resources District Zero Emission School Bus Program 
notified the district that the transportation department is eligible for a fourth electric bus at no 
cost to the District in 2022. Delivery of the electric bus is anticipated in the third or fourth 
quarter of 2022.  
 
Currently, Santa Cruz City Schools has 22 buses in its fleet: Fourteen diesel buses, seven 
gasoline buses, and one electric bus.  The purchase of this Lion-A Electric bus will replace one of 
the District’s diesel buses. 
 
Should any of the grant funding listed above not come to fruition, the District will not purchase 
the Lion-A electric school bus at this time.  
 
 


132/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.2.2.3.  


FISCAL IMPACT: 
$0    
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


133/329







 
 


921, chemin de la Rivière-du-Nord, Saint-Jérôme, QC, J7Y 5G2 
450 432-5466 |1 855 546-6706          thelionelectric.com 


For immediate release 


LION ELECTRIC RECEIVES CONDITIONAL PURCHASE ORDER  
FROM STUDENT TRANSPORTATION OF CANADA  


FOR 1,000 ELECTRIC SCHOOL BUSES 


MONTREAL, October 25, 2021 – The Lion Electric Company (NYSE: LEV) (TSX: 
LEV) (“Lion” or the “Company”), a leading manufacturer of all-electric medium and 
heavy-duty urban vehicles, today announced that it has received a conditional 
purchase order for 1,000 all-electric LionC school buses from Student 
Transportation of Canada (“STC”), a subsidiary of Student Transportation of 
America (“STA”), a north-American leader in student transportation, safety and 
fleet management services, whose controlling shareholder is Caisse de dépôt et 
placement du Québec (CDPQ).  
 
The purchase order is conditional upon the satisfactory grant of non-repayable 
contributions to STC under Infrastructure Canada’s Zero-Emission Transit Fund 
(“ZETF”), for which STC has filed a formal application. Under the ZETF program, 
the Government of Canada aims to invest $2.75 billion over five years to support 
public transit and school bus operators in the transition to electrification.  
 
If confirmed, this purchase order would allow STC to become the largest operator 
of zero-emission school buses in North America. This investment would also 
contribute to CDPQ’s portfolio decarbonation objectives. Deliveries would begin in 
2022 and occur through the first half of 2026. These electric buses would replace 
existing diesel vehicles within STC’s Canadian fleet. The operator plans on 
working closely with its customers and partners to determine which school boards 
would adopt the electric buses if fulfilled. 
 
Lion estimates that the deployment of 1,000 all-electric school buses would help 
eliminate approximately 23,000 tons of greenhouse gas emissions per year, in 
addition to significantly reducing noise pollution for the communities in which they 
operate. 
 
“We applaud STC for its leadership and vision to accelerate the deployment of all-
electric school buses in Canada, and we thank them for trusting Lion with such an 
important transition” said Marc Bedard, CEO – Founder of Lion Electric. “This 
large-scale deployment would position Canada as a clear leader in the 
electrification of school transportation, in great part due to innovative programs like 
the ZETF. We are proud to be working together with STC, the Caisse de dépôt and 
the Canadian Federal Government to provide a cleaner future for our children,” he 
concluded.  
 


134/329







 
 


921, chemin de la Rivière-du-Nord, Saint-Jérôme, QC, J7Y 5G2 
450 432-5466 |1 855 546-6706          thelionelectric.com 


“We are pleased to support electric school bus deployment in Canada. The ZETF 
enables school bus electrification to move closer to reality, with students as the 
true beneficiaries,” said Chris Harwood, President of Student Transportation of 
Canada. “There is still much more work to be done, but STC recognizes that as 
global stewards we must act to operate sustainably. Electrification is a huge step 
toward improving the environment for our students and the communities we serve. 
We look forward to working with Lion, government leaders, our majority 
shareholder CDPQ and our customers. Together, we hope to move toward a 
sustainable future.” 
 
“As the controlling shareholder of Student Transportation, we are delighted to 
support the company in its green shift, with the deployment of a fleet that would 
make it the largest operator of zero-emission school busses in North America. 
Driving the next generation to their place of learning in electric transport is a good 
illustration of our vision for a more sustainable future. This ambitious program, 
carried out thanks to Lion, the Quebec leader in electric transport, will directly 
contribute to our commitment to reduce the carbon intensity of our portfolio by 
60% by 2030,” said Emmanuel Jaclot, Executive Vice-President and Head of 
Infrastructure at CDPQ. 
 
ABOUT LION ELECTRIC  
Lion Electric is an innovative manufacturer of zero-emission vehicles. The 
company creates, designs and manufactures all-electric class 5 to class 
8 commercial urban trucks and all-electric buses and minibuses for the school, 
paratransit and mass transit segments. Lion is a North American leader in electric 
transportation and designs, builds and assembles all the key components of its 
vehicles, including chassis, battery packs, truck cabins and bus bodies.  
 
Always actively seeking new and reliable technologies, Lion vehicles have unique 
features that are specifically adapted to its users and their everyday needs. Lion 
believes that transitioning to all-electric vehicles will lead to major improvements 
in our society, environment and overall quality of life. Lion shares are traded on the 
New York Stock Exchange and the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol 
LEV. 
 
Lion Electric, The Bright Move 
Thelionelectric.com 
 
ABOUT STUDENT TRANSPORTATION OF AMERICA 
Founded in 1997, Student Transportation of America (STA) is an industry leader 
in school transportation, safety and fleet services. STA operates more than 
16,000 vehicles, providing customers with the highest level of safe and reliable 
student transportation, management, logistics and technology solutions 
throughout the U.S. and Canada. Services are delivered by drivers, dispatchers, 
maintenance technicians, managers, information technology professionals and 


135/329







 
 


921, chemin de la Rivière-du-Nord, Saint-Jérôme, QC, J7Y 5G2 
450 432-5466 |1 855 546-6706          thelionelectric.com 


others, who are caring members of their local communities. For more information, 
please visit www.rideSTA.com. 
 
ABOUT CDPQ 
At Caisse de dépôt et placement du Québec (CDPQ), we invest constructively to 
generate sustainable returns over the long term. As a global investment group 
managing funds for public retirement and insurance plans, we work alongside our 
partners to build enterprises that drive performance and progress. We are active 
in the major financial markets, private equity, infrastructure, real estate and private 
debt. As at June 30, 2021 CDPQ’s net assets total CAD 390 billion. For more 
information, visit cdpq.com, follow us on Twitter or consult our Facebook or 
LinkedIn pages. 


CAUTION REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  


This press release contains “forward-looking information” and “forward-looking statements” (collectively, “forward-looking 
statements”) within the meaning of applicable securities laws. Any statements contained in this press release that are not 
statements of historical fact, including statements about Lion’s beliefs and expectations, are forward-looking statements and 
should be evaluated as such. Forward-looking statements may be identified by the use of words such as “believe,” “may,” 
“will,” “continue,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “expect,” “should,” “would,” “could,” “plan,” “project,” “potential,” “seem,” “seek,” 
“future,” “target” or other similar expressions and any other statements that predict or indicate future events or trends or that 
are not statements of historical matters, although not all forward-looking statements contain such identifying words. These 
forward-looking statements include statements regarding the conditional purchase order received from STC, the potential 
award of grant funding to STC from the ZETF, the number of vehicles subject to, and the expected timing of deliveries 
under, the purchase order received from STC.  


The Company made a number of economic, market and operational assumptions in preparing and making certain forward-
looking statements contained in this press release including, but not limited to, that Lion will be able to retain and hire key 
personnel and maintain relationships with customers, suppliers and other business partners, that Lion will continue to 
operate its business in the normal course, that Lion will be able to implement its growth strategy, that Lion will be able to 
successfully and timely complete the construction of its U.S. manufacturing facility and its Quebec battery plant and 
innovation center, that Lion will not suffer any material disruption in the supply of raw materials on competitive terms, that 
Lion will be able to maintain its competitive position, that Lion will continue to improve its operational, financial and other 
internal controls and systems to manage its growth and size and that its results of operations and financial condition will not 
be adversely affected, that Lion will be able to benefit, either directly or indirectly (including through its clients), from 
government subsidies and economic incentives in the future and that Lion will be able to secure any required additional 
funding through equity or debt financing on terms acceptable to Lion. Such estimates and assumptions are made by Lion 
in light of the experience of management and their perception of historical trends, current conditions and expected future 
developments, as well as other factors believed to be appropriate and reasonable in the circumstances. However, there can 
be no assurance that such estimates and assumptions will prove to be correct. 


By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on 
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Lion believes that these risks and uncertainties include, but are not 
limited to, the following: any adverse changes in the U.S. and Canadian general economic, business, market, financial, 
political and legal conditions, including as consequences of the global COVID-19 pandemic and the emergence of COVID-
19 variants and varying rates of vaccination amongst various countries; Lion’s inability to successfully and economically 
manufacture and distribute its vehicles at scale and meet its customers’ business needs; Lion’s reliance on key management 
and any inability to attract and/or retain key personnel; Lion’s inability to execute its growth strategy; Any unfavorable 
fluctuations and volatility in the price of raw materials included in key components used to manufacture Lion’s products; 
Lion’s reliance on key suppliers and any inability to maintain an uninterrupted supply of raw materials; Lion’s inability to 
maintain its competitive position; Lion’s inability to reduce its costs of supply over time; any inability to maintain and enhance 
Lion’s reputation and brand; any significant product repair and/or replacement due to product warranty claims or product 
recalls; any failure of information technology systems or any cybersecurity and data privacy breaches or incidents; the 
reduction, elimination or discriminatory application of government subsidies and economic incentives or the reduced need 
for such subsidies; natural disasters, epidemic or pandemic outbreaks, boycotts and geo-political events; the outcome of 
any legal proceedings that may be instituted against the Company from time to time.  


These and other risks and uncertainties related to the businesses of Lion are described in greater detail in the section 
entitled “Risk Factors” in the Company’s final prospectus dated May 5, 2021 (the “Canadian Prospectus”) filed with the 
Autorité des marchés financiers (the “AMF”) and the registration statement on Form F-1 (the “Registration Statement”) filed 


136/329







 
 


921, chemin de la Rivière-du-Nord, Saint-Jérôme, QC, J7Y 5G2 
450 432-5466 |1 855 546-6706          thelionelectric.com 


with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “SEC”) and declared effective on June 14, 2021 and other documents 
publicly filed with the AMF and the SEC. Many of these risks are beyond Lion’s management’s ability to control or predict. 
All forward-looking statements attributable to Lion or persons acting on its behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by 
the cautionary statements contained, and risk factors identified, in the Canadian Prospectus, the Registration Statement 
and other documents filed with the AMF and the SEC.  


Because of these risks, uncertainties and assumptions, readers should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking 
statements. Furthermore, forward-looking statements speak only as of the date they are made. Except as required under 
applicable securities laws, Lion undertakes no obligation, and expressly disclaims any duty, to update, revise or review any 
forward-looking information, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. 


 
CONTACTS:    
 
MEDIA 
Lion Electric 
Patrick Gervais   
Vice President of Marketing and Communications 
Patrick.Gervais@thelionelectric.com 
514-992-1060   
 
CDPQ 
Media Relations Team 
+ 1 514 847-5493 
medias@cdpq.com 
 
 
INVESTORS 
Isabelle Adjahi 
Vice President, Investor Relations and Sustainable Development 
Isabelle.Adjahi@thelionelectric.com 
450-432-5466, extension 171 
 


137/329







138/329







139/329







140/329







141/329







142/329







143/329







144/329







145/329







146/329







147/329







148/329







149/329







150/329







151/329







152/329







153/329







154/329







155/329







AGENDA ITEM 8.2.4.1 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 


 


AGENDA ITEM: Consultant Services:  Governance Meeting Facilitation 


MEETING DATE: November 3, 2021 


THROUGH:  Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Consultant Service Agreement for facilitation for Governance meetings in the 2021-22 
school year. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Leadership Associations Coach and former Superintendent Carolyn Post will provide support to 
the Santa Cruz City Governance team through meeting facilitation and planning.  Ms. Post will 
meet with individual Trustees to prepare for the Governance Sessions and will help facilitate 
the Superintendent’s evaluation. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Not to exceed $7,000 LCFF Base (Unrestricted). 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goal and its corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #4:  We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 
effective teaching. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 


156/329







157/329







158/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Abacherli Fence Co. Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Interim 
Housing Temporary Fencing 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Abacherli Fence Co. proposal for Santa Cruz High School interim housing temporary 
fencing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials to provide separation fencing between the 
portables and tennis courts, and access gates as required by the Division of State Architect for 
the temporary classroom portables at Santa Cruz High School. The fencing will match existing 
chain link fencing. These buildings are temporary housing during modernization of buildings 
C&D at Santa Cruz High School. After project completion, when temporary housing is removed 
and tennis court are refurbished, new black fencing will be installed. Below is a table of all of 
the components for this project. 
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Service to Portables $25,280.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Services within the Portables $53,272.00 (agenda item 8.3.8) 


Fencing $23,350.00 (this agenda item) 


DSA Inspections $8,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.5) 


Data Installation $22,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.9) 


Estimated Total $214,702.00 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$23,350.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


159/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.1. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


160/329







161/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.2. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Belli Architectural Group, Inc. Amendment Agreement for 
DeLaveaga Elementary School Central Kitchen Refrigeration 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Belli Architectural Group, Inc. amendment agreement for architectural design and 
construction administration services for the DeLaveaga Elementary School central kitchen 
refrigeration. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of schematic design, design documents, Division of State Architect 
approval, construction bidding and construction management process through completion for 
the DeLaveaga Elementary School central kitchen refrigeration project. 
 
The Board previously approved a master agreement with Belli Architectural Group, Inc. on 
12/14/16. This agreement amendment is for architectural services to include verification of 
existing conditions, schematic design/research, Division of State Architect package 
development and submittal, bid package preparation and administration, and construction 
administration in connection with the central kitchen refrigeration at DeLaveaga Elementary 
School. This project was approved by the Board on January 13, 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$32,200.00 Total 
Cost Breakdown by fund: 
$20,930.00 representing 0.59% of the Measure A District Set-Aside (Restricted)  
$11,270.00 representing 0.64% of the Elementary Redevelopment Agency Fund (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


162/329







{SR208531} 
 


Belli Project #20026 


(SCCS Management Code B503) 
 


FORM OF AMENDMENT TO ADD PROJECT TO AGREEMENT 


(Percentage Fee) 
 


Pursuant to the agreement between the Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) and Belli Architectural 
Group, Inc.(“Architect”) effective January 17, 2017 (“Agreement”) for the Measure A construction 
program, the District and Architect agree to amend the Agreement to add architectural services for 
design and construction administration of the following Harbor High School project  
(“Project”):   
 


Add Bid Package for DeLaveaga ES Food Service Warehouse Refrigeration 


 


Project Services: 


Design  


• Secure as-built documentation of food service warehouse 


• Field measure existing conditions 


• Attend introductory meeting with Facilities and Food Service representatives.  


• Research 


o Review requirements for concrete slab design or raised floor conditions under 


new refrigerator/freezer. 


o Identify appropriate manufacturer/unit types for District consideration 


o Determine power requirements and strategy for connection 


o Coordinate impacts to other systems in the space, such as lighting, fire alarm and 


HVAC. 


• Based on research, develop layout options 


• Present layout options to Facilities and Food Service for consideration. 


• Make adjustments as required and secure approval for layout. 


Bid Administration 


• Develop a bid package consisting of: 


o Partial demolition plan 


o Partial floor plan 


o Partial RCP 


o Floor detailing, as required 


o Unit specifications/details 


o Partial interior elevations 


o Abbreviated electrical/low voltage/fire alarm sheets 


o Abbreviated mechanical sheets  


• Attend one pre-bid job walk.  


• Respond to bid RFI's and issue bid addenda.  


• Assist with bid evaluation as required.  


Construction Administration (CA) 


163/329







{SR208531} 
 


• Attend pre-construction conference. 


• Respond to requests for information (RFI). 


• Review submittals and shop drawings.  


• Assist in reviewing/evaluating contract proposals or bids and substitutions proposed by 


contractors. 


• Attend three construction site meetings as required during the construction period. 


 


Assumptions 


• This work will be bid as a part of central kitchen work planned at Harbor High School, 


but shall be tracked and billed separately.  


• Per DSA IR A-22, this work consists of replacement in like kind of existing refrigeration 


equipment, and as such is exempt from DSA review and approval. 


 
The terms of the Agreement are incorporated into, and govern, this amendment except as may be 
provided otherwise by this amendment.  In the event of a conflict between the Agreement and this 
amendment, the terms of this amendment shall control.   
 
For the Projects, Architect shall perform the Basic and Additional Services specified in the Agree-
ment and this amendment.  Design-Bid-Build construction contracts are being used as the delivery 
method for the Project. 
 
For the Basic Services satisfactorily performed under this amendment to the Agreement, the total 
compensation paid to the Architect for the Project shall be billed as a fixed fee of $32,200. 


 
Architect’s total reimbursement for Reimbursable Expenses is not required for this amendment.  
 
Architect shall provide a minimum of four (2) full-time employees for the Project before construc-
tion commences, and two (2) full-time employees after construction commences, to perform its 
duties and responsibilities under this Agreement.   
 


For the period of this Project, the Architect shall have errors and omissions insurance on an occur-


rence basis, with limits of at least One Million Dollars ($1,000,000) and with a deductible in an 


amount not to exceed the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000).   


 


ARCHITECT: 


Belli Architectural Group, Inc. 


 


 


By:__________________________ 


David N. Peartree, Vice President 


DISTRICT: 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS  


 


 


By:__________________________ 


Assistant Superintendent, Business 


Services 


 


David Peartree


Digitally signed by David Peartree
DN: C=US, E=david@belliag.com, 
O=Belli Architectural Group, 
OU=Belli Architectural Group, 
CN=David Peartree
Date: 2021.10.08 14:33:27-07'00'


164/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Communication Service Corporation Proposal for Santa Cruz High 
School Announcer Booth Intermediate Distribution Frame    
   


MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Communication Service Corporation proposal for Santa Cruz High School announcer 
booth intermediate distribution frame.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials for the installation of an intermediate distribution 
frame and associated pathway and cabling for the Santa Cruz High School announcer booth. An 
intermediate distribution frame (IDF) is the box and electronic components where all network 
systems must connect. This is to support the video broadcast systems for athletic events on the 
field.  
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$54,198.03 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.16% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


165/329







 


                             Proposal 
                     Specifications and Estimate 
                   No.: PA074-21377rev
   


CSL #584324                                                                                                3333 Soquel Drive, Suite B, Soquel Ca 95073 


PWCR# 1000017035                                                                                                (831) 476-9294  Fax (831) 476 -9296 


 
Submitted to:  Santa Cruz City Schools, Attn: Chris Garcia 
Job Name: SC High Announcer Booth IDF 
Job Address: Santa Cruz High School, 415 Walnut Ave, Santa Cruz, CA 95060-3633 
Date Submitted: 10/19/21 
 
Communication Service Co., Inc. (CSC), proposes to provide all labor and materials for the installation of an IDF and associated pathway and cabling needs at 
the above-mentioned site. Specifications and scope of work as follows: 
 
Electrical Scope per Drawings and Spec: 
Floor Plan- Attached as Exhibit A 
Specifications section: Based on site walk with Chris Garcia on 9/20/21 and follow up conversations. This proposal should also be considered part of 
specifications. 
Any changes in scope or spec prior to installation please call 831-476-9294 
 
Included:  
-Locator to identify existing pathway. 
-Underground contractor to trench from Pool House junction box to new IDF. 
-Electrician to install 2” conduit from Pool House junction box to IDF cabinet. 
-Electrician to install two-2” conduits from new Christie box next to IDF cabinet to IDF cabinet. 
-Electrician to install power (2 circuits) and data conduit (2”) from Announcer Booth to new IDF cabinet 
-Concrete contractor to install 48”x48”x5” monolithic pad for IDF cabinet 
-CSC and Electrical Contractor will install new IDF Cabinet per SCCS specifications 
-CSC will splice into existing fiber in Pool House. CSC will run new 12 Strand SM fiber to new IDF. Fiber will be terminated in both IDF G and new IDF.   
-CSC will install 3 CAT6 and 1 CAT6A cables from new IDF to Pool House. CSC will install 4 CAT6 and 2 CAT6A cables from new IDF to Announcers Booth. 
- CSC will work with SCCS IT to cutover existing technology to new structured cabling system.  
-The cabling will be installed, labeled, tested and documented in accordance with industry best practices and current TIA /ANSI standards. All testing will be 
complete with a Fluke Versiv meter. Results will be made available to the customer upon request.  
 
Excluded:  
Procurement of IT equipment. Existing Fiber installed from IDF G to Pool House.  
 
Terms:  
Subject to mutually acceptable contract between S.C.C.S. and CSC to determine project schedule, work to be performed during business hours. If all work or 
part of work is determined to need to be performed after hours, labor will be increased to overtime rated and billed as a change order.  Items excluded can 
be reassessed and provided by CSC based on agreed terms of both parties.  This proposal is subject to revision or cancelation if not accepted within 15 days 
of bid date. Any delays due to access or delays due to other parties will be assessed in a change order. Any work not included in this proposal can be 
approved through a separate agreement.  
  
            Sub-Contractor-Locator, Electrical, Paving, Concrete: $26,582.40  


CSC- Labor: 11,540.00, Material: 13,250.00, Tax: 1,225.63 and Admin: 1,600.00 Subtotal: $27,615.63                  Grand Total: $54,198.03  
        
                          All work is to be performed in a good and workmanlike manner and every effort will be made to complete the work in accordance with the construction schedule provided 7 
days’ notice is provided. The above installation is fully guaranteed for one year, parts and labor. All Panduit materials qualify for 25-year manufacturer warranty. Abuse, misuse, alteration, 
failure to properly maintain or service equipment, operation in contravention of manufacturer’s recommendations, damage caused by any person or entity other than Communication 
Service Co., or by matters beyond Communication Service Co.’s control, for example, without limitation, acts of God, lightning strikes, power surges, earthquakes, fires, floods, civil 
insurrections or acts of terrorism. Any additional work performed at time of installation is at Prevailing Wage Rate of $145.00 an hour. All Labor is billed at Prevailing Wage Rate per DIR 
determination: STZ.2021-1.   


The person signing this document on behalf of each party represents and warrants that they have been duly authorized to sign this document on behalf of the party for which 
they are signing, and the other party is justified in relying upon the signer’s authority. Acceptance of proposal: The above prices, specifications and conditions are satisfactory and are accepted. 
You are authorized to do the work as specified. Payment terms are net 15 days from invoice. 
 
Authorized Customer signature      Date   
 
Authorized CSC signature       Date   
West Communication Service Inc., DBA Communication Service Co 


166/329



absha

Text Box

10/19/21







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Dilbeck & Sons Inc. Change Order #1 for DeLaveaga Elementary 
School Tack Board Installation 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Dilbeck & Sons Inc. change order #1 for DeLaveaga Elementary School tack board 
installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of labor and material to install one additional vinyl covered tack 
board in the hallway of DeLaveaga Elementary School to display student work as requested by 
the site Principal. The previously approved contract amount was $6,614.00 and the new total 
contract, including this change order, will be $7,271.50. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $657.50 (9.93% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


167/329







168/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.5. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Leach Group Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Interim Housing 
Inspections 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Leach Group proposal for Santa Cruz High School interim housing inspection services.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of onsite inspections of the four temporary housing buildings at Santa 
Cruz High School as required by the Division of State Architects. This is an hourly estimate based 
on an estimated project timeline. Below is a table of all of the components for this project. 
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Service to Portables $25,280.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Services within the Portables $53,272.00 (agenda item 8.3.8) 


Fencing $23,350.00 (agenda item 8.3.1) 


DSA Inspections $8,000.00 (this agenda item) 


Data Installation $22,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.9) 


Estimated Total $214,702.00 


 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$8,000.00, Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.02% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


169/329







Brandon Leach 
DSA # 4924 


T 661-599-5393 
leachgroup@me.com 


Proposal
LEACH GROUP INC.


Attention : Santa Cruz City School District 
Date : 10/14/2021 
PROJECT TITLE: Relocate four Temporary classrooms  01-XXXXXX 
PROJECT DESCRIPTION: Onsite Inspection x 
P.O. NUMBER:  N/A 


Term and conditions : These projections are based on the contractor performing per the 
approved schedule. 


Proposed  :                                       $ 8,000.00



Description Cost
Flat rate to remove and replace four temporary classrooms $	 8,000.00


The quoted price is good for sixty days and is for Fall/Winter 2021 start.
Total $ 8,000.00


170/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.6. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: M3 Environmental Proposal for Mission Hill Middle School Gym 
Roof Asbestos Abatement Oversight 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve M3 Environmental proposal for Mission Hill Middle School gym roof asbestos 
abatement oversight. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of asbestos abatement oversight services for the gym roof repair at 
Mission Hill Middle School. These inspections are required by California Occupational Safety 
and Health Administration (CAL/OSHA). 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$1,545.00 Measure A Funds (Restricted), representing 0.008% of the overall site budget 
$17,648,740.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Mission Hill Middle School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


171/329







 
 


9821 Blue Larkspur Lane, Suite 100, Monterey, CA 93940 P: 831-649-4623 www.M3environmental.com 
 


October 11, 2021 
 
Mr. Christopher Garcia Via email: 
Construction/Facilities Project Manager cgarcia@sccs.net 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
831.427.4848 (o) 
831.239.2586 (c) 
 
Subject: Proposal for Asbestos Abatement Oversight Services at the Gym Roof Located at Mission 


Hill Middle School in Santa Cruz, California 
 M3 Proposal No. 213241  
 
Dear Mr. Garcia: 
 
M3 Environmental LLC (M3) is pleased to present this proposal to provide asbestos abatement oversight 
services for the gym roof transite flue project located at Mission Hill Middle School in Santa Cruz, California.  
This proposal is based on information gathered from a conversation and e-mail provided by you.   
 
Project Understanding 
 
M3 understands that one transite flue is to be removed. You are requesting abatement oversight services 
during the removal and subsequent visual clearances following removal activities.  It is your estimate that 
the abatement is to take one day.  
 
Scope of Work 
 
M3 will assist with the removal project by providing the following: 
 


• Provide an industrial hygienist certified by Cal/OSHA as an asbestos consultant to manage the 
project and supervise M3 staff working on the project. 


• Conduct area air sampling during asbestos removal activities at locations adjacent to the work 
areas to evaluate contractor work practices and to evaluate how well fibers are being contained in 
the regulated work areas.  Air samples will be analyzed by phase contrast microscopy (PCM).  The 
PCM method counts all nonspecific fibers meeting certain dimensional criteria. 


• Observe the work practices and procedures of the abatement contractor during asbestos removal 
activities and monitor conformance with applicable local, state and federal regulations.  We will 
complete daily checklists summarizing field observations and will include these in a written report 
at the completion of the project. 


• Conduct a visual inspection after asbestos removal activities (by others). 
• Prepare and submit a written report and certificate of clearance at the completion of the project 


documenting project activities and air monitoring results.  
 
Fees 
 
All services described will be provided for on a time and materials based on the following schedule: 
 


Staff/Expense Budget Unit Total 
Principal 1 hour $225/hour $225.00 
Staff Scientist  
(Includes prep, travel, oversight, clearances, reporting) 10 hours $105/hour 1,050.00 
Clerical 1 hour $85/hour 85.00 
Asbestos air (PCM) samples (24-hour turnaround) 5 samples $20 each 100.00 
FedEx, supplies, mileage   85.00 


 Estimated Total Fee $1,545.00 
 


172/329







  


 
SCCS 


Mission Hill Middle School 
Gym Roof Flue Abatement Oversight 


Proposal No 213241 
Page 2 


 


Our estimated fee is based on the following assumptions:  
• The contractor will complete the abatement work in one 8-hour shift including time for final 


inspections.  
• Extra hours for additional or longer shifts, meetings outside of the work shift hours, or other 


necessary activities will be charged according to the rates as shown upon receipt of your prior 
approval.   


• Costs for M3 to conduct this project, as well as provision of clearance on time are dependent on the 
performance and timeliness of the abatement contractor.  


 
Thank you for the opportunity to submit our proposal to you.  If this proposal is acceptable, please sign and 
return the attached Proposal Acceptance and Terms to our office.  We look forward to working with you on 
this project.  If you have any questions, please call me at 831.649.4623. 
 
Sincerely 
M3 Environmental LLC. 


 
Chris G. Gatward 
Principal 
 
CGG/ Attachment – Proposal Acceptance and Terms 
 


173/329







  


 
 SCCS 


Mission Hill Middle School 
Gym Roof Flue Abatement Oversight 


Proposal No 213241 
 


ACCEPTANCE  
 
The above proposal is acceptable and within the approval authority of the undersigned. This acknowledgment shall 
have the force and effect of Notice to Proceed to provide the proposed services in accordance with stated rates, based 
on the following terms: 
 
M3 Environmental LLC Terms 
 
An invoice for M3 Environmental LLC (M3) services shall be submitted monthly, or at the completion of the project.  Invoices 
shall be payable within 30 days after the invoice date. 
 
Accounts unpaid 60 days after the invoice date may be subject to a monthly service charge of 1.5% (or the legal rate) on the 
then unpaid balance.  In the event any portion or all of an account remains unpaid 90 days after billing, the Client shall pay all 
costs of collection, including reasonable attorney’s fees. 
 
Any claims or disputes arising between M3 and the Client shall be submitted to non-binding mediation. The Client shall, to the 
fullest extent permitted by law, indemnify and hold harmless M3, M3 officers, directors, employees, and agents from and against 
all damage, liability and cost, including reasonable attorney’s fees and defense costs, arising out of or in any way connected 
with the performance by any of the parties above named of the services under this agreement, excepting only those damages, 
liabilities, or costs attributed to the sole negligence or willful misconduct of M3. 
 
The Client waives to the fullest extent permitted by law, its rights and agrees to indemnify and hold harmless M3, M3 officers, 
directors, employees and agents against any and all claims for injury or loss sustained by any party, from such exposures or 
from the presence of any hazardous substance, constituent, or condition at the site. 
 
The Client agrees that, to the fullest extent permitted by law, M3’s total liability to the Client for any and all injuries, claims, 
losses, expenses, damages or claim expenses arising out of this agreement from any cause or causes, shall not exceed M3’s 
total fees for this project.  Such causes include, but are not limited to, M3’s negligence, errors, omissions, strict liability, breach 
of contract or breach of warranty. 
 
This agreement may be terminated by the Client or M3 should the other fail to perform its obligation hereunder.  In the event 
of termination, the Client shall pay M3’s for all services rendered to the date of termination, all reimbursable expenses, and 
reimbursable termination expenses. 
 
Project-specific documents and data produced by M3 under this Agreement shall, upon receipt of final payment for services 
hereunder, become the property of Client.  Upon delivery of the documents to Client, M3 shall have no further obligation to retain 
the documents.  Client agrees that these documents are not intended or represented by M3 to be suitable for use or reliance 
beyond the original scope or purposes they were originally prepared for or for anyone except the Client.  Any such use will be at 
the Client's or third parties’ sole risk.  
 
The Client is responsible after notification, for payment of time charges and expenses resulting from the required response by M3 
to subpoenas issued by any party, involving any legal or administrative proceeding in which M3 is not named as a party, in 
connection with work performed under this contract.  Charges are based on fee schedules in effect at the time the subpoena is 
served. 
 
With respect to its own activities in performing Services, M3 shall take safety precautions required by federal, state and local laws, 
rules, regulations, statutes or ordinances.  Should Client or his contractors be conducting activities on the Site(s),  M3 shall not, 
except as expressly provided otherwise, be responsible for site safety and shall have no right to direct or stop the work of Client 
or its contractors, agents, or employees. 
 
The Client acknowledges that M3 has neither created, nor contributed to any hazardous or dangerous materials or conditions 
at the site.  
 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
            
Signature     Name (Please Print)  
 
            
P.O.      Date 
 
      
Address  
 
 


174/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.7. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Peninsula Business Interiors Change Order #1 for Branciforte 
Small Schools Alternative Family Education Furniture Installation 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Peninsula Business Interiors change order #1 for Branciforte Small Schools Alternative 
Family Education furniture installation. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This change order consists of labor to wall mount and to connect together bookcases at the 
resource center for earthquake safety. Our architects had originally believed this item was 
accounted for in the original contract, but it was not. The previously approved contract amount 
was $14,023.61 and the new total contract, including this change order, will be $14,810.21. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
Change Order #1     $786.60 (5.61% increase to the contract), Measure B Funds (Restricted) 
 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 
 


175/329







176/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.8. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing 
Electrical 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve PSR Electric proposal for Santa Cruz High School for temporary housing electrical work. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials to run new power within the four portable 
classrooms relocated from DeLaveaga Elementary School for interim housing purposes during 
modernization of buildings C&D at Santa Cruz High School. The proposal to bring electrical from 
the switchgear to the portable classrooms was previously approved by the board. Below is a 
table of all of the components for this project.  
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Service to Portables $25,280.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Services within the Portables $53,272.00 (this agenda item) 


Fencing $23,350.00 (agenda item 8.3.1) 


DSA Inspections $8,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.5) 


Data Installation $22,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.9) 


Estimated Total $214,702.00 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$53,272.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.16% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


177/329







178/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.9. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: SC Systems Proposal for Santa Cruz High School Temporary 
Housing Data 


      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve SC Systems proposal for Santa Cruz High School data for temporary housing. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of labor and materials to install all new internal wiring, devices and 
components for fire alarm, security, intercom and data within the four portable classrooms 
relocated from DeLaveaga Elementary School for interim housing purposes during 
modernization of buildings C&D at Santa Cruz High School. Below is a table of all of the 
components for this project. 
 


Portable Relocation $82,800.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Service to Portables $25,280.00 (board approved) 


Electrical Services within the Portables $53,272.00 (agenda item 8.3.8) 


Fencing $23,350.00 (agenda item 8.3.1) 


DSA Inspections $8,000.00 (agenda item 8.3.5) 


Data Installation $22,000.00 (this agenda item) 


Estimated Total $214,702.00 


 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$22,000.00 Measure B Funds (Restricted), representing 0.06% of the overall site budget 
$32,072,783.00 is the total Bond Allocation to Santa Cruz High School 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 
Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


179/329







10/19/2021 


 C10 Lic. #1000919 / ACO#7627 
 950 34th Ave, Santa Cruz CA, 95062 
 831-251-0781 / ashley@scsystemsca.com / www.scsystemsca.com 


 
PROPOSAL 


 
THE FOLLOWING IS A PROPOSAL FOR:  
Santa Cruz City Schools 
Santa Cruz High – Tennis Court Portable Addition 
 
SCOPE OF WORK: 
Install all internal wiring, devices and components for Fire Alarm, Security, Intercom, and Data 
listed on bid set drawings.  Install new IDF per bid set drawings.  Terminate fire, security, 
intercom and fiber system interconnects at Bldg. G termination point and at designated portable 
termination point. 
All required programing and testing included in proposal.   
 
Exclusions: 
Conduit and raceway to be provided and installed by others. 
Aerial cable installation to be provided by others. 
Plywood backing to be provided and installed by others. 
Patching / painting. 
Active network equipment to be provided by district. 
 
PARTS: 
All listed system components to complete above scope of work per bid set drawings. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


180/329







10/19/2021 


 C10 Lic. #1000919 / ACO#7627 
 950 34th Ave, Santa Cruz CA, 95062 
 831-251-0781 / ashley@scsystemsca.com / www.scsystemsca.com 


 
All installation, programing and testing for the above scope shall be included in this proposal and 
performed in a workmanlike manner to applicable codes. Any additions or changes to the above 
scope must be agreed upon by SCCS and SC Systems.  The only inclusions in this proposal are 
the ones listed above. Any additional work not included in this proposal, but required by the 
local inspector or other authority, shall be subject to additional charges.  This proposal 
incorporates SC Systems general terms and conditions.  Progress payments shall be billed at a 
maximum of 30-day intervals for the value of work and material furnished.  Final payment shall 
be due no later than 30 days after the work described in the Proposal is substantially complete. 
 
PRICE:   
Fire Alarm - $6000 
Security / Intercom - $5000 
Data / Fiber - $11000    
      
CUSTOMER ACCEPTANCE OF THE ABOVE TERMS: 
 
Customer Signature Date 
 


181/329







  


  


                        


                                        AGENDA ITEM: 8.3.10. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Secureall Proposal for Transportation Building Door Locks   
   


MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Secureall proposal for transportation building door locks. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
This proposal consists of door lock hardware for the new transportation building. This hardware 
meets the new District standard for safety and access. This project was approved by the Board 
on January 13, 2021. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT: 
$11,766.80 Total 
Cost Breakdown by fund: 
$7,648.42 representing 0.21% of the Measure A District Set-Aside (Restricted) 
$4,118.38 representing 0.23% of the Elementary Redevelopment Agency Fund (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


182/329







Sales Quotation 
        October 17, 2021 


                                                           


To: 


Mr. Trevor Miller 
Santa Cruz City Schools 
536 Palm Street 
Santa Cruz, CA.  95060 
 


Delivery terms: 
1) Delivery date is 30 days after approval.   
2) Payment terms are net 30 days from date of 
delivery.   
 


 
We are pleased to quote you the following for the Santa Cruz Unified School District security upgrade project: 


Item Quantity Description Unit Price Total 
1.  4 SA-CDR-S, Electrified ANSI Grade 1 Clutched Cylindrical 


Lock - Interior  
$725.75 $2,903.00 


2.  4 SA-CRR-S, Electrified ANSI Grade 1 Clutched Cylindrical 
Restroom Lock - Exterior  


$850.75 $3,403.00 


3.  3 SA-PHR-A, Von Duprin Series 98/99 Rim Exit Device Retrofit 
Kit  - Exterior 


$982.50 $2,947.50 


4.  2 SA-ROU-O, Access Point $645.00 $1,290.00 


5.  1 10Mbps 4 Port POE Switch $159.99 $159.99 


6.      


7.      


8.      


9.      


10.      


11.   Notes:   


12.   1 - A POE switch and POE cabling must be available to run 
the Access Points.  


  


13.   2 - Quote does not include installation.   


14.                                                                    Subtotal           $10,703.49 


15.                                             Est. Shipping & Handling  $100.00 


16.                                                        Sales Tax 9.00%  $963.31 


                                                                        Total $11,766.80 
     
We will be happy to supply any further information you may need and trust that you call on us to fill 
your order, which will receive our prompt and careful attention. 
 
Per:  Rick Schaffzin, CEO                                                                             Date: 10/17/21 
 


 
Approved: ___________________________          Date:_____________________ 
 
 
 


 
SecureALL Corporation 
695 Woburn Court 
Mountain View, CA.  94040 
Phone: 650-704-2725 Fax: 650-938-3755 
sales@secureallcorp.com 
 
 


183/329







 
Terms & Conditions of Sale 
ACCEPTANCE OF BUYER’S ORDER IS 
CONDITIONAL ON BUYER’S ASSENT TO 
THE TERMS AND CONDITIONS PRINTED 
BELOW. IF BUYER OBJECTS TO ANY 
TERMS BELOW, SUCH OBJECTION MUST 
BE IN WRITING AND DELIVERED TO 
SELLER WITHIN A REASONABLE TIME, 
NOT TO EXCEED TEN (10) DAYS OF 
RECEIPT OF THIS DOCUMENT. FAILURE 
TO MAKE SUCH A TIMELY EXCEPTION, OR 
ACCEPTANCE BY BUYER OF ANY GOODS 
DELIVERED BY SELLER HEREUNDER, 
SHALL BE CONCLUSIVELY DEEMED 
ASSENT TO THE TERMS AND CONDI-
TIONS BELOW. SELLER’S FAILURE TO 
OBJECT TO PROVISIONS CONTAINED IN 
ANY COMMUNICATION FROM BUYER WILL 
NOT BE A WAIVER OF THE 
PROVISIONS HEREOF. 
 
1. Taxes 
Prices include any taxes, now or hereafter 
enacted, applicable to the goods sold on 
this transaction. Taxes will be added by 
Seller to the sales price where Seller 
invoices the same to comply with law, 
and will be paid by Buyer unless Buyer 
provides Seller with a proper tax 
exemption certificate. 
 
2. Prices and Setoff 
Prices apply only to the quantity ordered 
and shipped hereunder.  Otherwise, 
Seller’s standard price in effect at time of 
a new order shall apply. 
 
Buyer grants to Seller the right at any 
time during the course of this contract to 
revise prices hereunder by Seller giving 
to Buyer written notice, such revised 
prices to apply to all goods thereafter 
shipped. 
 
If Buyer provides written objection within 
ten (10) days following notice of a price 
change established by Seller, Seller shall 
have the option of terminating this 
contract with no liability to Seller. 
 
Buyer waives any rights of setoff, except 
with respect to its claims against Seller 
which arise from transactions with the 
division at the address shown on the face 
hereof. 
 
3. Title and Delivery 
All shipments of goods shall be delivered 
F.O.B. Seller’s plant, and title and liability 
for loss or damage thereto shall pass to 
Buyer upon Seller’s delivery of the goods 
to a carrier for shipment to Buyer, and 
any loss or damage thereafter shall not 
relieve Buyer from any obligation 
hereunder. Buyer shall be liable for costs 
of insurance and transportation and for 
all import duties, taxes and any other 
expenses incurred or licenses or 
clearance required at port of entry and 
destination. 
 
Seller may deliver goods in installments. 


Shipping dates are approximate only. 
Seller shall not be liable for any loss or 
expense, whether by way of contract or 
tort (consequential or otherwise), 
incurred by Buyer if Seller fails to meet 
the specified estimated delivery schedule 
because of unavoidable production or 
other delays. 
 
All provisions of Paragraph 3 apply to 
both domestic and international  
shipments, except that title to goods 
shipped outside the U.S. shall pass at the 
point of destination; risk of loss or 
damage and all expenses associated with 
goods shipped outside the U.S. shall be 
the responsibility of the Buyer.  Not- 
withstanding, any other provisions of 
Paragraph 3 to the contrary, if Buyer is 
an international subsidiary of Seller, title 
shall pass at the point of destination and 
Seller shall be liable for loss or damage to 
such goods until receipt by Buyer at 
point of destination. 
 
4. Quantities 
Any variation in quantities shipped over 
or under the quantities ordered (not to 
exceed 10%) shall constitute compliance 
with Buyer’s order and the stated unit 
price will continue to apply. 
 
5. Terms and Method of Payment 
Where Seller has extended credit to 
Buyer, terms of payment shall be net 
thirty (30) days from date of shipment. 
The amount of credit or terms of payment 
may be changed, or credit withdrawn by 
Seller at any time. If the goods are 
delivered in installments, Buyer shall pay 
separately for each installment. Payment 
shall be made for the goods without 
regard to whether Buyer has made or 
may make any inspection of the goods. If 
shipments are delayed by Buyer, 
payments are due from the date when 
Seller is prepared to make shipments. 
Goods held for Buyer are at Buyer’s risk 
and expense. 
 
6. Contingencies and Force Majeure 
Seller shall not be liable for any delay in 
delivery or for non-delivery, in whole or in 
part, caused by the occurrence of any 
contingency beyond the control either of 
Seller or Seller’s suppliers, including, but 
not limited to, war (whether an actual 
declaration thereof is made or not), 
sabotage, insurrection, riot or other act of 
civil disobedience, act of a public enemy, 
failure or delay in transportation, act of 
any government or any agency or 
subdivision thereof, judicial action, labor 
dispute, accident, fire, explosion, flood, 
storm or other act of God, shortage of 
labor, fuel, raw material or machinery or 
technical failure where Seller has exer-
cised ordinary care in the prevention 
thereof. Seller may allocate production 
and deliveries among Seller’s customers. 
 


7. Substitutions and Modifications of 
Goods 
Seller may modify the specifications of 
goods designed by Seller, and substitute 
goods manufactured to such modified 
specifications for those specified herein, 
provided such goods substantially 
conform to this contract. Where Buyer 
orders goods subject to military 
specifications, Buyer agrees that Seller 
may supply goods which conform with the 
most current version or revision of the 
applicable military specifications. 
 
8. Legal Compliance 
Buyer, at all times, shall comply with all 
applicable federal, state and local laws 
and regulations. Export of the products 
covered by this quotation or acknow-
ledgment may be subject to export 
license control by the U.S. government. It 
is Buyer’s responsibility to obtain any 
licenses which may be required under the 
applicable laws of the U.S. including the 
Export Administration Act and regulations 
promulgated thereunder. 
 
9. Changes 
Any notice or instruction from the Buyer 
received subsequent to Seller’s acknow-
ledgment, including supplementary 
information contained in a confirming 
purchase order, which has the effect of 
changing the specifications, scope of 
work, or other terms, will be effective 
only upon an appropriate adjustment in 
the price and/or delivery date, and 
acceptance of any change by Seller in 
writing. 
 
10. Limited Warranty 
THE FOLLOWING IS IN LIEU OF ALL 
WARRANTIES EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING, BUT NOT 
LIMITED TO, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTY 
OBLIGATION ON THE PART OF SELLER. 
 
Seller, except as otherwise hereinafter 
provided, warrants the goods against 
faulty workmanship or the use of 
defective materials, and that such goods 
will conform to Seller’s written 
specifications, drawings, and other 
descriptions for a period of two (2) years. 
Seller warrants that at the time of 
delivery, Seller has title to the goods free 
and clear of any and all liens and 
encumbrances. These warranties are the 
only warranties made by Seller and can 
be amended only by a written instrument 
signed by an officer of Seller. All 
warranties that Seller provides to Buyer 
are solely for Buyer’s benefit.  Buyer may 
not transfer or assign any of these 
warranties. 
  
Continued use or possession of goods 
after expiration of the applicable warranty 


184/329







 
 
period stated above shall be conclusive 
evidence that the warranty is fulfilled to 
the full satisfaction of Buyer. Seller 
makes no warranty as to experimental or 
developmental goods or goods not 
manufactured by Seller, provided that as 
to goods not manufactured by Seller, 
Seller, to the extent permitted by Seller’s 
contact with its supplier, shall assign to 
Buyer any rights Seller may have under 
any warranty of the supplier thereof. 
 
Seller’s warranties as hereinabove set 
forth shall not be enlarged, diminished or 
affected by, and no obligation or liability 
shall arise or grow out of Seller’s 
rendering of technical advice or service in 
connection with Buyer’s order of the 
goods furnished hereunder. 
 
11. Product Application Indemnity 
Buyer agrees to indemnify and hold 
harmless Seller for all claims, whether 
arising in tort or contract, against Buyer 
and/or Seller, including Attorney’s fees, 
expenses and costs, arising out of the 
application of Seller’s products to Buyer’s 
designs and/or products, or Seller’s 
assistance in the application of Seller’s 
products. 
 
12. Exclusive Remedies 
If the goods furnished by Seller fail to 
conform to Seller’s exclusive limited 
warranty, Seller’s sole and exclusive 
liability shall be (at Seller’s option) to 
repair, replace or credit Buyer’s 
account for any such goods which are 
returned by Buyer during the applicable 
warranty period set forth above, provided 
that (i) Seller is promptly notified in 
writing upon discovery by Buyer that such 
goods failed to conform to this contract 
with a detailed explanation of any 
alleged deficiencies, (ii) such goods are 
returned to Seller, F.O.B. Seller’s plant, 
and (iii) Seller’s examination of such 
goods shall disclose to Seller’s satisfac-
tion that such alleged deficiencies actually 
exist and were not caused by accident, 
misuse, neglect, alteration, improper 
installation, unauthorized repair or 
improper testing. If such goods are non- 
conforming, Seller shall reimburse Buyer 
for the transportation charges paid by 
Buyer for such goods. If Seller elects to 
repair or replace such goods, Seller shall 
have a reasonable time to make such 
repairs or replace such goods. 
 
THIS IS THE SELLER’S ONLY LIABILITY 
AND BUYER’S EXCLUSIVE REMEDY FOR 
ANY CLAIM, WHETHER ARISING IN TORT 
OR CONTRACT, AND IN NO EVENT SHALL 
SELLER BE LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, COLLA-
TERAL, INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES.  
 
13. Acceptance of Product 
Acceptance shall be presumed 
conclusively to have occurred thirty (30) 


 
days following delivery of product to 
Buyer, unless Buyer has accepted the 
product prior to that date. 
 
14. Patents 
Seller shall defend any suit or proceeding 
brought against Buyer insofar as such suit 
or proceeding is based on a claim that 
any goods manufactured and supplied by 
Seller to Buyer constitute direct 
infringement of any duly issued United 
States patent and Seller shall pay all 
damages and costs finally awarded 
therein against Buyer, provided that the 
Seller is promptly informed and furnished 
a copy of each communication, notice or 
other action relating to the alleged 
infringement and is given authority, 
information and assistance (at Seller’s 
expense) necessary to defend or settle 
said suit or proceeding. Seller shall not be 
obligated to defend or be liable for costs 
and damages if the infringement arises 
out of compliance with Buyer’s specifi -
cation(s), or from a combination with, an 
addition to, or a modification of the goods 
after delivery by Seller, or from use of 
the goods, or any part thereof, in the 
practice of a process. Seller’s obligations 
hereunder shall not apply to any 
infringement occurring after Buyer has 
received notice of such suit or proceeding 
alleging the infringement unless Seller 
has given written permission for such 
continuing infringement. 
 
If any goods manufactured and supplied 
by Seller to Buyer shall be held to infringe 
any United States patent and Buyer shall 
be enjoined from using the same, Seller 
will exert its reasonable efforts, at its 
option and at its expense, (i) to procure 
for Buyer the right to use such goods free 
of any liability for patent infringement or 
(ii) to replace such goods with a non-
infringing substitute otherwise complying 
substantially with all requirements of this 
contract or (iii) refund the purchase price 
and the transportation costs of such 
goods. 
 
If the infringement by Buyer is alleged 
prior to completion of delivery of the 
goods under this contract, Seller may 
decline to make further shipments 
without being in breach of this contract, 
and provided Seller has not been 
enjoined from selling said goods to Buyer, 
Seller agrees to supply said goods to 
Buyer, at Buyer’s option, whereupon the 
patent indemnity obligation herein stated 
with respect to Seller shall reciprocally 
apply with respect to Buyer.   
 
If any suit or proceeding is brought 
against Seller based on a claim that the 
goods manufactured by Seller in 
compliance with Buyer’s specifications 
and supplied to Buyer directly infringe 
any duly issued United States patent, 
then the patent indemnity obligations  
 


 
 
herein stated with respect to Seller shall 
reciprocally apply with respect to Buyer. 
 
The sale by Seller of the items ordered 
hereunder does not grant or convey or 
confer upon Buyer or Buyer’s customers, 
or upon anyone claiming under Buyer, a 
license, express or implied, under any 
patent rights of Seller covering or relating 
to any combination, machine or process 
in which said item might be or is used. 
 
THE FOREGOING STATES THE SOLE AND 
EXCLUSIVE LIABILITY OF SELLER FOR 
PATENT INFRINGEMENT AND IS IN LIEU 
OF ALL WARRANTIES, EXPRESS, IMPLIED 
OR STATUTORY, IN REGARD THERETO, 
AND IN NO EVENT SHALL SELLER BE 
LIABLE FOR SPECIAL, COLLATERAL, 
INCIDENTAL OR CONSEQUENTIAL 
DAMAGES. 
 
15. Termination and Cancellation 
a. Buyer may terminate this contract in 


whole, or from time to time, in part, 
upon thirty (30) days advance written 
notice to Seller. In such event, Buyer 
shall be liable for termination charges 
which shall include: a price adjustment 
based on the quantity of goods actually 
delivered and all cost, direct and 
indirect, incurred and committed for 
this contract; together with a 
reasonable allowance for prorated 
expenses and anticipated profits. 


b. If, in Seller’s judgment, the Buyer’s 
financial condition does not justify the 
terms of payment specified, Seller may 
cancel this contract unless Buyer shall 
immediately pay for all goods which 
have been delivered and pay in 
advance for all goods prior to delivery. 


 
16. Non-Waiver of Default and 
Collection Rights 
In the event of any default by Buyer, 
Seller may invoke any remedy provided 
by law or by the terms herein stated, and 
may decline to make further shipments or 
ask for payment ten (10) days prior to 
shipment. If Seller elects to continue to 
make shipments, Seller’s actions shall not 
constitute a waiver of any default by 
Buyer or in any way affect Seller’s legal 
remedies for any such default. 
 
In the event Seller resorts to a third party 
or to litigation in order to collect amounts 
due Seller, Buyer agrees to pay costs of 
collection for amount owed to Seller, 
including, but not limited to, attorney’s 
fees, court costs, and interest in the 
amount of 1% per month (12% per 
annum), from the date the amount is 
due. 
 
17. Applicable Law and Forum 
The validity, performance and construc-
tion of this contract shall be governed by 


   
185/329







 
the laws of the state in which Seller 
resides, as shown on the face hereof and 
such state shall be the only jurisdiction in 
which any suit may be brought against 
Seller regarding any dispute arising out 
of this transaction. 
 
18. U.S. Government Contracts 
If the goods to be furnished under this 
contract are to be used in the perform-
ance of a U.S. Government contract or 
subcontract, and a U.S. Government 
contract number shall appear on Buyer’s 
purchase order, those clauses of the 
applicable U.S. Government procurement 
regulations which are required by Federal 
Statute to be included in U.S. Govern-
ment subcontracts are incorporated 
herein by reference. 
 
19. Assignment 
This contract is binding upon and inures 
to the benefit of the parties and the 
successors and assigns of the entire 
business and goodwill of Buyer, or of that 
part of the business used in the perform- 
ance of this contract, but shall not be 
otherwise assignable, without the prior 
consent of Seller. 
 
20. Affidavits and Certificates 
No certificates of compliance, conform-
ance, or chemical analysis shall be 
provided unless Buyer’s detailed 
requirements are stated on the face of 
the Buyer’s order. Seller reserves the 
right to charge an additional fee for any 
such certificate. 
 
21. Sizes, Tolerances, Inspection and 
Samples 
Quotations are preferably made on the 
basis of Buyer’s prints. When quotations 
are made on the basis of samples or 
otherwise, the dimensions on which the  
quotation is based will be stated. USE OF, 
OR REFERENCE TO SAMPLES, SHALL NOT 
ENLARGE, AFFECT OR ALTER THE 
LIMITED AND EXCLUSIVE WARRANTY 
(PARAGRAPH 10) OR REMEDY 
(PARAGRAPH 12). 
 
Where Buyer requires samples from 
Seller to verify completion of fitting-up, 
Buyer will pay for such fitting-up within 
thirty (30) days after receipt of the 
samples, unless Buyer within such period 
gives Seller a detailed written description 
of any allowable variance from specifica- 
tions, in which case Buyer will promptly 
pay upon correction of such variances. 
 
The dimensions for quoting and manufac-
turing are the mean specifications and 
are subject to the normal tolerances for  


 
variations. 
 
22. Tools and Dies 
Unless otherwise provided herein, even 
though fitting-up charges may be 
specified, all tools and dies, including, 
without limitation, fixtures, gauges and 
assembly equipment manufactured for 
this contract, will be Seller’s property, but 
will be retained by Seller for Buyer’s non-
exclusive use; provided, however, that 
Seller may dispose of such tools and dies 
if Buyer does not order from Seller goods 
for manufacture there from within any 
one (1) year period. 
 
If any tools and dies manufactured by 
Seller are to become Buyer’s property, it 
must be specifically so provided on the 
face hereof. Any such tools and dies, or 
any materials, tools, dies and other 
equipment furnished by Buyer to Seller, 
shall be at Buyer’s sole risk and 
expense, and Seller shall not be liable for 
loss, damage, maintenance, repair or 
renewal, regardless of cause. If Buyer 
desires to withdraw such tools and dies 
from Seller’s plant, and if Seller consents 
to permit Buyer to withdraw them, for 
any reason, Buyer will first compensate 
Seller for any cost incurred with respect 
to them, including, without limitation, 
design and development costs. 
 
23. Severability of Terms 
If any phrase, clause or provision shall be 
declared void, the validity of any other 
provisions shall not be affected thereby. 
 
24. Release of Information 
Neither party hereto shall, without the 
prior written consent of the other party 
(which will not be unreasonably with-
held), publicly announce or otherwise 
disclose the existence of the terms 
publicity regarding this Agreement. This 
provision shall survive the expiration, 
termination or cancellation of this 
Agreement. 
 
25. Modification 
THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
CONSTITUTE THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN THE PARTIES RELATING TO 
THE SALE OF THE GOODS DESCRIBED 
ON THE FACE HEREOF, AND NO 
ADDITION TO OR MODIFICATION OF ANY 
PROVISION HEREIN SHALL BE BINDING 
UPON SELLER UNLESS MADE IN WRITING 
AND SIGNED BY A DULY AUTHORIZED 
REPRESENTATIVE OF SELLER LOCATED 
AT SELLER’S APPROPRIATE ORDER 
ENTRY LOCATION 
 
  


 


186/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM:  COVID Resource Intervention Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Dorothy Coito, Assistant Superintendent of Educational Services 
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Last winter, there was an Intervention Board Ad HOC Committee to provide input on academic 
intervention planning. On April 21, 2021 the Board held a COVID Resource Study Session 
dedicated to discussing the stakeholder input process and providing input on overall COVID 
Resource Budget. And, on May 5, 2021, the Board approved the Expanded Learning 
Opportunities Grant plan for state SB86 funding.  On September 22, 2021, the Board approved 
the ESSER III plan that addressed “Strategies for Continuous and Safe In-Person Learning” and 
“The Impact of Lost Instructional Time”. These plans represent our overall Elementary and 
Secondary COVID Resource Budgets, which include CARES act funds and SB86 funds, as well as 
ESSER I, ESSER II and ESSER III funds.   
 
The following update encompasses an overview of intervention programs for the 2021-2022 
school year that are detailed in the above plans and provides details regarding current phases 
of implementation. It must be noted that some items in our COVID resource budget are not 
listed below because they are not interventions. These expenditures include hot spots for 
students, encumbered Compensatory Education funding for Special Education Students, extra 
yard duty staff and class size reduction. All of the COVID Resource expenditures, both 
interventions and other expenditures to support the return to in-person learning, are in the 
totals provided at the end of this document. 
 
Elementary Academic Interventions 
Math Response to Intervention (RtI) Coordinator: 
There is a full-time RtI Math Coordinator at each of our four comprehensive elementary sites.  
The Math RtI Coordinators coordinate small group services for students that have below grade 
level math iReady scores. The RtI Coordinator and paraeducators are working with small groups 
to reteach needed concepts. This instruction is in addition to regular Tier 1 math instruction. 
 
Additional Paraeducators to Support Small Group Interventions: 
Each site was given funding to hire more paraeducators to support small group instruction in 
mathematics.  Hiring for these positions has been difficult.  Four of the five elementary sites still 
have at least one open position.   The RtI coordinators train the paraeducators on how to 
deliver booster lessons in iReady math and Lexia to support student growth. 
 
 


187/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


 
Math and Literacy online programs: 


● Math iReady My Path was purchased to support students who are far below grade level.  
The program places students at their needed levels, regardless of their age, so that 
students can relearn and practice concepts that they are missing.  In addition, the 
program flags students who are struggling, and there are in-person lessons that a 
teacher or paraeducator can deliver to give students the boost they need to move on to 
other needed concepts.  


● All sites are using Lexia to support students in reading.  Similar to My Path in math, the 
program places students at their needed levels.  Students who are using the program 
regularly are already showing growth in their reading skills.  The program also supports 
students who are high readers by giving them above grade level content. 


● Zearn is an online program that works with Eureka Math, our math curriculum, and 
gives digital practice to the concepts that students work on during class.  Not an 
intervention, the program is used to reinforce Tier 1 teaching and allows students to 
practice needed math concepts. 


● DeLaveaga uses iStation to support their Spanish language learners in the Two-Way 
Immersion (TWI) program.  The program allows students to practice reading and 
language in Spanish.   


● Lexia English (formerly Rosetta Stone) is a pilot program for English language learners.  It 
works along with Lexia to support listening and speaking in English. 


● Edgenuity Elementary is available for any student who wishes to have independent 
study through Alternative Family Education (AFE).  


After School Academic Support: 
All sites have been allotted funding to support after school academic support.  Bay View and 
Gault both have the After School Academy (ASA) program where students are given support. 
Westlake and DeLaveaga have been unable to hire teachers to fill similar after school positions.  
We are considering options such as using an outside agency to provide tutoring and trying to 
hire high school students to support after school.  There are several logistical issues that need 
to be worked out to make either of those options work. 
 
Elementary Social-Emotional Interventions 
The elementary sites have always had strong social-emotional support for students.  They are 
continuing to use Positive Behavior Intervention Supports (PBIS) to provide a framework for 
positive behavior at the sites.  This year, sites have begun using Soul Shoppe, which is a social-
emotional curriculum designed to support student behavior.  The curriculum includes lessons 
and videos that are used with a whole class, and assemblies and activities for the entire school.   
 
 
 


188/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


 
Middle School Academic Interventions 
.4 Advancement Via Individual Determination (AVID) Teacher 
Both middle school sites have two trained AVID teachers who are teaching AVID classes. The 
teachers have been collaborating with each other and AVID continues to be an important 
program supporting students with study skills and tutoring to excel in academic coursework.  
 


Middle School Newcomer Supports: 
Both middle schools have Newcomer supports in place that are new this school year. 
Branciforte Middle School has an additional Newcomer ELD class to support students new to 
the country in learning English as a second language. Additionally, each middle school has a 
Newcomer support certificated position to provide Newcomer teachers support in intentional 
lesson planning and progress monitoring of Newcomer growth. 
 
Middle School Library After School Tutorial: 
Both middle schools have existing after school programs up and running which are funded with 
LCFF Supplemental and Measure U funds which include academic tutoring. There was a plan to 
use COVID resources to extend library hours in addition to the after-school programming.  To 
date, we have been unable to find interested candidates to fill these positions.  
 
High School Academic Interventions 
One Full Time Credit Recovery Teacher at each Comprehensive High School: 
Having a full-time credit recovery teacher at each high school has been essential to sites this 
year.  In addition to supporting students with credit recovery coursework, these teachers have 
provided additional outreach to students in danger of failing coursework. The credit recovery 
teacher also assists students who must quarantine with accessing their coursework. Currently, 
all credit recovery teachers have 60 or more students on their caseloads. 
 
Additional High School Math & English Intervention Sections:  
COVID resources provide additional Math Plus and ELA support classes at each comprehensive 
high school campus. Math Plus serves students who are below grade level in math and need 
specific and targeted support. ELA support sections are also integrated throughout the school 
day. 
 
Additional Bilingual Paraeducator at each Comprehensive High School: 
Both Harbor and Soquel High Schools have been able to fill their Bilingual Paraeducator 
positions while Santa Cruz High School is still working on finding interested candidates. In 
addition to supporting English learners at the sites, these paraeducators have been a 
tremendous resource in family outreach, communication and attendance follow up.  
 
Middle and High School Interventions 
Math & Literacy Online Intervention & Support Programs: 
iReady, Learning Ally, and Peardeck have continued to be used extensively across middle school 
sites.  These programs are a key component of Tier 1 instruction. The iReady intervention and 


189/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


assessment program is used at both middle schools in math and English Language Arts, and 
there is a clear correlation between student academic growth and time spent using the 
program. English and History classes also use NewsELA to enhance instruction with the leveled 
reading resource.  
 
High Schools continue to use the Measure of Academic Progress (MAP) assessment program to 
monitor student progress in both English Language Arts and Math. Middle School uses the 
iReady assessment system, which is similar to the Measure of Academic Progress assessments.  
 
Small Group In Person Tutoring at each Comprehensive Middle and High School: 
All comprehensive high schools have implemented small group tutoring with some tutoring 
occurring both before and after school. Tutoring in needed subjects is available to students with 
a specific focus on math and ELA.  
 
Peer Tutoring: 
Peer tutoring is up and running at each comprehensive middle and high school and is organized 
and overseen by a Peer Tutor Coordinator. While the Peer Tutor program looks a bit different 
from school to school due to each school’s unique schedule and already existing programs, Peer 
Tutoring is already proving to be an excellent resource for students. For example, at Branciforte 
Middle School, they have embedded Peer Tutoring into their daily intervention schedule, and 
they have approximately 50 students who are benefitting from peer tutors. Similarly, Soquel 
High has embedded Peer Tutoring into their already existing zero period Math Plus class. It 
must be noted that both tutees and tutors report that the program has been incredibly 
beneficial for them. 
 
Secondary Social-Emotional Interventions 
1 Full Time Social Emotional Counselor at each Secondary Campus: 
All secondary schools started the 21-22 school year with a full-time Social Emotional Counselor. 
Services provided by the counselor include individual counseling, small group counseling, 
support of restorative practices and connecting students with needed mental health 
community resources. It must be noted that the Social Emotional Counselors are part of a 
current strong social emotional support system at each site that includes Positive Behavioral 
Intervention and Supports (PBIS), Social Workers and Interns, Restorative Practices and 
Trauma-Informed Practices.  
 
Special Education Interventions 
Special Education Paraeducator Substitutes for Elementary and Secondary 
We have a shortage of one-on-one aide substitutes for students who require daily aide support 
in their IEPs. COVID resources have been dedicated to hiring two full-time paraeducator 
substitutes. These paraeducators fill in when our contracted one-on-one aides call in sick.  
 
 
 
 


190/329







 AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.1.1. 


Summer Programs 
Elementary, Middle and High School Summer School 
Summer programs are planned in 2022 for elementary, middle and high school students. 
Students will be targeted for intensive and strategic support in literacy and math at all levels. 
Social emotional supports will continue in summer 2022, and enrichment activities will also be 
available at all grade spans. For high school, credit recovery will continue.  
 
Next Steps for 21-22 
Elementary Next Steps: 


● Continue to recruit staff and high school tutors for after school programs 
● Provide professional development for Lexia and iReady 
● Continue to develop their after-school support programs at DeLaveaga and Westlake 
● Continue to monitor student progress and respond with interventions as needed 


 
Secondary Next Steps 


● Continue to recruit staff and high school tutors for after school programs 
● Investigate online tutoring programs to provide one-on-one support for students 
● Continue to monitor student progress and respond with interventions as needed 


 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
Total 2021-22 COVID Resource Budget including interventions and other expenditures to 
support the return to in-person instruction:  $5,484,296, CARES Act, SB86 ESSER I, ESSER II and 
ESSER III  (Restricted) 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #1:  All Santa Cruz City Schools students will be prepared to successfully access post-
secondary college and career opportunities. 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #3:  We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 
groups within the SCCS student community. 
 


191/329







COVID Resources 


Interventions Update


November 3, 2021


192/329







Elementary Interventions


Academic 


◦ Response to Intervention (RtI) Coordinators in math


◦ Additional paraeducators to support small group 
interventions


◦ Math and Literacy online programs


◦ After school academic support


Social Emotional


◦ Purchased Soul Shoppe, a social-emotional curriculum, and 
implementing


193/329







Elementary Highlights


Math RtI Coordinators 


and intervention


194/329







Secondary Interventions


Academic 


● Credit Recovery Teachers at each high school


● Small Group and Peer Tutoring


● Additional Math & ELA Intervention sections


● Math & Literacy Online Instructional Intervention Programs


● MS Additional Newcomer supports


● Bilingual Paraeducators


Social Emotional


1.0 Social Emotional Counselor
195/329







Secondary Highlights


Peer Tutoring


Credit Recovery


196/329







Elementary Celebrations
● Math RtI Coordinators - coaching, direct student support, 


curricular support  


● iReady actionable academic data


● Lexia and student growth in reading


● Soul Shoppe 


● Online academic programs 


● Summer School 


197/329







Secondary Celebrations


● iReady (middle school) actionable academic data


● Peer Tutoring 


● High School Credit Recovery Program 


● Social Emotional Counselor 


● Online academic programs 


● Summer School 


198/329







Challenges


● Staffing shortages and difficulty hiring new 
positions


● Sub shortages


● Time for planning


● Time for all needed interventions given the breath 
of student needs and student availability


● Lots of students need support - challenge to 
match interventions to all student needs 


199/329







Next steps
Elementary
● Continue recruiting staff


● Professional Development 
with Lexia and iReady 


● Recruit  High School Tutors 
for  after school programs


● Development of after school 
support programs at 
DeLaveaga and Westlake 


● Continue to monitor student 
progress and intervene as 
needed


Secondary


● Continue recruiting staff


● Investigate online tutoring 


programs for one-on-one 


supports


● Continue to monitor student 


progress and intervene as 


needed


200/329







Questions?


201/329







 


 


                                 AGENDA ITEM 8.5.2.1. 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:   Food Services Update 
 
MEETING DATE:   November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent of Business Services  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND:   
Staff will present a report on the 2020-2021 Food Service Program, including program 
achievements, participation, budget and 2021-2022 goals. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and social emotional well-being of all students. 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 
community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 


  


Prepared by Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director of Food & Nutrition Services 
 
 


202/329







Food Services 
Annual Report


November 3, 2021


Amy Hedrick-Farr, Director of Food Service


203/329







Achievements


◦ 381,500 meals served during COVID  
◦ 17,321 meals served during summer
◦ 13,501 meals prepared for Community Partners
◦ FREE MEALS for all
◦ Re-launched after school snack and supper programs
◦ 15 new employees (vacant & new positions)


204/329







21Le


Application Process 
Normally the meal application drives participation


Meal Applications –
• Available online 
• Available at school sites
• Mailed to households
• Community Coordinators
• Presented to families at PTA/PTO
• Principal Communication


Alternative Income Forms - for Local Control Funding Formula (LCFF)
• Available at school sites
• Mailed to households


Direct Certification – CALPADS and County of Santa Cruz


205/329







Free & Reduced
As of 10/6/21


ENROLLMENT FREE REDUCED PAID


CURRENT


FR%


20-21 


CBEDS 


FR%


19-20 


CBEDS 


FR%


AFE 112 14 1 97 13% 24% 18%


Bayview 370 131 18 221 40% 47% 50%


DeLaveaga Elementary 480 93 15 372 23% 30% 34%


Gault Elementary 312 148 29 135 57% 64% 68%


Monarch Elementary 122 18 4 100 18% 22% 32%


Westlake 513 86 4 423 18% 24% 21%


Branciforte Middle 432 110 27 295 32% 41% 48%


Mission Hill 576 127 27 422 27% 36% 34%


Harbor High 1075 246 54 775 28% 37% 49%


Santa Cruz High 1156 210 37 909 21% 31% 30%


Soquel High 1037 136 34 867 16% 31% 29%


Costanoa 64 22 4 38 41% 47% 57%


ARK 90 24 3 63 30% 38% 41%


District Wide 6339 1365 257 4717 26% 33% 37%


206/329







Participation History


Meals Sept 2018 Sept 2019 Sept 2020 Sept 2021


Breakfast 18,200 18,453 7,083 27,458


Lunch 24,957 24,959 7,083 35,614


Snack 2,224 1,074 --- 1,642


Supper 999 1,140 --- 2,553


Paid Meal & Ala 


carte Sales


$55,501.00 $60,818.50 --- $12,939.50


207/329







Reimbursement History


Sept 2018 Sept 2019 Sept 2020 Sept 2021


Total 
Reimbursement


$110,291.10 $112,223.53 $45,023.79 $250,200.52


Loss in Ala Carte monthly 
revenue by $47,000 


average


Gain of $135,000 average monthly 
increase in federal & state 


reimbursement


208/329







Budget


Multi year comparison


18-19 19-20 20-21


Revenue


federal $1,032,657.30 $964,531.16 $887,126.72


state $112,299.62 $69,643.07 $130,774.42


local $667,095.57 $622,155.10 $104,676.43


total revenue $1,812,052.49 $1,656,329.33 $1,122,577.57


Expense


classified salaries $733,304.46 $752,398.60 $729,356.72


benefits $600,572.40 $550,179.74 $550,932.31


books and supplies (food & paper supply) $747,165.43 $701,232.30 $416,001.58


services $36,769.09 $34,423.06 $27,301.69


capital outlay -- -- $16,596.91


total expenditures $2,117,811.36 $2,038,233.70 $1,740,189.21


excess/deficiency ($305,758.89) ($381,904.37) ($617,611.64)


transfers in


$312,862.56     


(LCFF Base) 


$406,902.15 


(LCFF Base)


$627,920.62 


(SB86 & ESSERII)


net change in fund balance $7,103.67 $24,997.00 $10,308.98


fund balance $32,628.16 $57,625.98 $67,934.96


209/329







Challenges


Supply Chain Issues & Food Cost
• Beef up 40% 
• Poultry up 37%
• Dairy up 26%
• Paper Goods up 60% plus


Staffing Shortages
• Four open positions
• Continued staff rollover
• Staff training
• Limited substitutes


Equipment 
• Point Of Sale computers
Lack of: 
• Serving line space
• Storage space
• Cooking capacity
• Parts & repair


Delivery Schedules 
• Lead time for orders 
• Limited supply
• Order cancelations


Dietary Requirements
• Staff training
• Product availability


210/329







Program Focus


◦ Budget development 
◦ California universal meals 22-23
◦ USDA Waivers
◦ Five-year CACFP (child and adult care food program) supper program 


audit
◦ Vendor relations & food availability 
◦ Parent & student program awareness


211/329







Thank you


& 


Questions


212/329







 


  


  


                        


  AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.2 
 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
AGENDA ITEM: Bond Projects Update 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent Business Services  
 
THROUGH:   Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Ralph le Roux of 19.six Architectures, formerly MADI Architectures, will present an update on 
Measures A and B bond projects at Bay View Elementary, Delaveaga Elementary, Branciforte 
Small Schools, Natural Bridges and Soquel High. 
 
This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 
development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 
 
Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 
Goal #6: SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 
 


 


213/329







Measure A & B
19six Architects Project Updates


NOVEMBER 2021


214/329







AGENDA
Bay View Elementary School


DeLaveaga Elementary School


Branciforte Small Schools


Soquel High School


Natural Bridges Campus


215/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B


CAMPUS PROJECTS
ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION


LIBRARY MODERNIZATION


CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION


PLAYGROUND UPDATE


216/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B


217/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION


218/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - LIBRARY MODERNIZATION


219/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL - CLASSROOM MODERNIZATION


220/329







BAY VIEW ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – PLAYGROUND UPGRADE


221/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B


CAMPUS PROJECTS
ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION


LIBRARY MODERNIZATION


LITTLE THEATER UPDATE


KINDERGARTEN PLAYGROUND


PORTABLE DEMOLITION
222/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – MEASURE B


223/329







CAMPUS MODERNIZATION – ADMINISTRATION MODERNIZATION


224/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – LIBRARY MODERNIZATION


225/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – LITTLE THEATER


226/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – KINDERGARTEN PLAYGROUND


227/329







DELAVEAGA ELEMENTARY SCHOOL – PORTABLE DEMOLITION


228/329







BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – MEASURE A & B


CAMPUS PROJECTS
NEW AFE CAMPUS


ELEVATOR UPDATE


229/329







BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – MEASURE A & B


230/329







BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – NEW AFE CAMPUS


231/329







BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – NEW AFE CAMPUS


232/329







BRANCIFORTE SMALL SCHOOLS – ELEVATOR UPDATE


233/329







NATURAL BRIDGES CAMPUS – MEASURE B


234/329







NATURAL BRIDGES CAMPUS – MEASURE B


235/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – MEASURE A


CAMPUS PROJECTS
WING 100 & 200 MODERNIZATION


RE-ROOFING


SECURITY FENCING


CULINARY ARTS CLASSROOM


FITNESS CENTER MODERNIZATION
236/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – MEASURE A BUDGETS


237/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – WING 100 & 200 MODERNIZATION


238/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – WING 100 & 200 MODERNIZATION


239/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – WING 100 & 200 MODERNIZATION


240/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – RE-ROOFING


241/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – SECURITY FENCING


242/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – CULINARY ARTS CLASSROOM


243/329







SOQUEL HIGH SCHOOL – FITNESS CENTER MODERNIZATION


244/329







Thank You
245/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.3. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


 


AGENDA ITEM:  Public Hearing: Climatec LLC Agreement  


 


MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 


 


FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 


THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 


 


BACKGROUND: 


The purpose of this public hearing is to receive public comment on the proposed Resolution to 


enter into an Energy Service Agreement with Climatec LLC for the implementation of 


infrastructure renewal and sustainability services, in accordance with Government Code 


Sections 4217.10 through 4217.18. 


 


The attached Public Notice advising of the time and place of the meeting and including a 


general explanation of the matter to be considered, was posted at District sites on October 6, 


2020. Resolution 14-21-22, authorizing District staff to enter into an agreement with Climatec 


LLC, is covered in Agenda Item 8.5.2.4. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


None 


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnerships with its diverse 


community. 


246/329







Comprehensive Energy Infrastructure Renewal & Sustainability Services Contract 


  


NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Education ("Board") of the Santa Cruz City Schools 


("District") has scheduled a public hearing to consider for approval, a resolution formally adopting 


findings required by Government Code section 4217.10 et seq., regarding anticipated energy cost 


savings and other benefits from entering into a proposed Energy Services Contract ("Contract") 


with Climatec LLC ("Climatec").  Pursuant to the proposed Contract, Climatec will provide services 


to the District including, but not limited to, design and installation of energy efficiency upgrades 


and renewable technologies at various school sites throughout the District.  These upgrades will 


result in energy cost savings for the District. The resolution and supporting documents will be on 


the regular Agenda for public comment and proposed action. 


  


The public hearing will be held at the Board's regularly scheduled meeting on November 3rd, 2021 


at 6:30 p.m., or as soon thereafter as practicable. The hearing will be open to the public, and all 


interested persons in attendance will have the opportunity to be heard. 


247/329







Contrato de servicios de sostenibilidad y renovación de infraestructura energética integra 


POR LA PRESENTE SE DA AVISO de que la Junta de Educación ("Junta") de las Escuelas de la 


Ciudad de Santa Cruz ("Distrito") ha programado una audiencia pública para considerar la 


aprobación de una resolución que adopta formalmente los hallazgos requeridos por la sección 


4217.10 y siguientes del Código de Gobierno, con respecto a los ahorros anticipados de costos 


de energía y otros beneficios al celebrar un Contrato propuesto de Servicios de Energía 


("Contrato") con Climatec LLC ("Climatec"). De conformidad con el Contrato propuesto, 


Climatec proporcionará servicios al Distrito que incluyen, entre otros, el diseño e instalación de 


mejoras de eficiencia energética y tecnologías renovables en varios sitios escolares en todo el 


Distrito. Estas actualizaciones resultarán en ahorros de costos de energía para el Distrito. La 


resolución y los documentos de respaldo estarán en la agenda regular para comentarios 


públicos y acciones propuestas. 


 


La audiencia pública se llevará a cabo en la reunión programada regularmente de la Junta el 3 


de noviembre de 2021 a las 6:30 p.m., o tan pronto como sea posible. La audiencia estará 


abierta al público y todas las personas interesadas que asistan tendrán la oportunidad de ser 


escuchadas. 


 


248/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.4. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 


AGENDA ITEM:  Resolution 14-21-22: Climatec Agreement 


 


MEETING DATE:   November 3, 2021 


 


FROM:    Jim Monreal, Assistant Superintendent, Business Services 


 


THROUGH:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


RECOMMENDATION: 


Adopt Resolution 14-21-22 to enter into an Energy Services Agreement with Climatec, LLC for 


Phase Four of the Infrastructure Renewal & Sustainability Program that includes 


modernizations to Bay View Elementary, DeLaveaga Elementary, Gault Elementary, and 


Branciforte Middle School. 


 


BACKGROUND: 


Santa Cruz City Schools first contracted with Climatec in 2016 to expand sustainability projects 


districtwide. In January of 2021, the Board approved a Memorandum of Understanding with 


Climatec LLC on 1/13/2021 to assess the possibility of additional energy saving projects for the 


district. 


 


The assessment has resulted in a scope of work that is designed to leverage Bond funds with 


either RDA funds or financing programs.  Project proposals developed by Climatec to further 


the District’s sustainability initiatives and greenhouse gas reductions were presented to the 


Board on 10/20/2021. 


 


The current proposals are for the addition of air conditioning and ventilation to spaces at Bay 


View Elementary and DeLaveaga Elementary; additional HVAC replacements at Bay View 


Elementary School, and solar Photovoltaic shade structure arrays at Bay View, DeLaveaga, Gault 


Elementary and Branciforte Middle School. The proposed work at Bay View Elementary will 


make the school the District’s first Net Zero Emissions site.  


 


The projected cost of proposed sustainability projects is $6,586,457 with projected energy 


savings of $8,593,767.  


 


The District is working with Financial Advisor, Mark Farrell of Dale Scott, Inc. to review financing 


options for the projects. Bond funds will cover a portion of the projects.  The District is also 


reviewing the options of a private loan or a public bid process in lieu of spending down all 


available Redevelopment Agency Funds.  If a financing option is chosen, the District will make 


loan payments using Redevelopment Agency Funds.  Based on updated market conditions, 


249/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.2.4. 


options to determine the final plan for financing the projects will be presented at the December 


15, 2021 Board meeting for board discussion and direction. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


Total Cost is $6,586,457     


Funding Available:  Elementary Bond Set Aside: $750,000 


Site Bond Funds (B40MS): $1,000,000 


2020-21 Bond Interest: $200,000 


Redevelopment Agency Funds: $4,636,457  


Or Potential Financing Option  


 


This work is in direct support of the following District goals and their corresponding metrics: 


 


Goal #2:  SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #5:  SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


Goal #6:  SCCS will maintain strong communication and partnership with its diverse community. 


 


Prepared by Trevor Miller, Director, Facility Services 


250/329







 


BOARD OF EDUCATION  


OF SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 


RESOLUTION NO. 14-21-22 


APPROVING ENTERING INTO AN ENERGY SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 


CLIMATEC, LLC 


WHEREAS, California Government Code Section 4217.12(a)(1), authorizes a school 


district to enter into an energy services contract (“Contract”) with respect to an energy conservation 


facility if its governing body determines, at a regularly scheduled public hearing, public notice of 


which is given at least two weeks in advance, that the anticipated cost to the district for the 


alternative energy project will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to the district of electrical 


energy that would have been consumed by the district in the absence of such energy project. 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) desires to increase energy efficiency, 


save utility and maintenance costs in the long-term and desires to implement and install energy 


cost savings measures for these purposes (collectively, the “District-Wide Project”). 


WHEREAS, the District requested proposals from qualified firms to design, install and 


implement energy efficiency measures District-wide, and, based on qualifications and overall 


proposed cost, among other factors, selected Climatec LLC, a corporation organized under the 


laws of California (“Contractor”), to perform and complete the District-Wide Project. 


WHEREAS, this proposed Energy Services Contract with Contractor is Phase IV of the 


District-Wide Project, where Contractor will design and install energy efficiency upgrades and 


renewable technologies at the District’s campuses (“Phase IV Project”), and after determining 


whether this project is in the best interests of the District, authorizing entering into the contract via 


adoption of the Resolution. 


WHEREAS, in accordance with Government Code section 4217.12, on October 6, 2021, 


the District published the notice of a public hearing at which hearing the Board of Education would 


consider this Phase IV Project and Resolution, and has held the public hearing on the Phase IV 


Project. 


WHEREAS, Contractor has provided the District with its analysis showing the benefits of 


constructing the Phase IV Project, including the utility cost savings estimates to the District over 


the useful life of the installed equipment, and the energy cost savings analysis (“Analysis”) is 


attached as EXHIBIT A and made part hereof by this reference. 


WHEREAS, based on the Analysis, the anticipated cost to the District for the energy or 


conservation services provided by the energy conservation facility under the Contract will be less 


than the anticipated marginal cost to the District of the electrical or other energy that would have 


been consumed by the District in the absence of the Phase IV Project. 


WHEREAS, the District desires to enter into the Contract with Contractor, through which 


Contractor would provide, design, install, and implement the Phase IV Project pursuant to the 


terms and conditions of the Contract terms as mutually agreed to by the Contractor and District. 


251/329







-2- 


NOW, THEREFORE, the District’s Board of Education does hereby determine, resolve, 


and order as follows: 


Section 1. That pursuant to California Government Code sections 4217.10, et seq., all of 


the recitals set forth above are true and correct. 


Section 2. That this Resolution is adopted following a public hearing at a regularly 


scheduled meeting of the Board for which a minimum of two weeks public notice has been duly 


given. 


Section 3. That pursuant to Government Code section 4217.12, and based on all available 


information, including, but not limited to the data provided in the Contractor’s Analysis at 


EXHIBIT A, the cost of the Phase IV Project contemplated by the Contract with Contractor will 


be offset and will be less than the anticipated marginal cost to District of electrical or other energy 


that would have been consumed by District if such project was not completed, and that it is in the 


best interests of the District to enter into the Contract with Contractor. 


Section 4. That the District Superintendent or designee is hereby authorized to do all things 


that are necessary or proper to carry out or give effect to this Resolution and the Contract, including 


but not limited to, negotiating any further changes to the Contract with such changes not to be 


inconsistent with the intent of this Resolution, and to take all steps and perform all actions 


necessary to finalize and enter into the Contract with the Contractor, and to take any actions 


deemed necessary to protect the best interests of the District. 


Section 5. That this Resolution shall take effect immediately. 


PASSED AND ADOPTED this 3rd day of November 2021, by the following vote of the 


Board: 


AYES: 


NOES: 


ABSENT: 


ABSTAIN: 


SIGNED:      ATTEST: 


 


______________________________  ______________________________ 


President, Board of Education   Clerk, Board of Education 


 


252/329







 
  


 
ALL INCLUDED CONTENTS PRODUCED BY CLIMATEC ARE AGREED TO BE PROPRIETARY AND CONFIDENTIAL 


AND NOT TO BE SHARED WITH ANY NON-DISTRICT PERSONNEL 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS 
EXHIBIT A 


 11/3/2021 


 


 


SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY 


 Integrate Added New HVAC Unit BAS Into District BAS at 2 Sites 


 (3) New High Efficiency HVAC Units with Economizers & MERV-13 Filters at M&O 
‒ Includes Marine Coating 


 Add HVAC Units with Economizers & MERV-13 Filters at 2 Sites 
‒ Includes Marine Coating & Electrical Upgrades 
‒ Electrical upgrades include new wiring in existing conduit/ new panels at three 


buildings at Bay View ES  
‒ Electrical upgrades include new breakers at two buildings at DeLaveaga ES 


 New Solar PV Shade/Carport Structures at 4 Sites 


 


 


FINANCIAL SUMMARY 
 


Total Infrastructure Improvements  .....................................................  $ 6,586,457  
 
Lifecycle Savings  ..............................................................................  $ 8,593,767 
 


 
 


253/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 1 of 7 
 
 


  
 


INSTALLATION AGREEMENT   
FOR 


    Santa Cruz City Schools 
 


 


TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


 


ATTACHMENTS 


 


                    


Attachment “A” – General Terms and Conditions 


 Attachment “B” – Scope of Work 


                   Attachment “C” – Mechanical Inventory                     


 Attachment “D” – Solar Installation 


                                                  


 


  


 
  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


254/329







Santa Cruz City Schools 
Terms and Conditions 


Page 2 of 7 


ENERGY PERFORMANCE CONTRACT 


This Contract entered into as of November 3, 2021 (“Effective Date”) is made by and between: 


Santa Cruz City Schools  
(“Purchaser”) with its principal place of business at  


133 Mission Street, Suite 100, Santa Cruz, CA  95060 
And 


Climatec LLC 
With its principal place of business at 
2150 Towne Centre Place, Suite 200 


Anaheim, CA  92805 


WHEREAS, Owner owns and operates certain public school facilities and desires to reduce the energy and operational costs 
through the identification, installation and implementation of certain infrastructure modernization and energy conservation 
measures; and  


WHEREAS, Government Code sections 4217.10, et seq., authorize the Owner, as a public agency, to enter into an energy 
services agreement (“Agreement”) wherein the Contractor provides conservation services to the Owner from an energy 
conservation facility on terms that its governing body determines are in the best interest of the Owner; and 


WHEREAS, pursuant to Government Code section 4217.11(d), “conservation services” include electrical, thermal, or other 
energy savings as well as operational savings resulting from conservation measures; and  


WHEREAS, through this Agreement, the Owner intends to contract with Contractor for the engineering, system design, 
fabrication and installation of the Scope of Work in Attachment B that will result in energy and operational savings to the 
Owner consistent with the terms of Government Code section 4217.10, et seq.; and 


WHEREAS, the Owner’s Governing Board, after holding a hearing at a regularly scheduled public hearing and after having 
provided two weeks advanced notice of such hearing, made all findings required by Government Code section 4217.12 for 
the Owner to enter into this Agreement including a determination that the anticipated cost to the Owner resulting from 
installation and implementation of the Scope of Work described in Attachment B will be less than the anticipated marginal 
cost to the Owner of thermal, electrical, or other energy that would have been consumed by the Owner in the absence of 
those measures; and 


WHEREAS, the Owner’s Governing Board has determined that entering into this Agreement is in the best interests of the 
District and that Government Code section 4217.10 et seq. allows the Owner to enter into this Agreement. 


NOW, THEREFORE, Purchaser and Climatec LLC agree as follows: 


1. INSTALLATION. Climatec LLC shall provide Purchaser with an Energy Efficiency Program, as identified in
Attachment(s) A, B, C, and D and incorporated herein by reference (hereinafter referred to as the “Work”) at
the total fixed price of Six Million Five Hundred Eighty Six Thousand Four Hundred Fifty Seven and 00/100
Dollars ($6,586,457.00) including required taxes and Performance and Payment Bonds (the “Contract Amount”).


Climatec LLC is responsible for the design, engineering, permits, fees, approvals, project management, installation,
startup, training, checkout, warranty, and insurance specifically associated with the Work to be performed consistent
with these Terms and Conditions and those contained in Attachment A.  Climatec LLC is not responsible for any


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


255/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 3 of 7 
 
 


equipment, systems, controls, comfort problems, balancing, duct cleaning, existing deficient conditions, etc. not 
specifically included in this Agreement. Climatec LLC will provide submittals and engineered drawings (if required), 
for Purchaser’s technical review and written approval, prior to initiating construction.  All construction and 
associated cleanup shall be performed and scheduled so as to minimize any disruption with any ongoing Purchaser 
activities. Climatec LLC requires all underground conduits between buildings to be clear of obstruction, of sufficient 
size to accommodate new wire and cable, and easily accessible. The Purchaser is responsible for Ethernet drops at 
each location for Energy Management System communication.  


 
2. SCOPE OF WORK. Once this contract is executed by the Purchaser and Climatec LLC, Climatec LLC may not 


revise the contract in any way except as provided in these Terms and Conditions and those in Attachment A.  Prior 
to the contract being signed by both parties, Climatec LLC reserves the right to revise any or all portions of the 
Agreement.  
  
This Agreement is based upon the use of straight time labor only unless stated otherwise in this Agreement.  
Purchaser agrees to provide Climatec LLC with required field utilities (electricity, toilets, drinking water, etc.) 
without charge. Climatec LLC agrees to keep the jobsite clean of debris arising out of its own operations. Purchaser 
shall not back charge Climatec LLC for any cost or expenses without Climatec LLC’s written consent. Unless 
specifically noted in the statement of the scope of the work or services undertaken by Climatec LLC under this 
Agreement, Climatec LLC’s obligations under this Agreement expressly exclude any work or service of any nature 
associated or connected with the identification, abatement, clean up, control, removal or disposal of environment 
Hazards or dangerous substances, to include but not to be limited to asbestos, PCBs, or mold discovered in or on 
the premises. Any language or provision of the Agreement elsewhere contained which may authorize or empower 
the Purchaser to change, modify or alter the scope of work or services to be performed by Climatec LLC shall not 
operate to compel Climatec LLC to perform any work relating to Hazards without Climatec LLC’s express written 
consent. 
 


3. SOLAR INSTALLATION.  The scope of work excludes correction of concealed conditions that could not have 
been ascertained by general visual inspection.  The scope excludes correction of any existing or previous violations 
of laws, codes or utility requirements and errors and omissions of the Purchaser or other contractors not 
communicated to Climatec LLC.  Purchaser will provide all discretionary permits (permits requiring the discretion 
of the issuer) required in time to execute the work within the agreed upon schedule.  Climatec LLC will provide all 
non-discretionary, ministerial (permits not requiring thought and discretion of the issuer) permits required for the 
provision of the solar installation.  Purchaser agrees to promptly execute and return provided Preliminary 
Interconnection Documentation (initial or preliminary paperwork or documentation required by the Utility for 
interconnection of the System to be executed by the System Owner), Preliminary Rebate Documentation 
(documentation comprising the initial or preliminary paperwork required by the administrator of the Rebate or the 
Rebate to be reserved) (if applicable), and Site Owner Consent Documentation (agreement from the site owner to 
install system on the real property identified in the proposal) (if applicable).  Scope will include commercially 
reasonable efforts to promptly obtain the PTO (Permission to Operate) from Purchaser’s utility.  The monitoring 
equipment provider will provide monitoring hosting services for the first five (5) years of operation.  Purchaser 
warrants that they hold title to the installation site and agree to the solar installation on that site.   
   Terms applicable to the solar scope are as follows: 


a. Interconnection Agreement – means an agreement between the Purchaser and a particular utility involved 
for interconnection of the solar output to the electrical grid. 


b. Interconnection Equipment – all equipment (including wiring and conduit and metering for net metering) 
on the Purchaser side of the main service meter to enable proper interconnection of the solar system to 
the grid.  


 
(3.1) Design – Climatec LLC shall prepare the Design Submittals (prepared by qualified individuals).  The Submittal 
shall be submitted to Purchaser for approval.  Purchaser shall provide approvals within five (5) business days from 
receipt.  If not received within five (5) days, the submittal may be deemed approval by Climatec LLC.   
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


256/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 4 of 7 
 
 


(3.2) Unforeseen Site Conditions – Within 10 days of discovery, Climatec LLC will notify Purchaser in writing of 
(a)subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing materially from those described in any contract or 
Purchaser documentation.  
 


4. TIME TO COMPLETE AND LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. Time is of the essence in this Agreement.  The 
date for final completion of the Project shall be mutually determined at the initial project meeting following 
execution of this Agreement. Failure to complete the Scope of Work by such date and in the manner provided for 
by this Agreement shall subject Climatec LLC to liquidated damages. The actual occurrence of damages and the 
actual amount of the damages which the Purchaser would suffer if the Scope of Work were not completed within 
the specified times set forth are dependent upon many circumstances and conditions which could prevail in various 
combinations and it is impracticable and extremely difficult to fix the actual damages. Damages that the Purchaser 
would suffer in the event of delay include, but are not limited to, loss of the use of the Project and each individual 
site, and the energy savings afforded by the Project and each individual site, disruption of activities, costs of 
administration, supervision and the loss suffered by the public. Accordingly, the parties agree that the following 
dollar figure shall be the amount of damages which the Purchaser shall directly incur upon failure of the Climatec 
LLC to complete the Scope of Work within the time specified: Five Hundred and 00/100 Dollars ($500.00) for 
each calendar day by which completion of the Project is delayed beyond the time specified above. 
 


5. INVOICING & PAYMENTS.  Climatec LLC may invoice the Purchaser for any equipment and/or materials 
installed at a job site as set forth in these Terms and Conditions and those in Attachment A.  Purchaser agrees to 
pay Climatec LLC amounts invoiced upon receipt of invoice.  Waivers of lien will be furnished upon request, as 
the work progresses; to the extent payments are received.  If Climatec LLC’s invoice is not paid within 30 days of 
its issuance, it is delinquent and Climatec LLC may add 1% per month interest onto delinquent amounts.  
 
Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the Climatec LLC shall assume the risk of all costs in excess of 
the Contract Amount in the performance of the Scope of Work and shall not be entitled to additional payments 
because of such excess costs. Should the Purchaser believe that it is entitled to additional compensation, whether 
money or time, it must request such compensation pursuant to the procedures in the General Terms and Conditions 
for change orders and claims.  


6. INDEPENDENT CONTRACT. It is agreed between Purchaser and Climatec LLC that Climatec LLC shall 
perform the Work as an independent contractor.  Climatec LLC may use subcontractors to perform work 
hereunder, provided Climatec LLC shall fully pay said subcontractors and in all instances remain fully responsible 
for (a) the proper completion of this Agreement and (b) supervising such subcontractor’s work and for the quality 
of the work they produce.   


 
7. MATERIALS. All materials shall be new, in compliance with all applicable laws and codes, and shall be covered 


by a manufacturer’s warranty, if appropriate.  If the materials or equipment included in this Agreement become 
temporarily or permanently unavailable, the time for performance of the work shall be extended to the extent 
thereof, and in case of permanent unavailability, Climatec LLC shall (a) be excused from furnishing said materials 
or equipment, and (b) be reimbursed for the difference between the cost of the materials or equipment permanently 
unavailable and the cost of a reasonable substitute therefore. 


 
8. COMPLETION. The work specified in Section 1 shall be considered completed upon approval by the Purchaser, 


provided that the Purchaser’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The nature of the work is that is consists 
of multiple projects and/or sites, as noted in Attachment B (Scope of Work).  Once work on a project or a site is 
deemed by Climatec LLC to be substantially complete (that is available for beneficial use by the Purchaser with the 
Scope of Work for that site or project functioning as required) except for minor items (a punch list), Climatec LLC 
will provide a Notice of Substantial Completion for that site or project to the Purchaser.  Final Completion, as 
previously noted, will occur once the entire Scope of Work is complete for all sites and projects.  


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


257/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 5 of 7 
 
 


9. WARRANTY. Climatec LLC warrants that the equipment and systems provided under this contract shall be free 
from defects in material and workmanship arising from normal usage for a period of one year from the date of 
beneficial use or eighteen months from delivery of said equipment or systems. Within the warranty period, if 
Purchaser provides written notice to Climatec LLC of any such defects within thirty (30) days after the appearance 
or discovery of such defect, Climatec LLC shall, at its option, repair or replace the defective equipment and return 
said equipment to Purchaser.  All transportation charges incurred in connection with the warranty for equipment 
shall be borne by Purchaser, unless otherwise provided for in manufacturer warranties.  These warranties do not 
extend to any equipment which has been repaired by others, abused, altered or misused, or which has not been 
properly and reasonably maintained.  All transferrable manufacturer warranties associated with the equipment will 
be transferred to the Purchaser.  These warranties are in lieu of all other warranties, expressed or implied, including 
but not limited to those of merchantability and fitness for a specific purpose.   


 
10. LIABILITY. Climatec LLC shall not be liable for any special, indirect, or consequential damages arising in any 


manner from the equipment, material, or systems furnished or the work performed pursuant to this Agreement. 
 


11. TAXES. The price of this Agreement includes duties, sale, use, excise or other similar taxes required by federal, 
state or local laws in effect at the time of Agreement execution.   


 
12. DELAYS. Climatec LLC shall not be liable for any delay in the performance of the work resulting from or 


attributed to acts of circumstance beyond Climatec LLC’s control, including but not limited to acts of God, riots, 
labor disputes, conditions of the premises, acts or omissions of the Purchaser, or other Contractors or delays caused 
by suppliers or subcontractors of Climatec LLC, etc.  If Purchaser delays project for greater than 60 days, Climatec 
LLC can recover any cost inflation on un-billed materials that were either stored or yet to be purchased. 


 
 


13. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS. Climatec LLC shall comply with all applicable federal, state, and local laws and 
regulations.  All licenses and permits required for the prosecution of the work shall be obtained and paid for by 
Climatec LLC.  
 


14. CLIMATEC LLC'S LICENSE AND DIR REGISTRATION.  In order to perform the work required by this 
Agreement, Climatec LLC shall possess a valid, active license in the classification(s) required issued by the State of 
California, which shall remain valid and active throughout the Project.  In addition, Climatec LLC must be registered 
with DIR as a public works contractor.  
 


15. WAGE RATES.  Pursuant to the provisions of Article 2, commencing with Section 1770 of the Labor Code, 
PURCHASER has ascertained the general prevailing rate of per diem wages in the locality in which this public work 
is to be performed for each craft, classification, or type of worker needed to execute this Agreement.  The general 
rates of per diem wages are available at PURCHASER’s office.  In the event that the listed or posted rates are in 
error, CLIMATEC LLC is responsible to pay those rates determined by the Director of Industrial Relations to be 
applicable, and PURCHASER shall not be responsible for any damages arising from the error. 
 


16. PAYROLL RECORDS.  It is the responsibility of CLIMATEC LLC to comply with the provisions of Labor 
Code Section 1776 dealing with the maintenance and inspection of employee payroll records. 


17. PREVAILING WAGE.  The project is subject to prevailing wage monitoring and enforcement by the Department 
of Industrial Relations (DIR).  Climatec LLC and all subcontractors will be subject to the requirements of 
Subchapter 4.5 of Chapter 8 of Title 8 of the California Code of Regulations.  Climatec LLC and all subcontractors 
will be required to furnish electronic certified payroll records to the DIR on a frequency not less than monthly using 
the DIR’s eCPR system at http://www.dir.ca.gov/Public-Works/eCPR_System-iForm.html.  Climatec LLC shall 
comply with all requirements of the Labor Code and attendant regulations pertaining to prevailing wage monitoring 
and compliance as required by the DIR, including, but not limited to, posting job site notices prescribed by Title 8 
CCR § 16451(d).  Climatec LLC shall permit PURCHASER, the DIR or their designee to interview Climatec LLC’s 
employees concerning compliance with prevailing wage, apprenticeship, and related matters, whether or not during 
work hours, and shall require each subcontractor to provide PURCHASER, the DIR or their designee with such 
access to its employees.   


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


258/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 6 of 7 
 
 


 
18. APPRENTICES.  If applicable, CLIMATEC LLC shall comply with the requirements of Labor Code Section 


1777.5 dealing with the employment of apprentices. 


19. DISPUTES. Written notice of any Dispute must be provided to the other party, describing specific details of the 
dispute relating to changes in Work or claim for additional compensation, within seven (7) days of the occurrence 
of the condition. This notice must be provided via certified mail.  For a reasonable period commencing on the day 
written notice of Dispute was provided, but not to exceed thirty (30) days, the parties shall in good faith attempt to 
resolve the Dispute. If the parties are unable to resolve the Dispute during this period, the parties shall proceed to 
binding arbitration. The arbitrator shall be neutral and mutually acceptable. The arbitrator shall determine all rights 
and obligations under this Agreement and the award of the arbitrator shall be final, binding, and enforceable. Any 
award issued pursuant to this provision may be enforced in a court of competent jurisdiction, and each party hereby 
consents to that jurisdiction. All venues for arbitration shall be in the locality in which the project is located. 


20. CHANGE ORDER (Mid-Performance Amendments). Climatec LLC and the Purchaser recognize that:  
a. Purchaser may desire a mid-job change in the specifications or scope that would add time and cost to the 


specified work or inconvenience Climatec LLC. 
b. Other provisions of the Agreement may be difficult to carry out because of unforeseen events, such as 


material shortage or labor strikes. If these or other events beyond the control of the parties reasonably 
require adjustments to this Agreement, the parties shall make a good faith attempt to agree on all necessary 
particulars.  Such agreements shall be put in writing, signed by the parties and added to this Agreement.  
Failure to reach agreement shall be deemed a dispute to be resolved as agreed in section 14 of this 
Agreement.   


 
21. INSURANCE.  Climatec LLC will maintain comprehensive liability and other insurance in amounts not less than 


those set forth below.  Such insurance shall protect Climatec LLC and the Purchaser against any claims, losses, 
liabilities and expenses arising from the Work, whether performed by Climatec LLC or any subcontractor of 
Climatec LLC.  The coverage shall include: 


a. Workmen’s Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance - $1,000,000 each accident; $1,000,000 each 
employee/disease; and $1,000,000 policy limit. 


b. Comprehensive or Commercial General Liability - Bodily injury liability of $1,000,000 per occurrence and 
general aggregate liability of $2,000,000 per occurrence. 


c. Errors and Omissions Insurance - A minimum of $1,000,000 will be available for errors and omissions. 
d. Comprehensive Automobile Insurance – Combined single limit of $1,000,000 per occurrence.  


If the Purchaser requires that Climatec LLC maintain any special insurance coverage, policy, amendment, or rider, 
the Purchaser shall pay the additional cost. 


22. INDEMNITY. The Parties hereto agree to defend, indemnify, and hold harmless each other from any and all 
liabilities, claims, expenses, losses or damages, including attorney’s fees which may arise in connection with the 
execution of the work herein specified and which are caused, in whole or in part by the negligent act or omission 
of the indemnifying Party. 


 
23. OCCUPATIONAL SAFETY AND HEALTH. The Parties hereto agree to notify each other immediately upon 


becoming aware of any alleged violation of, the Occupational Safety and Health Act (OSHA) relating in any way to 
the project or project site. 


 
24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, upon acceptance, shall constitute the entire agreement between the 


parties and supersedes any prior representations or understandings. 
 


25. CHANGES. No change or modification of any of the terms and conditions stated herein shall be binding upon 
Climatec LLC unless accepted by Climatec LLC in writing.   


 
26. SEVERABILITY. If one or more of the provisions of this Agreement are held to be unenforceable under laws, 


such provision(s) shall be excluded from these terms and conditions and the remaining terms and conditions shall 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


259/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Terms and Conditions  


Page 7 of 7 
 
 


be interpreted as if such provision were so excluded and shall be enforced in accordance to their terms and 
conditions.  


 
27. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in multiple counterparts, each of which shall be deemed 


an original and all of which together shall constitute one and the same instrument.  A signature on a copy of this 
Agreement received by either party by facsimile or portable document format (PDF) is binding upon the other 
party as an original.  The parties shall treat a photocopy of such facsimile as a duplicate original. 
 


28. ASSIGNMENT. Climatec LLC retains the right to assign its rights and obligations of this Agreement with written 
consent of Purchaser.    


 
29. ACKNOWLEDGMENT. Both Climatec LLC and the Purchaser acknowledge having read this Agreement and 


all contract documents incorporated herein and have executed this Agreement on the date written above.   
 
APPROVAL. Each party represents that the person that has executed this Agreement on its’ behalf is authorized to do so.  
 


 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused their duly authorized officers to execute this Agreement effective as of 
the date first above written. 


 
Santa Cruz City Schools     Climatec LLC 
 
              
Signature      Signature 
 
              
Print Name      Print Name 
 
              
Title       Title 
 
              
Date       Date 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


Steve Siverson


10/27/2021


Vice President


260/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 1 of 29 
 
 


 


Attachment “A” 


General Terms and Conditions 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


261/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 2 of 29 
 
 


 
 
 


ATTACHMENT A 


GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS 


ARTICLE 1 


GENERAL CONDITIONS 


 1.1 BASIC DEFINITIONS 


1.1.1 The Contract Documents. The Contract Documents consist of the Energy Services Agreement 
between Santa Cruz City Schools (“Owner” or “Purchaser”) and Climatec LLC (“Contractor”) (the 
“Agreement”), Conditions of the Contract (General, Supplementary and other Conditions), Drawings, 
Specifications, addenda thereto (whether or not attached due to their size), Payment Bond, Performance 
Bond, required insurance certificates, additional insured endorsement and declarations page, list of accepted 
Subcontractors, Non-collusion Declaration, and the Fingerprinting Notice and Acknowledgment and 
Independent Contractor Student Contact Form, other documents referred to in the Agreement, and written 
modifications issued after execution of the Agreement. 


1.1.2 The Contract. The Contract Documents form the Contract. The Contract represents the entire 
and integrated agreement between the parties hereto and supersedes prior negotiations, representations, 
or agreements, either written or oral. The Contract Documents shall not be construed to create any kind 
of contractual relationship other than between the Owner and Contractor. 


1.1.3 The Work. The Work shall include all engineering, design, labor, materials, services, manuals, 
training, as-builts, and equipment necessary for the Contractor to fulfill all of its obligations pursuant to 
the Contract Documents. 


1.1.4 The Project. The Project is the total construction of the Work performed in accordance with the 
Contract Documents in whole or in part and which may include construction by the Owner or by 
separate contractors. 


1.1.5 The Drawings. The Drawings are graphic and pictorial portions of the Contract Documents 
prepared for the Project and approved changes thereto, wherever located and whenever issued, showing 
the design, location, and scope of the Work, generally including plans, elevations, sections, details, 
schedules, and diagrams as drawn by Contractor. 


1.1.6 The Specifications. The Specifications are that portion of the Contract Documents consisting of 
the written requirements for material, equipment, construction systems, instructions, quality assurance 
standards, workmanship, and performance of related services. 


1.1.7 The Project Manual. The Project Manual is the volume usually assembled for the Work which 
may include, without limitation, the bidding requirements, sample forms, Agreement, Conditions of the 
Contract, and Specifications. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


262/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 3 of 29 
 
 


1.1.8 Punch Lists. Punch List means a list of minor items on the Project that remains for Contractor 
to complete or correct. 


 1.2 EXECUTION, CORRELATION, AND INTENT. The Contract Documents are 
complementary and are intended to include all items required for the proper execution and completion of 
the Work. Any item of work mentioned in the Specifications and not shown on the Drawings, or shown on 
the Drawings and not mentioned in the Specifications, shall be provided by Contractor as if shown or 
mentioned in both. In the event there is a discrepancy between the various Contract Documents, the 
Agreement shall control unless there is not an applicable provision in the Agreement, in which case the 
Conditions (General, Supplementary, or other Conditions) shall control. Each and every provision of law 
required by law to be inserted in this Contract shall be deemed to be inserted herein, and the Contract shall 
be read and enforced as though it were included herein, and if through mistake or otherwise any such 
provision is not inserted, or is not correctly inserted, then upon application of either party the Contract shall 
be amended in writing to make such insertion or correction. 


1.3 OWNERSHIP AND USE OF DRAWINGS, SPECIFICATIONS, AND OTHER 
DOCUMENTS. The Drawings, Specifications, and other documents prepared on behalf of the Owner 
are instruments of the services of the Contractor and its consultants and are the property of the Owner. 
The Contractor may retain one contract record set. 


ARTICLE 2  


OWNER 


 2.1 DEFINITION. The term “Owner” means the person or entity identified as such in the 
Agreement and is referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The term 
“Owner” means the Owner or the Owner’s authorized representative. 


 2.2 EXISTING UTILITY LINES; SITE SURVEY; CONTRACTOR RELIANCE. 
Notwithstanding Government Code section 4215, and to the fullest extent allowed by law, Contractor shall 
be responsible to remove, relocate, and protect utilities located on each Project Site at the time of 
commencement of construction under the Contract with respect to any such utility facilities that Owner has 
not identified, whether or not set forth in the Drawings and Specifications. Contractor may be assessed 
liquidated damages in accordance the Contract Documents for delay in completion of the Project caused by 
Contractor’s failure to timely remove or relocate such utility facilities. This Subsection shall not be construed 
to preclude assessment against Contractor for any other delays in completion of the work on the Project. 
Contractor shall be solely responsible to timely notify all public and private utilities serving the affected 
Project Site before commencing work on the Project Site. Contractor shall notify and receive clearance from 
any cooperative agency, such as Underground Service Alert, in accordance with Government Code section 
4216, et seq. Contractor shall promptly provide a copy of all such notifications to Owner or its designated 
representative. 


When required by the scope of the Project, the Contractor shall furnish, at its expense, a legal description or 
a land survey of any or all Project Sites, giving, as applicable, grades and lines of streets, alleys, pavements, 
adjoining property, rights-of-way, restrictions, easements, encroachments, zoning, deed restrictions, 
boundaries, and contours of the site. Additionally, all surveys to determine locations of construction, grading, 
and site work shall be provided by the Contractor. Contractor shall provide copies of any and all legal 
descriptions and surveys conducted on the Project Sites to Owner. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


263/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 4 of 29 
 
 


Unless otherwise provided for in this Agreement, when required by the scope of the Project, Contractor will 
furnish, at its expense, the services of geotechnical engineers or consultants when reasonably required or as 
required by local or State codes. Such services with reports and appropriate professional recommendations 
shall include test boring, test pits, soil bearing values, percolation tests, air and water pollution tests, and 
ground corrosion and resistivity tests, including necessary operations for determining subsoil, air, and water 
conditions. 


Any test borings and soils reports for the Project that have previously been made have been made for the 
Owner to indicate the subsurface materials that might be encountered at particular locations on the Project. 
The Owner has made these documents available to the Contractor and the Contractor has studied the results 
of such test borings and information that it has as to the subsurface conditions and Site geology as set forth in 
the test borings and soils reports. The Owner does not assume any responsibility whatsoever with respect to 
the sufficiency or accuracy of the borings made, or of the logs of the test borings, or of other investigations, 
or of the soils reports furnished pursuant hereto, or of the interpretations to be made beyond the location or 
depth of the borings. There is no warranty or guarantee, either express or implied that the conditions indicated 
by such investigations, borings, logs, soil reports or other information are representative of those existing 
throughout the site of the Project, or any part thereof, or that unforeseen developments may not occur. At 
the Owner’s request, the Contractor shall make available to the Owner the results of any Site investigation, 
test borings, analyses, studies or other tests conducted by or in the possession of the Contractor of any of its 
agents. Nothing herein contained shall be deemed a waiver by the Contractor to pursue any available legal 
right or remedy it may have at any time against any third party who may have prepared any report and/or test 
relied upon by the Contractor. 


Unless specifically stated in writing by Owners, the Contractor may not rely upon the accuracy of any 
utility services or site survey information that the District may provide. 


2.3 OWNER’S RIGHT TO STOP THE WORK. If the Contractor fails to correct Work, which 
is not in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents as required by Section 11.2, or 
persistently fails to carry out Work in accordance with the Contract Documents, the Owner, by written 
order signed personally or by an agent specifically so empowered by the Owner in writing, may order 
the Contractor to stop the Work or any portion thereof, until the cause for such order has been 
eliminated. 


2.4 OWNER’S RIGHT TO CARRY OUT THE WORK. If the Contractor defaults or neglects to 
carry out the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents and fails (within a seven-day period after 
receipt of written notice or the time period expressly stated in the written notice from the Owner) to 
commence and continue correction of such default or neglect with diligence and promptness, the Owner 
may correct such deficiencies by whatever reasonable method the Owner may deem expedient without 
prejudice to other remedies the Owner may have, and may withhold for the cost of such correction. 


ARTICLE 3 


THE CONTRACTOR 


3.1 DEFINITION. The Contractor is the person or entity identified as such in the Agreement and is 
referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number. The term “Contractor” means the 
Contractor or the Contractor’s authorized representatives. To the extent that any portion of the Work is 
provided with the Contractor’s own forces, any reference to Subcontractors shall be equally applicable to the 
Contractor. If any of the Work is performed by contractors retained directly by the Owner, Contractor shall 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


264/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 5 of 29 
 
 


be responsible for the coordination and sequencing of the Work of those other contractors so as to avoid 
any impact on the Final Project Schedule. 


3.2 SUPERVISION AND CONSTRUCTION PROCEDURES. 


3.2.1 Contractor. The Contractor shall supervise and direct the Work using the Contractor’s best skill 
and attention. The Contractor shall be solely responsible for and have control over construction means, 
methods, techniques, sequences, procedures, and coordinating all portions of the Work under the 
Contract, unless Contract Documents give other specific instructions concerning these matters. 


3.2.2 Contractor Responsibility. The Contractor shall be responsible to the Owner for acts and omissions 
of the Contractor’s employees, Subcontractors, material and equipment suppliers, and their agents, 
employees, invitees, and other persons performing portions of the Work under direct or indirect contract 
with the Contractor or any of its Subcontractors. 


3.2.3 Obligations not Changed. The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to perform the 
Work in accordance with the Contract Documents by activities or duties of the Inspector of Record, or 
by tests, inspections, or approvals required or performed by persons other than the Contractor. 


3.2.4 Contractor Responsibility for Readiness for Work. The Contractor shall be responsible for 
inspection of Work already performed under the Contract Documents to determine that such portions 
are in proper condition to receive subsequent work. 


 3.3 SUPERINTENDENT. The Contractor shall provide a competent superintendent and 
assistants as necessary, all of whom shall be reasonably proficient in speaking, reading and writing English, 
and, who shall be in attendance at the Project site during performance of the Work. The superintendent shall 
represent the Contractor, and communications given to the superintendent shall be as binding as if given to 
the Contractor. The Contractor and each Subcontractor shall: furnish a competent and adequate staff as 
necessary for the proper administration, coordination, supervision, and superintendence of its portion of the 
Work; organize the procurement of all materials and equipment so that the materials and equipment will be 
available at the time they are needed for the Work; and keep an adequate force of skilled workers on the job 
to complete the Work in accordance with all requirements of the Contract Documents. Owner shall have the 
right, but not the obligation, to require the removal from the Project of any superintendent, staff member, 
agent, or employee of any Contractor, Subcontractor, material or equipment supplier, etc., for cause. 


 3.4 LABOR AND MATERIALS. Unless otherwise provided in the Contract Documents, the 
Contractor shall provide and pay for labor, material, equipment, tools, construction equipment and 
machinery, water, heat, utilities, transportation, and other facilities and services necessary for proper execution 
and completion of the Work whether temporary or permanent and whether or not incorporated or to be 
incorporated in the Work. The Contractor shall be responsible for cutting, fitting, or patching required to 
complete the Work or to make its parts fit together properly. 


 3.5 WARRANTY. The Contractor warrants to the Owner that material and equipment furnished under 
the Contract will be of good quality and new unless otherwise required or permitted by the Contract 
Documents, that the Work will be free from defects not inherent in the quality required or permitted, and that 
the Work will conform with the requirements of the Contract Documents, per Section 11.2. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


265/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 6 of 29 
 
 


 3.6 TAXES. Contractor will pay all applicable Federal, State, and local taxes on all materials, labor, or 
services furnished by it, and all taxes arising out of its operations under the Contract Documents. Owner 
is exempt from Federal Excise Tax, and a Certificate of Exemption shall be provided upon request. 


 3.7 PERMITS, FEES AND NOTICES. The Contractor shall secure and pay for all permits and 
governmental fees, licenses, and inspections necessary for proper execution and completion of the Work 
which are customarily secured after execution of the Contract and are legally required by any authority 
having jurisdiction over the Project. 


 3.8 ALLOWANCES. The Contractor shall include in the Contract Sum all allowances stated in the 
Contract Documents. 


 3.9 CONTRACTOR’S PROJECT SCHEDULES. Contractor shall provide the Preliminary 
Project Schedule and the Final Project Schedule, and updates and revisions thereto in electronic format as 
well as hard copy. The schedules provided by Contractor shall not exceed time limits current under the 
Contract Documents and shall comply with all of the scheduling as required in the Specifications. Failure of 
the Contractor to provide proper schedules as required by this Section may, at the sole discretion of Owner, 
constitute either grounds to withhold, in whole or in part, progress payments to the Contractor, or a breach 
of contract allowing Owner to terminate the Agreement between Owner and Contractor. 


3.9.1 Preliminary Project Schedule. Unless specifically stated otherwise in other Contract Documents, a 
preliminary Project schedule shall be prepared by Contractor and provided to the Owner(“Preliminary 
Project Schedule”). Owner shall not be bound by the Preliminary Project Schedule and shall not be 
responsible for any defects or mistakes in the Preliminary Project Schedule. Contractor is solely responsible 
for the accuracy, utility and reasonableness of the Preliminary Project Schedule and all subsequent updates 
or modifications thereto. 


3.9.2 Final Project Schedule. Unless specifically stated otherwise in other Contract Documents, Contractor 
shall prepare and submit a final Project schedule (“Final Project Schedule”), to Owner within 30 days of the 
Contract Effective Date. The term Final Project Schedule, as used in this Agreement and other Contract 
Documents, shall include any revisions thereto that the Parties agree upon in writing, which agreed-upon 
revisions shall be set forth in a revised Final Project Schedule. Any Final Project Schedule shall replace the 
Preliminary Project Schedule and all prior Final Project Schedules. 


3.9.3 Compliance with Project Timeline. No schedule shall exceed time limits current under the Contract 
Documents and shall comply with all of the scheduling as required by the Contract Documents and any 
scheduling requirements provided by Owner to Contractor at the beginning of the Project. The schedule 
shall be in the form of a tabulation, chart, or graph and shall be in sufficient detail to show the chronological 
relationship of all activities of the Project including, but not limited to, estimated starting and completion 
dates of various activities, (including early and late dates and reasonable float for each activity), procurement 
of materials, the critical path, and scheduling of equipment. Float suppression techniques such as 
preferential sequencing, special lead/lag logic restraints, extended activity durations, or imposed dates shall 
be apportioned according to the benefit of the Project. 


3.9.4 Updated Project Schedules. Contractor shall submit an updated schedule on a monthly basis that 
includes an accurate as-built schedule and the current as-planned schedule in conformance with the above 
standards. Contractor shall submit its daily logs for the month with the updated schedule. Float is not for 
the exclusive use or benefit of either Party but it is a jointly owned expiring Project resource available to 
both Parties as needed to meet schedule milestones. If any change in Contractor’s method of operations 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


266/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 7 of 29 
 
 


will change the Final Project Schedule, Contractor shall submit to Owner a revised Final Project Schedule 
within seven days of the change. 


3.9.5 Recovery Plan. If Contractor’s actual progress falls behind the scheduled progress, within seven days 
of a request by Owner, Contractor shall prepare and submit a recovery plan. The recovery plan must include 
a revised schedule that would recover the lost time and still complete the work on the Project by the Final 
Project Completion Date. The recovery plan shall also list any additional compensation that Contractor 
believes it should receive if Owner chooses to order Contractor to implement the recovery plan. If Owner 
directs Contractor to implement the recovery plan, then Contractor shall do so. 


3.9.6 Failure to Meet Final Project Schedule. In addition to any remedies that Owner may have, 
Contractor’s failure to provide proper project schedules as required by this Section may, at Owner’s sole 
discretion: 


(a) constitute grounds to withhold, in whole or in part, progress payments to Contractor, or (b) constitute a 
breach of the Contract entitling Owner to actual damages, in addition to any other remedies provided under 
Contract , including, in Owner's discretion, termination of the Contract pursuant to the terms hereof. 


3.10 DOCUMENTS AND SAMPLES AT THE SITE. The Contractor shall maintain for the Owner 
one applicable copy of Titles 19 and 24 and record copy of the Drawings, Specifications, Addenda, 
Change Orders, and other Modifications, in good order and marked currently to record changes and 
selections made during construction. In addition, the Contractor shall maintain approved Shop 
Drawings, Product Data, Samples, and similar required submittals. 


3.11 SHOP DRAWINGS, PRODUCT DATA, AND SAMPLES. 


3.11.1 Shop Drawings. The term “shop drawings” as used herein means drawings, diagrams, schedules, and 
other data, which are prepared by Contractor, Subcontractors, manufacturers, suppliers, or distributors 
illustrating some portion of the Work. The Contractor shall obtain and submit with the shop drawings all 
seismic and other calculations and all product data from equipment manufacturers. Shop drawings shall: 
establish the actual detail of all manufactured or fabricated items, indicate proper relation to adjoining work, 
amplify design details of mechanical and electrical systems and equipment in proper relation to physical 
spaces in the structure, and incorporate minor changes of design or construction to suit actual conditions. 


3.11.2 Samples. The term “samples” as used herein are physical examples furnished by Contractor to 
illustrate materials, equipment, or quality. 


3.11.3 Contractor’s Responsibility. Contractor shall obtain and shall submit to Owner all required shop 
drawings in accordance with the Final Project Schedule as required in the Specifications with such 
promptness as to cause no delay in its own Work or in that of any other contractor. Review by Owner shall 
not relieve the Contractor or any Subcontractor from its responsibility in preparing and submitting proper 
shop drawings, product data in accordance with the Contract Documents. Any submission, which in 
Owner’s opinion is incomplete, contains numerous errors, or has been checked only superficially by 
Contractor, will be returned unreviewed by the Owner for resubmission by the Contractor. Contractor shall 
not commence any portion of the Work requiring a shop drawing until the Owner has approved the 
submission. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


267/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 8 of 29 
 
 


3.11.4 Extent of Review. In reviewing shop drawings, the Owner will not verify dimensions and field 
conditions. The Owner will review and approve shop drawings, product data for aesthetics and for 
conformance with the design concept of the Work and the information given in the Contract Documents. 
The Owner’s review shall not relieve the Contractor from responsibility for any deviations from the 
requirements of the Contract Documents unless the Owner has given specific written approval. Contractor 
and Subcontractors shall be solely responsible for determining any quantities, whether or not shown on the 
shop drawings. 


3.11.5 Substitution. Unless the Specifications state that no substitution is permitted, whenever in the 
Contract Documents any specific brand or trade name is specified such specification shall be deemed to 
be followed by the words “or equal.” The Owner may consider an untimely substitution request if the 
product specified is no longer commercially available. 


3.12 CLEANING UP. The Contractor shall keep the Site and surrounding area free from accumulation of 
waste material or rubbish caused by operations under the Contract. The Site shall be maintained in a safe, 
neat, and orderly condition. If the Contractor fails to clean up as provided in the Contract Documents, the 
Owner may do so, without prior notice to the Contractor and the cost thereof shall be invoiced to the 
Contractor and withheld from progress payments and/or retention. Upon completion of the Project, 
Contractor and Subcontractor shall dismantle temporary structures, if any, and remove from the Site all 
construction and installation equipment, fences, scaffolding, surplus materials, rubbish, and supplies 
belonging to Contractor or Subcontractor. 


3.13 ACCESS TO WORK. The Contractor shall provide the Owner, the Owner’s designees, and the 
Inspector, access to the Work in preparation and progress wherever located. 


3.14 ROYALTIES AND PATENTS. The Contractor shall pay all royalties and license fees incurred 
by Contractor in performing the Work of this Agreement. The Contractor shall defend suits or claims 
of infringement of patent rights and shall hold the Owner harmless and indemnify them from loss on 
account thereof. 


 3.15 INDEMNIFICATION. The Contractor’s obligations to indemnify the District are set forth in 
section 10 of the Agreement. 


ARTICLE 4 


ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT 


 4.1 Reserved. 


 4.2 ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT. 


4.2.1 Owner and Representatives. The Owner may provide administration of the Contract as 
described in the Contract Documents and may designate one or several agents, representatives, or 
consultants to provide administration. 


4.2.2 Limitations of Construction Responsibility. The Contractor shall not be relieved of obligations to 
perform the Work in accordance with the Contract Documents either by activities or duties of the Owner or 
Owner’s agents, representatives and consultants, or by tests, inspections, or approvals required or performed 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


268/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 9 of 29 
 
 


by persons other than the Contractor, unless such activities unduly delay project execution in which case 
schedule adjustment shall be negotiated. 


4.2.3 Communications Facilitating Contract Administration. Except as otherwise provided in the 
Contract Documents or when direct communications are warranted by special circumstances, the Owner 
and the Contractor shall communicate through the Owner’s selected representative. 


4.2.4 Rejection of Work. In addition to the rights, duties, and obligations of the Inspector under this 
Article, the Owner’s selected representative may recommend to the Owner that the Owner reject Work 
which does not conform to the Contract Documents. 


 4.3 INSPECTOR OF RECORD. One or more project inspectors employed by the Owner and 
approved by the Division of the State Architect will be assigned to the Work in accordance with the 
requirements of Title 24 of the California Code of Regulations. The Inspector(s) duties will be as specifically 
defined in Title 24. All Work shall be under the observation of or with the knowledge of the Inspector. The 
Inspector shall have free access to any or all parts of the Work at any time. The Contractor shall furnish the 
Inspector such information as may be necessary to keep the Inspector fully informed regarding progress and 
manner of work and character of materials. Such observations shall not, in any way, relieve the Contractor from 
responsibility for full compliance with all terms and conditions of the Contract, or be construed to lessen to 
any degree the Contractor’s responsibility for providing efficient and capable superintendence. The Inspector 
is not authorized to make changes in the drawings or specifications. The Inspector shall have the authority to 
reject work that does not comply with the provisions of the Contract Documents. In addition, the 
Inspector may stop any Work which poses a probable risk of harm to persons or property. No work shall 
be performed by the Contractor solely upon the instructions or comments by the Inspector of Record. 
The Inspector of Record has no authority to interpret the Contract Documents or order extra work and 
any extra work performed without the written instruction of the Owner shall be at Contractor’s sole cost 
and expense and there will be no delay damages incurred by Owner for such work. 


4.4 RESPONSIBILITY FOR ADDITIONAL CHARGES INCURRED BY THE OWNER 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES. If at any time prior to the completion of the requirements under 
the Contract Documents, through no fault of its own, the Owner is required to provide or secure additional 
professional services for any reason by any act or omission of the Contractor, the Contractor shall be invoiced 
by the Owner for any actual costs incurred for any such additional services, which costs may, among other 
remedies, be withheld from the progress payments and/or retention. 


4.5 CLAIMS. 


4.5.1 General. A Claim is a demand or assertion by Contractor seeking, as a matter of right, adjustment, 
or interpretation of Contract terms, payment of money, extension of time, or other relief with respect to the 
terms of the Contract. Claims must be made by written notice. The responsibility to substantiate Claims shall 
rest with the Contractor. Contractor may only submit a Claim after having complied with the requirements 
in Article 6, as applicable, for the same matters. 


Claims shall be submitted to the Owner and the Owner’s designated representative. A timely decision by the 
Owner shall be provided. Claims must be made by written notice prior to the final progress payment. An 
additional Claim made after the initial Claim has been implemented by Change Order will not be considered. 
The failure of the Contractor to make a Claim within the specified time shall constitute an express waiver of 
any right to assert such Claim, whether affirmatively or defensively. Despite submission or rejection of a 
Claim, the Contractor shall proceed diligently with performance of the Contract, and the Owner shall 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


269/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 10 of 29 
 
 


continue to make any undisputed payments in accordance with the Contract. When any excavation or 
trenching extends greater than four feet below the surface, Public Contract Code section 7104 shall control. 


The Contractor shall make a certification at the time of submission of a Claim. Contractor understands and 
agrees that any Claim submitted without this certification does not meet the terms of the Contract Documents, 
that Owner, or Owner’s representatives, may reject the Claim on that basis and that unless Contractor properly 
and timely files the Claim with the certification, Contractor cannot further pursue the Claim in any forum. A 
condition precedent will not have been satisfied. 


4.5.2 Claims for Concealed or Unknown Conditions 


4.5.2.1 Trenches or Excavations Less Than Four Feet Below the Surface. If Contractor 
encounters conditions at the Site which are subsurface or otherwise concealed physical conditions, which 
differ materially from those indicated in the Contract Documents, or unknown physical conditions of an 
unusual nature, which differ materially from those ordinarily found to exist and generally recognized as 
inherent in construction activities of the character provided for in the Contract Documents, then notice by 
the Contractor shall be given to the Owner promptly before conditions are disturbed and in no event later 
than ten (10) days after first observance of the conditions. The Owner will promptly investigate such 
conditions, and if they differ materially and cause an increase or decrease in the Contractor’s cost of, time 
required for, or performance of any part of the Work, will recommend an equitable adjustment in the Contract 
Sum, Contract Time, or both. If the Owner determines that the conditions at the Site are not materially 
different from those indicated in the Contract Documents and that no change in the terms of the Contract is 
justified, the Owner shall so notify the Contractor in writing, stating the reasons. In the event a dispute arises 
between the Owner and the Contractor regarding whether the conditions materially differ, or cause a decrease 
or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the Work, the 
Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for by the Contract 
Documents, but shall proceed with all the work to be performed under the Contract Documents. The 
Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by contract or by law which pertain to the resolution 
of disputes and protests between the contracting parties. 


4.5.2.2 Trenches or Excavations Greater Than Four Feet Below the Surface. Pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 7104, when any excavation or trenching extends greater than four feet below the 
surface: 


4.5.2.2.1 The Contractor shall promptly, and before the following conditions are 
disturbed, notify the public entity, in writing, of any: 


(1) Material that the Contractor believes may be material that is hazardous 
waste, as defined in Section 25117 of the Health and Safety Code, which is required to 
be removed to a Class I, Class II, or Class III disposal site in accordance with the 
provisions of existing law. 


(2) Subsurface or latent physical conditions at the site differing from 
those indicated by information about the site made available to bidders prior to the 
deadline for submitting bids. 


(3) Unknown physical conditions at the site of any unusual nature, 
different materially from those ordinarily encountered and generally recognized as 
inherent in work of the character provided for in the Contract. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


270/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 11 of 29 
 
 


4.5.2.2.2 The public entity shall promptly investigate the conditions, and if it finds that 
the conditions do materially so differ, or do involve hazardous waste, and cause a 
decrease or increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or the time required for, performance of 
any part of the work shall issue a change order under the procedures described in the 
Contract. 


4.5.2.2.3 In the event that a dispute arises between the public entity and the Contractor 
whether the conditions materially differ, or involve hazardous waste, or cause a decrease or 
increase in the Contractor’s cost of, or time required for, performance of any part of the 
work, the Contractor shall not be excused from any scheduled completion date provided for 
by the Contract, but shall proceed with all work to be performed under the Contract. The 
Contractor shall retain any and all rights provided either by Contract or by law which pertain 
to the resolution of disputes and protests between the contracting parties. 


 4.6 CLAIMS OF $375,000 OR LESS. Notwithstanding any other provision herein, claims of 
$375,000 or less shall be handled pursuant to the procedures set forth in Public Contract Code sections 
20104.2, including claim, response, informal meet and confer conference, and Government Code claim. 
As a precedent to initiation of any litigation against the Owner, Contractor must observe and comply 
with the Government Code claim procedures in Government Code sections 901 et seq. after completion 
of the contractual claim procedures above, including but not limited to timely presentation of a 
Government Code claim. The claim procedures described herein do not supersede or replace the 
requirement of a Government Code claim, and the two claim procedures shall be sequential. 


 4.7 CLAIMS IN EXCESS OF $375,000. Claims over $375,000 shall be handled by Contractor and 
Owner pursuant to Section 4.6, above, except as follows: (a) Procedures in Public Contract Code section 
20104.2(b) shall not be applicable; (b) Owner shall respond in writing to all written Claims within 90 days of 
receipt of the Claim, or may request, in writing, within 45 days of receipt of the Claim, any additional 
documentation supporting the Claim or relating to defenses to the Claim the Owner may have against the 
Contractor; (c) Owner shall respond within 45 days after receipt of the further documentation, or within a 
period of time no greater than that taken by the Contractor in producing the additional information or 
documentation, whichever is greater; and (d) following any meet and confer conference pursuant to Public 
Contract Code section 20104.2(d), if the Claim or any portion of it remains in dispute and Contractor wishes 
to pursue it, Contractor must demand in writing within fifteen (15) days that the parties mediate, and such 
requirement for mediation shall not toll or supersede the requirement for submission of a Government Code 
claim, as specifically required in Section 4.6 above. If Contractor fails to timely notify the Owner that it wishes 
to mediate pursuant to this Section, then Contractor will have waived all rights to further pursue the Claim. 
The parties shall reasonably cooperate to schedule and attend a mediation as soon as reasonably possible. 


ARTICLE 5 


SUBCONTRACTORS 


5.1 DEFINITIONS. 


5.1.1 Subcontractor. A Subcontractor is a person or entity that has a contract with the Contractor to 
perform a portion of the Work at the Site. The term “Subcontractor” is referred to throughout the Contract 
Documents as if singular in number and means a Subcontractor or an authorized representative of the 
Subcontractor. The term “Subcontractor” does not include a separate contractor or subcontractors of a 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


271/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 12 of 29 
 
 


separate contractor. To the extent that the term Trade Contractor is utilized in the Contract Documents, it 
shall have the same meaning as the term “Subcontractor.” 


5.1.2 Sub-Subcontractor. A Sub-subcontractor is a person or entity that has a direct or indirect contract 
with a Subcontractor to perform a portion of the Work at the Site. The term “Sub-subcontractor” is 
referred to throughout the Contract Documents as if singular in number and means a Sub-subcontractor 
or an authorized representative of the Sub-subcontractor. 


5.2 AWARD OF SUBCONTRACTS AND OTHER CONTRACTS FOR PORTIONS OF 
THE WORK. Subcontractors shall be selected by Contractor. District shall have the right to disapprove 
the use of a particular subcontractor on reasonable grounds. 


 
5.3 SUBCONTRACTUAL RELATIONS. By appropriate agreement, written where legally required 
for validity, the Contractor shall require each Subcontractor, to the extent of the Work to be performed by the 
Subcontractor, to be bound to the Contractor by terms of the Contract Documents, and to assume toward the 
Contractor all obligations and responsibilities, which the Contractor, by the Contract Documents, assumes 
toward the Owner. 


5.4 CONTINGENT ASSIGNMENT OF SUBCONTRACTS. Each subcontract agreement for 
a portion of the Work is assigned by the Contractor to the Owner provided that: 


A. Assignment is effective only after termination of the Contract with the Contractor by the Owner 
for cause pursuant to Article 14 and only for those subcontract agreements which the Owner 
accepts by notifying the Subcontractor in writing; and 


B. Assignment is subject to the prior rights of the surety, if any, obligated under any bond           
relating to the Contract.  


 
ARTICLE 6 


CHANGES IN THE WORK 


6.1 CHANGES. 
6.1.1 No Changes Without Authorization. The Owner reserves the right to make such alterations, 
deviations, additions to, or deletions from the plans and specifications, as may be deemed by the Owner to be 
necessary or advisable for the proper completion or construction of the Work contemplated, and the right to 
require Contractor to perform such work. There shall be no change whatsoever in the drawings, specifications, 
or in the Work without an executed Change Order, Construction Change Directive, or order by the Owner for 
a minor change in the Work as herein provided. Owner shall not be liable for the cost of any extra work or any 
substitutions, changes, additions, omissions, or deviations from the Drawings and Specifications unless the 
same shall have been authorized by and the cost thereof approved in writing by Change Order or executed 
Construction Change Directive. No extension of time for performance of the Work shall be allowed hereunder 
unless claim for such extension is made at the time changes in the Work are ordered, and such time duly 
adjusted in writing in the Change Order. Changes requested by the Owner may require recalculation of savings 
produced by the Project. Changes that adversely affect savings or that will not result in satisfaction of 4217 
requirements for the overall project may have to be executed under separate contract. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


272/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 13 of 29 
 
 


6.1.2 Owner’s Authority. The Owner will have authority to order minor changes in the Work not 
involving any adjustment in the Contract Sum, an extension of the Contract Time, or a change which is 
inconsistent with the intent of the Contract Documents. Such changes shall be effected by written 
Change Order and shall be binding on the Owner and the Contractor. The Contractor shall carry out 
such written orders promptly. 


6.2 CHANGE ORDERS (“CO”). A CO is a written instrument prepared by the Owner and the 
Contractor stating their agreement upon all of the following: (A) A change in the Work; (B) the amount 
of the adjustment in the Contract Sum, if any; and (C) the extent of the adjustment in the Contract 
Time, if any. 


6.3 CONSTRUCTION CHANGE DIRECTIVES (“CCD”). A CCD is a written order prepared 
by the Owner, directing a change in the Work and stating a proposed basis for adjustment, if any, in the 
Contract Sum or Contract Time, or both. The Owner may by CCD, without invalidating the Contract, order 
changes in the Work within the general scope of the Contract consisting of additions, deletions, or other 
revisions, with the Contract Sum and Contract Time being adjusted accordingly. A CCD shall be used in the 
absence of agreement on the terms of a CO. CCD changes may have to undergo recalculation of savings and 
possible resubmission to the CEC. 


6.4 SUPPLIMENTAL INSTRUCTION (“SI”). A SI is a written instrument prepared by the 
Owner and submitted to the Contractor. The SI can order changes in the work that does not affect the 
Contract Sum and/or Time. A SI can be made in an RFI response by issuing a formal SI document or by 
written letter from the Owner. SI changes may have to undergo recalculation of savings and possible 
resubmission to the CEC. 


6.5 REQUEST FOR INFORMATION (“RFI”). An RFI is a written request prepared by the 
Contractor asking the Owner to provide additional information above and beyond that which is available in 
the Contract Documents and all reference standards, regarding the Contractor and fulfilling the Contract 
coordination requirements for which Contractor is obligated to perform. The RFI shall reference all the 
applicable Contract Documents including specification section, detail, page numbers, drawing numbers, and 
sheet numbers, etc. The Contractor shall make suggestions and/or interpretations of the issue raised by the 
RFI. An RFI cannot modify the Contract Cost, Contract Time, or the Contract Documents. Prior to issuing 
an RFI the Contractor, Subcontractor, material suppliers and the like shall thoroughly review the Contract 
Documents and refer to all reference standards for the information sought. The Owner and Contractor agree 
that an adequate time period for the Owner to respond to an RFI is generally fourteen (14) calendar days after 
the Owner’s receipt of an RFI, unless the Owner and Contractor agree otherwise in writing. However, in all 
cases, the Owner shall take such time, whether more or less than 14 days, as is necessary in the Owner and the 
Owner’s representative’s professional judgment to permit adequate review and evaluation of the RFI. The 
Contractor shall be invoiced by the Owner for any costs incurred for professional services, which shall be 
withheld from progress payments and/or retention, if an RFI requests an interpretation or decision of a matter 
where the information sought is equally available to the party making such request. The Contractor shall make 
efforts to coordinate the work in a timely fashion, so as to alleviate priority RFI’s. If the RFI is considered a 
priority, the Contractor shall state the word “Priority” on the document, and the Contractor shall provide 
weekly RFI Priority Schedules. The Contractor shall issue and maintain weekly RFI Priority Schedules. 


The RFI Priority Schedule shall include a listing of pending requests, including the most current request, and 
rank the RFI’s in order of priority. The Owner shall endeavor to respect the Contractor’s requested order of 
priorities and requested response dates. The Owner’s response to the RFI shall be considered a Supplemental 
Instruction (“SI”) in which the Contract Sum and/or Time is not altered. If the RFI response alters the Contract 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


273/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 14 of 29 
 
 


Sum and/or Time, a Construction Change Directive (CCD) may be issued for the changed condition(s). Should 
the Contractor determine the response to the RFI creates changes in the Contract Sum and/or Time, the 
Contractor shall submit a change order request (COR) to the Owner for review, along with a Time Extension 
Request (if required). 


 6.6 REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL REGARDING CHANGE (“RFP - Change”). An RFP – 
Change is a written request prepared by the Owner asking the Contractor to submit to the Owner an estimate 
of the effect of a proposed change on the Contract Sum and the Contract Time. An RFP – Change shall 
contain adequate information, including any necessary drawings and specifications, to enable Contractor to 
provide the cost breakdowns required by Section 6.8. The Contractor shall not be entitled to any Additional 
Compensation for preparing a response to an RFP - Change, whether ultimately accepted or not. 


 6.7 CHANGE ORDER REQUEST (“COR”). A COR is a written request prepared by the 
Contractor asking the Owner to incorporate a proposed change called for in an RFP – Change or a notice 
of claim into a CO. A COR shall include breakdowns to validate any change in Contract Sum due to proposed 
change or claim. A COR shall also include any additional time required to complete the Project. Any 
additional time requested shall not be the number of days to make the proposed change, but must be based 
upon the impact to the Final Project Schedule as defined in Section 3.9 and the Specifications. 


 6.8 COST OF CHANGE ORDERS. 


6.8.1 Scope. Within ten (10) days or such lesser period of time as may be required by Owner after a request 
is made for a change that impacts the Contract Sum or the Contract Time, the Contractor shall provide to 
the Owner in writing an estimate of the effect of the proposed CO upon the Contract Sum and the actual 
cost of construction, which shall include a complete itemized cost breakdown of all labor and material 
showing actual quantities, hours, unit prices, wage rates, required for the change, and the effect upon the 
Contract Time of such CO. Changes may be made by Owner by an appropriate written CO, or, at the 
Owner’s option, such changes shall be implemented immediately upon the Contractor’s receipt of an 
appropriate written CCD. 


6.8.2 Determination of Cost. The amount of the increase or decrease in the Contract Sum resulting from a 
CO, if any, shall be determined in one or more of the following ways as applicable to a specific situation: (A) 
Mutual acceptance of a lump sum properly itemized and supported by sufficient substantiating data to permit 
evaluation; (B) unit prices stated in the Contractor’s original bid, the Contract Documents, or subsequently 
agreed upon between the Owner and the Contractor; (C) cost to be determined in a manner agreed upon by 
the parties and a mutually acceptable fixed or percentage fee; or (D) by cost of material and labor and percentage 
of overhead and profit. (See O&P Schedule below).   It is expressly understood that the value of such extra 
work or changes, as determined by any of the aforementioned methods, expressly includes any and all of 
Contractor's costs and expenses, both direct and indirect, resulting from additional time required on the Project 
or resulting from delay to the Project. Any costs or expenses not included are deemed waived. For purposes of 
determining the cost, if any, of any change, addition, or omission to the Project, all trade discounts, rebates, 
refunds, and all returns from the sale of surplus materials and equipment shall accrue and be credited to 
Contractor, and Contractor shall make provisions so that such discounts, rebates, refunds, and returns may be 
secured, and the amount thereof shall be allowed as a reduction of Contractor's cost in determining the actual 
cost of construction for purposes of any change, addition, or omissions in the Project as provided herein. 


6.8.3 Accounting Records. With respect to portions of the Work performed by COs and CCDs on a 
time-and-materials, unit-cost, or similar basis, the Contractor shall keep and maintain cost-accounting 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


274/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 15 of 29 
 
 


records satisfactory to the Owner, which shall be available to the Owner on the same terms as any other 
books and records the Contractor is required to maintain under the Contract Documents. 


6.8.4 Notice Required. If the Contractor desires an increase in the Contract Sum, or any extension in the 
Contract Time for completion, it shall give the Owner written notice thereof within ten (10) days after the 
occurrence of the event giving rise to the claim, together with detailed estimates of the impact on the Contract 
Sum and/or the Contract Time. This notice shall be given by the Contractor before proceeding to execute 
the Work, except in an emergency endangering life or property, in which case the Contractor shall proceed 
in accordance with Section 9.4 hereof. No notice shall be considered unless made in accordance with this 
Subsection; however, the mere presentation of such claim shall not establish the validity of the cause giving 
rise to such claim, or of the extension of the Contract Time, and/or the increase in the Contract Sum. 
Contractor shall proceed to execute the Work even though the adjustment has not been agreed upon. Any 
change in the Contract Sum or extension of the Contract Time resulting from such claim shall be authorized 
by a CO. 


6.8.5 Format for Proposed Change Order. The Parties shall use the following format, as 
applicable, to communicate proposed additions and deductions to the Contract 


 
 
 
Subcontractor Work (list each if more than one)            ADDITIVE   DEDUCTIVE 


1 Subcontractor Labor Total 1 $   $  
2 Subcontractor Material Total 1 $ $ 
3 Subcontractor Equipment Total 1 $ $ 
4      SUBTOTAL #1 (Lines 1,2, &3) $ $ 
5 Subcontractor’s Overhead and Profit For 


Subtotal #1 (Line 4) $ $ 
6       SUBTOTAL #2 (Lines 4 & 5) 2 $ $ 


 
Contractor’s Work          ADDITIVE    DEDUCTIVE 


7 Contractor Labor Total 1 $ $ 
8 Contractor Material Total 1 $ $ 
9 Contractor Equipment Total 1 $ $ 
10      SUBTOTAL #3 (Lines 7,8, & 9) $ $ 
11 Contractor’s Overhead and Profit for Subtotal 


#3 (Line 10)2  $ $ 
12 Contractor’s Overhead and Profit for Subtotal 


#2 (Line 6) 2 $ $ 
13      SUBTOTAL #4 (Lines 10, 11, & 12) $ $ 
14           SUM of Subtotals #2 and #4 $ $ 
15 Contractor’s Bond 3 $ $ 
16 NET TOTAL FOR C.O.R. 4 $ $ 


 
1. Attach itemized list(s) indicating hours, rates, material quantity, material costs, unit costs, and taxes.  
2. Refer to the Overhead and Profit Schedule. 
3. Contractor’s bond and liability insurance premium, if in fact actual bonds and insurance are to be purchased.  Total costs shall not exceed 


2% of the Net Total (line 16).  Refer to the O&P Schedule.  
4. Includes all direct and indirect costs, including but not limited to, acceleration, cumulative effect of the change(s), expediting the work, etc. 


NOTE;  OVERHEAD AND PROFIT SHALL BE CALCULATED ON THE NET AMOUNT OF THE CHANGE ORDER. 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


275/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 16 of 29 
 
 


 


 
 
 
OVERHEAD & PROFIT (O&P) PERCENTAGE SCHEDULE 
 


(i) Refer to the O&P Schedule below. The cost of the work does not include the overhead and profit mark-
up. 


(ii) For all work, the Contractor’s Bond and Liability Insurance Premium may be added in onto 
the “Form for  EXTRA WORK and/or DEDUCTIVE WORK.” 


(iii) The O&P Schedule shall be used for “Negotiated Sum” and/or “Time and Materials” work. 
Unit Price work shall not have the overhead and profit mark-up applied to the work, on the 
basis that the Unit Price includes overhead and profit margins. 


 


 
Work by 
Subcontractor 
less than or 
equal to $2,500 


Work by 
Subcontractor 
more than 
$2,500 


Work by 
Contactor 
less than or 
equal to 
$2,500 


Work by 
Contractor 
more than 
$2,500 


Subcontractor 
Overhead and 
Profit 


20% 15% N/A N/A 


Contractor 
Overhead and 
Profit 


10% Excluding 
Bond Premium 


5% Excluding 
Bond Premium 


15% Excluding 
Bond Premium 


10% Excluding 
Bond Premium 


Total 
Overhead and 
Profit not to 
exceed 


30% 20% 15% 10% 


 


ARTICLE 7  
TIME 


7.1 DEFINITIONS. 


7.1.1 Contract Time. Unless otherwise provided, Contract Time is the period of time, including 
authorized adjustments, allotted in the Contract Documents for Completion of the Work. 


7.1.2 Days. The term “day” as used in the Contract Documents shall mean work day unless otherwise 
specifically defined. 


7.2 PROJECT PHASES AND NOTICES TO PROCEED. The date of commencement of the 
Work is the date established in the Notice to Proceed. The date shall not be postponed by the failure to 
act of the Contractor or of persons or entities for which the Contractor is responsible. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


276/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 17 of 29 
 
 


7.2.1 Governmental Approval. Contractor shall seek all such approvals of the Design Documents and 
the Project as may be required by any governmental entity having jurisdiction over the Project, and 
including but not limited to the DSA, prior to Contractor commencing work on the affected work. 
Contractor shall exercise all reasonable diligence to ensure that all necessary permits and approvals are 
received. Owner shall not unreasonably withhold its consent to any modifications to the Design 
Documents that may be requested by any governmental or quasi-governmental agency with jurisdiction 
over the Project or the work on the Project. 


7.2.2 Construction. Contractor shall facilitate, or cooperate with Owner in its efforts to facilitate, a 
kick-off meeting with Owner and any of its representatives and Contractor, and any other relevant this 
Agreement) entered into by the parties. 


7.2.3 Commissioning. During the construction phase of the work on the Project and before the Final 
Project Completion Date, Contractor shall conduct all commissioning tests in accordance with the agreed 
upon Commissioning Schedule. Contractor shall provide notice to Owner of any scheduled test(s) of 
installed equipment, and Owner or its designees shall have the right to be present at any or all such tests 
conducted by Contractor, any Subcontractor, or manufacturers of the equipment. Contractor shall be 
responsible for correcting or adjusting all deficiencies in the equipment operations that Contractor 
provided and installed that may be observed during equipment commissioning procedures. 


7.2.4 Project Completion and Closeout. Owner shall acknowledge final inspection and completion of 
the Project by executing a Certificate of Acceptance and recording a Notice of Completion in accordance 
with the Contract Documents and applicable laws. 


7.3 HOURS OF WORK. 


7.3.1 Sufficient Forces. Contractors and Subcontractors shall furnish sufficient forces to ensure the 
prosecution of the Work in accordance with the Final Project Schedule. 


7.3.2 Performance During Working Hours. Work shall be performed during regular working hours except 
that in the event of an emergency or when required to complete the Work in accordance with job progress, 
work may be performed outside of regular working hours with the advance written consent of the Owner. 


7.3.3 Labor Code Application. As provided in Article 3 (commencing at § 1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 
2 of the Labor Code, eight (8) hours of labor shall constitute a legal day’s work. The time of service of any 
worker employed at any time by the Contractor or by any Subcontractor on any subcontract under this 
Contract, upon the work or upon any part of the work contemplated by this Contract, is limited and restricted 
to eight (8) hours during any one calendar day and forty (40) hours during any one calendar week, except as 
hereinafter provided. Notwithstanding the provision hereinabove set forth, work performed by employees 
of Contractors in excess of eight (8) hours per day and forty (40) hours during any one week shall be permitted 
upon this public work with compensation provided for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours per day 
at not less than one and one-half (1-1/2) times the basic rate of pay. 


Contractor or subcontractor shall pay to the Owner a penalty of Twenty-five Dollars ($25.00) for each worker 
employed in the execution of this Contract by the Contractor, or by any Subcontractor, for each calendar day 
during which such worker is required or permitted to work more than eight (8) hours in any calendar day and 
forty (40) hours in any one (1) calendar week, in violation of the provisions of Article 3 (commencing at § 
1810), Chapter 1, Part 7, Division 2 of the Labor Code, unless compensation for the workers so employed by 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


277/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 18 of 29 
 
 


Contractor is not less than one and one-half (1-1/2) times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess 
of eight (8) hours per day. 


7.4 PROGRESS AND COMPLETION. Time limits stated in the Contract Documents are of the 
essence of the Contract. Contractor and Owner will meet following Agreement execution to negotiate a 
satisfactory schedule to establish the Contract Time. The Contractor shall not knowingly, except by 
agreement or instruction of the Owner, in writing, commence operations on the Site or elsewhere prior to 
the effective date of insurance required by Article 10 to be furnished by the Contractor. The date of 
commencement of the Work shall not be changed by the effective date of such insurance. The Contractor 
shall proceed expeditiously with adequate forces and shall achieve Completion within the Contract Time. 


7.5 EXTENSIONS OF TIME - LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. 


7.5.1 Excusable Delay. The Contractor shall not be charged for liquidated damages, as set forth in the 
Agreement, because of any delays in completion of the Work due to acts of God, pandemics, acts of public 
enemy, acts of Government, acts of the Owner or anyone employed by it, acts of another contractor in 
performance of a contract (other than this Contract) with the Owner, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine 
restrictions, strikes, unusually severe weather, or delays of subcontractors due to such causes (collectively 
“Excusable Delay”). Contractor has the burden of proving that any delay is excusable. 


7.5.2 Notice by Contractor Required. The Contractor shall within ten (10) calendar days of beginning of 
any such delay (unless Owner grants in writing a further period of time to file such notice prior to the date 
of final payment under the Contract) notify the Owner in writing of causes of delay. Owner will then ascertain 
the facts and extent of the delay and grant an extension of time for completing the Work when, in its 
judgment, the findings of fact justify such an extension. The Owner’s findings of fact thereon shall be final 
and conclusive on the parties. Extensions of time shall apply only to that portion of the Work affected by 
the delay and shall not apply to other portions of the Work not so affected. The sole remedy of Contractor 
for extensions of time under Subsection 7.5.1 shall be an extension of the Contract Time at no cost to the 
Owner. 


7.5.3 Conditions for Extension of Time. If the Contractor is delayed at any time in progress of the Work 
by an act or neglect of the Owner, an employee of Owner, or of a separate contractor employed by the 
Owner, by changes ordered in the Work, by labor disputes, fire, unusual delay in deliveries, or unavoidable 
casualties, by delay authorized by the Owner pending arbitration, or by other causes which the Owner 
determines may justify delay, then the Contract Time shall be extended by Change Order for such 
reasonable time as the Owner may determine. Claims relating to time extensions shall be made in 
accordance with applicable provisions of Article 6. 


7.5.4 Early Completion. Regardless of the cause therefore, the Contractor may not maintain any Claim 
or cause of action against the Owner for damages incurred as a result of its failure or inability to complete 
its work on the Project in a shorter period than established in the Contract Documents. 


7.5.5 Liquidated Damages. Failure to complete the Project within the time and in the manner provided 
for by the Contract Documents shall subject the Contractor to liquidated damages, as described in the 
Agreement. 


 7.6 Government Approvals. Neither the Owner nor the Contractor shall be liable for any delays or 
damages related to excessive time required to obtain government approvals, except to the extent that such 
delays or damages are caused by any act or omission of Contractor, in which case Contractor may be liable. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


278/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 19 of 29 
 
 


 7.7 Delays Due to Project Site Activities. Owner shall not be liable for any damages or compensation 
to Contractor resulting from, arising out of, or related to any delays caused by scheduled activities at Project 
Sites, including Standardized Testing and Reporting (“STAR”), graduation, Owner’s construction projects, 
and other events which would require access to Project Sites. Owner shall provide a 3 week advance notice 
for all scheduled activities. The Project Schedule will be established between the Owner and the Contractor 
at the outset of the project to evaluate the impact of then known scheduled activities at the Project Sites. 


If any part of Contractor’s work depends for proper execution or results upon work of any other contractor, 
the Contractor shall inspect and promptly report to Owner in writing any defects in such work that render it 
unsuitable for such proper execution and results. Contractor will be held liable for damages to Owner for 
that work which it failed to inspect or should have inspected. Contractor’s failure to inspect and report shall 
constitute its acceptance of other Contractor’s work as fit and proper for reception of its work, except as to 
defects which may develop in other Contractors’ work after execution of Contractor’s work. Contractor is 
not responsible for the correction of existing deficient conditions unless specifically identified in the scope 
of work. 


To ensure proper execution of its subsequent work, Contractor shall measure and inspect work already 
in place and shall at once report to the Owner in writing any discrepancy between executed work and 
Contract Documents. It is the obligation of Contractor to ascertain to its own satisfaction the scope of 
the Project and nature of any other contracts that have been or may be awarded by Owner in prosecution 
of the Project to the end that Contractor may perform its Contract in the light of such other contracts, 
if any. 


Nothing herein contained shall be interpreted as granting to Contractor exclusive occupancy of the Project. 
Contractor shall not cause any unnecessary hindrance or delay to any other contractor working on the Project. 
If simultaneous execution of any contract for the Project is likely to cause interference with performance of 
some other contract or contracts, Owner shall decide which contractor shall cease work temporarily and 
which contractor shall continue or whether work can be coordinated so that contractors may proceed 
simultaneously. 


If Owner directs Contractor to cease Work temporarily due to the work of another contractor, 
Contractor shall be entitled to a change order upon documentation of actual, reasonable costs, but such 
costs shall not include overhead, profit or general conditions for the period of time during which Work 
has ceased. 


If the Project is split into phases and/or separate contracts, then Contractor has made allowances for any 
delays or damages which may arise from coordination with contractors for other phases or contracts. If any 
delays should arise from a contractor working on a different phase or contract, Contractor’s sole remedy for 
damages, including delay damages, shall be against the contractor who caused such damage and not the 
Owner. Contractor shall provide access to contractors for other phases or contracts as necessary to prevent 
delays and damages to contractors working on other phases or contracts. 


 


ARTICLE 8 


PAYMENTS AND COMPLETION 


 8.1 CONTRACT SUM. The Contract Sum is stated in the Agreement and, including authorized 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


279/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 20 of 29 
 
 


adjustments, is the total amount payable by the Owner to the Contractor for performance of the Work 
under the Contract Documents. Progress payments shall be made in accordance with Public Contract 
Code section 20104.50. 


 8.2 COST BREAKDOWN. On forms approved by the Owner within ten (20) days of the mailing, 
faxing or delivery of the Notice of Award of the Contract, the Contractor shall furnish a schedule of 
values and a list of all subcontractors and suppliers. The Owner shall review all submissions received in 
a timely manner. All submissions must be approved by the Owner before becoming the basis of any 
payment. 


 8.3 APPLICATIONS FOR PAYMENT. On or before the fifth (5th) day of each calendar month 
during the progress of the portion of the Work for which payment is being requested, the Contractor shall 
submit to the Owner an itemized Application for Payment for operations completed in accordance with the 
Schedule of Values. As the Contractor is required to order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently 
in advance of its Work at no additional cost or advance payment from Owner, to assure that there will be no 
delays, payment by the Owner for stored material shall be made only in unusual circumstances where the Owner 
specifically approves the payment in writing. The Contractor warrants that title to all Work covered by an 
Application for Payment will pass to the Owner no later than the time of payment. Because Contractor must 
order, obtain, and store materials and equipment sufficiently in advance of its work at no additional cost or 
advance payment from Owner to assure that there will be no delays on the Project, Owner shall pay for stored 
materials only in unusual circumstances where Owner specifically approves such payment in writing. If payments 
are to be made for materials and equipment that are not incorporated in the Work on the Project but delivered 
and suitably stored at a Project Site or at some other location agreed upon in writing by Owner, the payments 
shall be conditioned upon submission by Contractor, Subcontractor, or vendor of bills of sale and such other 
documents satisfactory to Owner to establish Owner’s title to such materials or equipment free of all liens and 
encumbrances, and otherwise protect Owner’s interest, including, without limitation, provision of 
applicable insurance and transportation to the Project Site. All stored items shall be inventoried, specified 
by identification numbers (if applicable), released to Owner by the sureties and Subcontractors, and, if 
stored off the Project Site, stored only in a bonded warehouse. 


8.4   REVIEW OF PROGRESS PAYMENT. The Owner will, within seven (7) days after receipt of 
the Contractor’s Application for Payment, either approve such payment or notify the Contractor in writing of 
the Owner’s reasons for withholding approval in whole or in part. The review of the Contractor’s Application 
for Payment by the Owner is based on the Owner’s observations at the Site and the data comprising the 
Application for Payment whether the Work has progressed to the point indicated and whether, to the best of 
the Owner’s knowledge, information, and belief, the quality of the Work is in accordance with the Contract 
Documents. 


8.5   DECISIONS TO WITHHOLD PAYMENT. The Owner may withhold payment, in whole, or 
in part, to such extent as may be reasonably necessary to protect the Owner from loss because of any 
acts or omissions by Contractor, including any rights to withhold mentioned in the Contract Documents. 


8.6 PAYMENTS AND INFORMATION TO SUBCONTRACTORS. No later than 7 days after 
Contractor receives payment from Owner, pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, 
Contractor shall pay to each Subcontractor, out of the amount paid to Contractor on account of such 
Subcontractor's portion of the work, the amount to which said Subcontractor is entitled, reflecting percentages 
actually retained from payments to Contractor on account of such Subcontractor's portion of the work. 
Contractor shall, by appropriate subcontract with each Subcontractor, require each Subcontractor to make 
payments to sub-subcontractors in a similar manner. Owner has no obligation to pay, or to see to the payment 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


280/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 21 of 29 
 
 


of, money to a Subcontractor except as may otherwise be required by law. Owner will, on request, furnish to a 
Subcontractor, if practicable, information regarding percentages of completion or amounts applied for by 
Contractor, and action taken thereon by Owner, on account of portions of the work done by such 
Subcontractor. 


8.6.1   Waivers and Releases. Within 15 days after receipt of each progress payment and the Final 
Payment, Contractor shall provide (and shall cause its suppliers and Subcontractors, and their 
subcontractors to provide) to Owner an unconditional lien waiver and release (related to progress 
payment or Final Payment as applicable).  


8.7 COMPLETION OF THE WORK. The nature of the project is such that the Project may be 
completed in some facilities prior to the total completion of the overall project. Upon receipt of the 
Contractor’s request for final inspection of a facility, the Owner will make an inspection to determine whether 
the Work, or designated portion thereof, is complete. If the Owner’s inspection discloses any item which is 
not completed in accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents, the Contractor shall, before 
Owner’s issuance of the Notice of Completion for that facility, diligently complete or correct such item. The 
Notice of Final Completion will be issued after a final inspection determines that all of the work has been 
completed in accordance with the Contract Documents. 


8.8   PARTIAL OCCUPANCY OR USE. Owner may occupy or use any completed or partially 
completed portion of the Work at any stage without accepting that work and without waiving rights to claim 
damages as to that work. The Owner and the Contractor shall agree in writing to the responsibilities assigned 
to each of them for payments, security, maintenance, heat, utilities, damage to the Work, insurance, the period 
for correction of the Work, and the commencement of warranties required by the Contract Documents. 


8.9 ACCEPTANCE, NOTICE OF COMPLETION, AND FINAL PAYMENT. If the Owner’s 
representatives find the Work fully performed under the Contract Documents, they shall so notify Contractor, 
who shall then submit to the Owner its final application for progress payment. After the Owner’s 
representatives find the Work fully performed, the Owner’s governing body should accept the Work as fully 
complete. After completion, the Owner may record a Notice of Completion with the County Recorder in 
accordance with Civil Code section 3093. Contractor shall, upon receipt of final progress payment from 
Owner, pay the amounts due Subcontractors. Owner shall pay the retainage pursuant to Public Contract 
Code section 7107. Any application for final progress payment shall be accompanied by the same details 
required for regular progress payments. Acceptance of final progress payment shall constitute a waiver of 
Claims except for those previously identified in writing and identified by that payee as unsettled at the time 
of final payment. 


8.10 SUBSTITUTION OF SECURITIES. In accordance with section 22300 of the Public Contract 
Code, the Owner will permit the substitution of securities for any monies withheld by the Owner to ensure 
performance under the Contract. At the request and expense of the Contractor, securities equivalent to the 
amount withheld shall be deposited with the Owner, or with a state or federally chartered bank as the escrow 
agent, who shall then pay such monies to the Contractor. Upon completion of the Contract, the securities 
shall be returned to the Contractor. Securities eligible for investment under this section shall include those 
listed in Government Code section 16430, bank or savings and loan certificates of deposit, interest-bearing, 
demand-deposit accounts, standby letters of credit, or any other security mutually agreed to by the 
Contractor and the Owner. The Contractor shall be the beneficial owner of any securities substituted for 
monies withheld and shall receive any interest thereon. Any escrow agreement used shall be substantially 
similar to the form set forth in Public Contract Code section 22300. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


281/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 22 of 29 
 
 


ARTICLE 9 


PROTECTION OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY 


 9.1 SAFETY PRECAUTIONS AND PROGRAMS. The Contractor shall have responsibility 
for initiating, maintaining, and supervising all safety precautions and programs in connection with the 
performance of the Contract. Subcontractors have the responsibility for participating in, and enforcing, the 
safety and loss prevention programs established by the Contractor for the Project, which will cover all Work 
performed by the Contractor and its Subcontractors. Subcontractors shall promptly report in writing and by 
phone to the Contractor all accidents whatsoever arising out of, or in connection with, the performance of 
the Work, whether on or off the Site, which caused death, personal injury, or property damage, giving full 
details and statements of witnesses. The Contractor will provide and maintain at the Site first-aid supplies for 
minor injuries. 


 9.2 SAFETY OF PERSONS AND PROPERTY. The Contractor shall take reasonable precautions 
for the safety of, and shall provide reasonable protection to prevent damage, injury, or loss to: (A) Employees 
on the Work and other persons who may be affected thereby; (B) the Work, material, and equipment to be 
incorporated therein, whether in storage on or off the Site, under the care, custody, or control of the 
Contractor or the Contractor’s Subcontractors or Sub-subcontractors; and (C) other property at the Site or 
adjacent thereto such as trees, shrubs, lawns, walks, pavement, roadways, structures, and utilities not 
designated for removal, relocation, or replacement in the course of construction. The Contractor shall give 
notices and comply with applicable laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, and lawful orders of public authorities 
bearing on the safety of persons or property or their protection from damage, injury, or loss. 


The Contractor shall erect and maintain, as required by existing conditions and performance of the Contract, 
reasonable safeguards for safety and protection, including posting danger signs and other warnings against 
hazards, promulgating safety regulations, and notifying owners and users of adjacent Sites and utilities. When 
use or storage of explosives, other hazardous materials or equipment, or unusual methods are necessary for 
execution of the Work, the Contractor shall exercise utmost care and carry on such activities under 
supervision of properly qualified personnel. The Contractor shall notify the Owner any time that explosives 
or hazardous materials are expected to be stored on Site. Location of storage shall be coordinated with the 
Owner and local fire authorities. 


9.3 PROTECTION OF WORK AND PROPERTY. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall 
continuously protect the Work, the Owner’s property, and the property of others, from damage, injury, or loss 
arising in connection with operations under the Contract Documents. The Contractor and Subcontractors shall 
make good any such damage, injury, or loss, except such as may be solely due to, or caused by, agents or 
employees of the Owner. Security of the site during non-work hours is the responsibility of the Owner. 


The Contractor and the Subcontractors shall use only those ingress and egress routes designated by the 
Owner, observe the boundaries of the Site designated by the Owner, park only in those areas designated by 
the Owner, which areas may be on or off the Site, and comply with any parking control program established 
by the Owner such as furnishing license plate information and placing identifying stickers on vehicles. 


9.4 EMERGENCIES. In an emergency affecting the safety of persons or property, the Contractor 
shall take any action necessary, at the Contractor’s discretion, to prevent threatened damage, injury, or loss. 
Additional compensation or extension of time claimed by the Contractor on account of an emergency shall 
be determined as provided in Article 7. The Contractor shall promptly report in writing to the Owner all 
accidents arising out of or in connection with the Work, which caused death, personal injury, or property 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


282/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 23 of 29 
 
 


damage, giving full details, and statements of any witnesses. In addition, if death, serious personal injuries, or 
serious property damages are caused, the accident shall be reported immediately by telephone or messenger 
to the Owner. 


9.5 HAZARDOUS MATERIALS. In the event the Contractor encounters or suspects the presence 
on the Site material reasonably believed to be asbestos, polychlorinated biphenyl (PCB), or any other material 
defined as being hazardous by section 25249.5 of the California Health and Safety Code, which has not been 
rendered harmless, the Contractor shall immediately stop Work in the area affected and report the condition 
to the Owner in writing, whether or not such material was generated by the Contractor or the Owner. 


ARTICLE 10 


INSURANCE AND BONDS 


10.1. CONTRACTOR’S LIABILITY INSURANCE 


10.1.1 Liability Insurance Requirements. Before the commencement of the Work and within limits 
acceptable to the Owner, the Contractor shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully 
authorized to do business in California as admitted carriers, having a rating not lower than “A” as rated by A.M. 
Best Company, Inc. or other independent rating companies, commercial general liability insurance per 
occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage, and automobile liability insurance per 
accident for bodily injury and property damage combined single limit, as will protect the Contractor, which may 
arise out of or result from the Contractor’s operations under the Contract and for which the Contractor may 
be legally liable, whether such operations are by the Contractor, by a Subcontractor, by Sub-subcontractor, by 
anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable. 
This insurance shall be subject to the approval of Owner, and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably 
withheld. The Contractor shall require its Subcontractors and any Sub-subcontractors to take out and maintain 
similar commercial liability insurance and property damage insurance proportionate to each such Subcontractor 
scope of work. If any policy carried by any of the Subcontractors offers 50% or less of the limits required of 
the Contractor hereunder, the Contractor shall notify the District of the proposed coverage to be carried 
by such Subcontractor, and the District shall have the right in its reasonable discretion to approve or 
reject the proposed coverage in each such case. 


Owner may partially or fully occupy and/or use the Project before acceptance of the entire Project by the 
Owner. All of contractor’s required insurance must allow such occupancy and/or use without prior consent 
from insurer. 


10.1.2 Additional Insured Endorsement Requirements. The Contractor shall name the Owner and 
the Owner’s designated representative as additional insureds on Contractor’s commercial general 
liability, automobile liability, and excess/umbrella policies. 


10.1.3 Workers’ Compensation Insurance. During the term of this Contract, the Contractor shall provide 
workers’ compensation insurance for all of the Contractor’s employees engaged in Work under this Contract 
on or at the site of the Project and, in case any of the Contractor’s work is sublet, the Contractor shall require 
the Subcontractor to provide workers’ compensation insurance for all the Subcontractor’s employees 
engaged in Work under the subcontract. 


10.1.4 Builder’s Risk/”All Risk” Insurance. Unless otherwise supplied by the Owner, the Contractor, 
during the progress of the Work and until final acceptance of the Work by Owner upon completion of the 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


283/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 24 of 29 
 
 


entire Contract, shall maintain Builder’s Risk/Course-of-Construction insurance, issued on a completed 
value basis on all insurable Work included under the Contract Documents. This insurance shall be subject 
to the approval of Owner, and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. This insurance shall 
insure against all risks, including but not limited to the following perils: vandalism, theft, malicious mischief, 
fire, sprinkler leakage, civil authority, sonic boom, explosion, collapse, flood, wind, hail, lightning, smoke, 
riot or civil commotion, debris removal (including demolition) and reasonable compensation for the 
Owner’s costs and expenses required as a result of such insured loss. This insurance shall provide coverage 
in an amount not less than the full cost to repair, replace, or reconstruct the Work. Such insurance shall 
include the Owner, the Owner’s designated representative, and any other person or entity with an insurable 
interest in the Work as an additional named insured. Contractor shall not be required to carry separate fire 
insurance, so long as Contractor’s insurance required pursuant to section 10.1.4 insures the full replacement 
value of all Work included under the Contract Documents as well as the cost of any removal or demolition 
necessary to replace or repair all Work damaged by fire. The insurance shall be subject to the approval of 
Owner, and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


10.1.5 Other Insurance. The Contractor shall provide all other insurance required to be maintained 
under applicable laws, ordinances, rules, and regulations. Such insurance shall be subject to the approval 
of Owner, and Owner’s approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


10.1.6 Proof of Carriage of Insurance. The Contractor shall not commence Work nor shall it allow 
any Subcontractor to commence Work under this Contract until all required insurance, certificates, and 
an Additional Insured Endorsement and Declarations Page have been obtained and delivered in 
duplicate to the Owner for approval, and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 


10.1.7 Compliance. In the event of the failure of any contractor to furnish and maintain any insurance 
required by this Article, the Contractor shall be in default under the Contract. 


10.2 PERFORMANCE AND PAYMENT BONDS. Unless otherwise specified in the Contract 
Documents, prior to commencing any portion of the Work, the Contractor shall apply for and furnish Owner 
separate payment and performance bonds for its portion of the Work which shall cover 100% faithful 
performance of and payment of all obligations arising under the Contract Documents and/or guaranteeing 
the payment in full of all claims for labor performed and materials supplied for the Work. Only bonds 
executed by admitted Surety insurers as defined in Code of Civil Procedure section 995.120 shall be accepted. 
The surety insurers must, unless otherwise agreed to by Owner in writing, at the time of issuance of the 
bonds, have a rating not lower than “A” as rated by A.M. Best Company, Inc. or other independent rating 
companies. Owner reserves the right to approve or reject the surety insurers selected by Contractor and to 
require Contractor to obtain bonds from surety insurers satisfactory to the Owner. 


ARTICLE 11 


UNCOVERING AND CORRECTION OF WORK 


11.1 UNCOVERING OF WORK. If a portion of the Work is covered contrary to the Inspector’s 
request, the Owner’s request, or to requirements specifically expressed in the Contract Documents, it must, 
if required in writing by the Inspector or the Owner, be uncovered for the Inspector’s or the Owner’s 
observation and be replaced at the Contractor’s expense without change in the Contract Sum or Time. 


11.2 CORRECTION OF WORK; WORKMANSHIP WARRANTY. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


284/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 25 of 29 
 
 


11.2.1 Warranty and System Warranty Period. Contractor warrants that the equipment and systems 
provided under this contract shall be free from defects in material and workmanship arising from normal 
usage for a period of one year from the date of beneficial use or eighteen months from delivery of said 
equipment or systems. Within the warranty period, if Owner provides written notice to Contractor of any 
such defects within thirty (30) days after the appearance of such defect, Contractor shall, at its option, repair 
or replace the defective equipment and return said equipment to Owner. These warranties do not extend to 
any equipment which has been repaired by others, altered or misused, or which has not been properly and 
reasonably maintained. All transferable manufacturer warranties associated with the equipment will be 
transferred to the Owner. These warranties are in lieu of all other warranties, expressed or implied, including 
but not limited to those of merchantability and fitness for a specific purpose. 


11.2.2 Notice and Corrective Work. 


A. During the System Warranty Period, if any of the work on the Project is found to be not in 
accordance with the Contract Documents or otherwise defective, Owner shall provide 
Contractor with written notice thereof. 


B. With two business days of Contractor’s receipt of Owner’s notice, Contractor shall provide 
Owner with a written response, acknowledging receipt of the notice and providing Owner with 
an action plan to remedy the defect or stating the grounds for denial of the warranty work 
request. Within two business days of Owner’s receipt of Contractor’s written response, Owner 
shall provide Contractor with any objections or responses thereto. If the Parties are unable to 
agree regarding Owner’s warranty work request or a plan of action for the corrective work, the 
Parties shall proceed in accordance with their dispute resolution options under the Contract 
Documents and at law. The System Warranty Period shall be extended with respect to 
Contractor’s corrective work performed pursuant to this provision by one year, starting on the 
date that the corrective work is completed in accordance with the plan of action and approved 
by Owner. 
 


C. Unless the Parties agree in writing otherwise, Contractor shall perform and complete all 
corrective work stated in the plan of action no later than 10 days following the date of the plan 
of action. An expiration of the System Warranty Period during the performance of the correct 
work shall not release Contractor from its obligation to correct the work so long as Owner 
provided written notice of the warranty work within the System Warranty Period. 


D. These corrective requirements on Contractor shall apply regardless of whether the 
nonconforming work was observed before or after Completion and whether or not fabricated, 
installed, or completed. The Contractor shall bear costs of correcting the rejected Work, 
including additional testing, inspections, and compensation for the Inspector’s or the costs and 
expenses for professional services borne by Owner’s made necessary thereby. 


E. The Contractor shall remove from the Project Sites portions of the Work which are not in 
accordance with the requirements of the Contract Documents and are not corrected by the 
Contractor or accepted by the Owner. If the Contractor fails to correct nonconforming Work 
within a reasonable time, the Owner may correct it in accordance with Section 2.4. The Contractor 
shall bear the cost of correcting destroyed or damaged construction of the Owner or separate 
contractors, whether completed or partially completed, caused by the Contractor’s correction or 
removal of the nonconforming Work. Nothing in this Section shall be construed to establish a 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


285/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 26 of 29 
 
 


period of limitation with respect to other obligations which the Contractor might have under the 
Contract Documents. 


ARTICLE 12 


MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 


12.1  GOVERNING LAW. The Contract shall be governed by the law of the place where the Project 
is located. 


12.2 SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS. The Owner and the Contractor respectively bind themselves, their 
partners, successors, assigns, and legal representatives to the other party hereto and to partners, successors, 
assigns, and legal representatives of such other party in respect to covenants, agreements, and obligations 
contained in the Contract Documents. Neither party to the Contract shall assign the Contract as a whole or 
in part without written consent of the other. If either party attempts to make such an assignment without 
such consent, that party shall nevertheless remain legally responsible for all obligations under the Contract. 


12.3 RIGHTS AND REMEDIES; NO WAIVER. Duties and obligations imposed by the Contract 
Documents and rights and remedies available thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of duties, 
obligations, rights, and remedies otherwise imposed or available by law. No action or failure to act by the 
Inspector or the Owner shall constitute a waiver of a right or duty afforded them under the Contract 
Documents, nor shall such action or failure to act constitute approval of or acquiescence in a breach 
thereunder, except as may be specifically agreed in writing. 


12.4 TESTS AND INSPECTIONS. Tests, inspections, and approvals of portions of the Work 
required by the Contract Documents will comply with Title 24, and with all other laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, or orders of public authorities having jurisdiction. 


12.4.1 Advance Notice to Inspector. Contractor shall notify the Inspector a sufficient time but no 
shorter than two (2) working days in advance of its readiness for required observation or inspection so 
that the Inspector may arrange for same. 


12.4.2 Additional Testing or Inspection, and Costs Related Thereto. 


A. If the Inspector, Owner, or public authority having jurisdiction over the Project determines 
that any portion of the work on the Project require additional testing, inspection, or approval, 
the Inspector will, upon Owner’s written authorization, arrange for such additional testing, 
inspection, or approval. Owner shall bear such costs except in paragraph B., below. 


B. If the testing or inspection of work on the Project reveal that the work does not comply with the 
Contract Documents, Contractor shall bear all costs arising from such failure, including those of 
retesting, re-inspection, approval, or re-approval, including, but not limited to, compensation for 
services and expenses of the Inspector, testing laboratory, and any other professionals or entities 
retained by Owner. Any such costs shall be paid for by Owner, and Owner shall then invoice to 
Contractor and Contractor shall make payment thereof within 30 days after Contractor receives 
the invoice; if Contractor fails to do so, Owner shall have the right to withhold the amount from 
any payment due or to be due to Contractor under the Contract. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


286/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 27 of 29 
 
 


12.4.3 Costs for Premature Test. If Contractor requests any test or inspection for any portion of the 
Project and that portion is not ready for the inspection, Owner shall have the right to invoice Contractor 
for all costs and expenses relating to the testing or inspection, including, but not limited to, compensation 
for services and expenses of the Inspector, testing laboratory, and any other professionals or entities retained 
by Owner. Any such costs shall be paid for by Owner, and Owner shall then invoice to Contractor and 
Contractor shall make payment thereof within 30 days after Contractor receives the invoice; if Contractor 
fails to do so, Owner shall have the right to withhold the amount from any payment due or to be due to 
Contractor under the Contract. 


12.4.4 Tests and Inspections Not to Delay Work. Tests and inspections conducted pursuant to the 
Contract Documents shall be made promptly to avoid unreasonable delay in the work on the Project. 


12.5 TRENCH EXCAVATION. Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, if the Contract Sum exceeds 
$25,000 and involves the excavation of any trench or trenches five (5) feet or more in depth, the Contractor 
shall, in advance of excavation, submit to the Owner or a registered civil or structural engineer employed by 
the Owner a detailed plan showing the design of shoring for protection from the hazard of caving ground 
during the excavation of such trench or trenches. If such plan varies from the Shoring System Standards 
established by the Construction Safety Orders, the plan shall be prepared by a registered civil or structural 
engineer, but in no case shall such plan be less effective than that required by the Construction Safety Orders. 
Pursuant to Labor Code section 6705, nothing in this Article shall impose tort liability upon the Owner or 
any of its employees. 


12.6 DEBARMENT. Pursuant to Public Contract Code section 6109, no contractor or subcontractor 
may perform work on a public works project if ineligible to perform work on the project pursuant to 
sections 1777.1 or 1777.7 of the Labor Code. 


12.7 ASSIGNMENT OF ANTITRUST CLAIMS. Pursuant to Government Code section 4552, in 
entering into a public works contract or a subcontract to supply goods, services, or materials pursuant to a 
public works contract, the Contractor or Subcontractor offers and agrees to assign to the Owner all rights, 
title, and interest in and to all causes of action it may have under Section 4 of the Clayton Act, (15 U.S.C. § 
15) or under the Cartwright Act (Chapter 2 [commencing with § 16700] of Part 2 of Division 7 of the Bus. 
& Prof. Code), arising from the purchase of goods, services, or materials pursuant to the public works 
contract or the subcontract. This assignment shall be made and become effective at the time the awarding 
body tenders final payment to the Contractor, without further acknowledgment by the parties.  


12.8 AUDIT. Contractor’s Contract books, records, and files shall be subject to audit and examination 
under Government Code section 8546.7 and any amendments thereto. 


12.9 STORM WATER DISCHARGE PERMIT. If applicable, the Contractor shall file a Notice of 
Intent to comply with the terms of the general permit to discharge storm water associated with 
construction activity prior to the start of any construction activity. 


12.9.1 REBATES, UTILITY INCENTIVES, AND GRANTS Unless otherwise stated in the project 
scope-of-work, or cash flow analysis, any and all rebates, incentives, grants that are earned through the course 
of this project from public or private utilities, municipalities, development districts or state funding are 100% 
the property of Owner or their designee. The paperwork, inspections and verification required to collect 
these monies are the sole responsibility of Contractor. The Owner agrees to assist Contractor where required 
by the jurisdiction in the form of data required for the application and authorizing signatures. In the event 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


287/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 28 of 29 
 
 


the Owner incurs expenses related to the processing of the applications, Contractor shall reimburse these 
direct costs. 
 
12.9.2 TAX CREDITS, TAX DEDUCTIONS AND 179d QUALIFYING CREDITS Unless 
otherwise stated in the contract, any and all eligible tax credits or incentives that can be earned through the 
course of this project from State, Local or Federal agencies for energy efficient design are 100% the property 
of Contractor or their designee. The paperwork, inspections and verification required to collect these credits 
are the sole responsibility of Contractor. The Owner agrees to assist Contractor where required by the 
jurisdiction in the form of data required for the application and authorizing signatures and/or transfers. In 
the event the Owner incurs expenses related to the processing of the applications, Contractor shall 
reimburse these direct costs. 


ARTICLE 13 


TERMINATION OR SUSPENSION OF THE CONTRACT 


13.1 TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CAUSE. The Owner may terminate the Contract if 
the Contractor: (A) refuses or fails to supply enough properly skilled workers or proper materials; (B) fails to 
make payment to Subcontractors for materials or labor in accordance with Public Contract Code section 
10262 or Business and Professions Code section 7108.5, as applicable; (C) disregards laws, ordinances, rules, 
regulations, or orders of a public authority having jurisdiction; or (D) otherwise is in substantial breach of a 
provision of the Contract Documents. 


When any of the above reasons exist, the Owner may, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies of 
the Owner and after giving the Contractor and the Contractor’s surety, if any, written notice of seven (7) 
days, terminate the Contract and may, subject to any prior rights of the surety, (A) take possession of the site 
and of all material, equipment, tools, and construction equipment and machinery thereon owned by the 
Contractor, (B) accept assignment of subcontracts, and (C) complete the Work by whatever reasonable 
method the Owner may deem expedient. 


If the unpaid balance of the Contract Sum exceeds costs of completing the Work, including 
compensation for professional services and expenses made necessary thereby, such excess shall be paid 
to the Contractor. If such costs exceed the unpaid balance, the Contractor shall pay the difference to the 
Owner. This payment obligation shall survive completion of the Contract. 


13.2 SUSPENSION OR TERMINATION BY THE OWNER FOR CONVENIENCE. The 
Owner may, without cause, order the Contractor in writing to suspend, delay, or interrupt the Work in 
whole or in part for such period of time as the Owner may determine. An adjustment shall be made for 
increases in the cost of performance of the Contract, including profit on the increased cost of performance 
caused by suspension, delay, or interruption. No adjustment shall be made to the extent (A) that performance 
is, was, or would have been so suspended, delayed, or interrupted by another cause for which the Contractor 
is responsible; or (B) that an equitable adjustment is made or denied under another provision of this Contract. 
Adjustments made in the cost of performance may have a mutually agreed fixed or percentage fee. 


The Owner may, at any time, terminate the Contract for the Owner’s convenience and without cause. Upon 
receipt of written notice from the Owner of such termination for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor 
shall (1) cease operations as directed by the Owner in the notice; (2) take actions necessary, or that the Owner 
may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and (3) except for Work directed to be 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


288/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - A  


Page 29 of 29 
 
 


performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, terminate all existing subcontracts 
and purchase orders and enter into no further subcontracts and purchase orders. In case of such termination 
for the Owner’s convenience, the Contractor shall be entitled to receive payment for Work executed, and 
costs incurred by reason of such termination, along with reasonable overhead and profit on the Work not 
executed. 


13.3 TERMINATION BY CONTRACTOR. Contractor may not terminate for convenience. Contractor 
may only terminate for cause if the Work is stopped by others for a period of one hundred eighty (180) 
consecutive days through no act or fault of the Contractor, a Subcontractor of any tier, their agents or 
employees, or any other persons performing portions of the Work for whom the Contractor is contractually 
responsible, and the Work was stopped by others for one of the following reasons: (A) Issuance of an order 
of a court or other public authority having jurisdiction which requires Owner to stop all Work; or (B) an act 
of government, such as a declaration of national emergency, making material unavailable which requires 
Owner to stop all Work. If such grounds exist, the Contractor may serve written notice of such belief on 
Owner and demand a meet-and-confer conference to negotiate a resolution in good faith within twenty (20) 
days of receipt of such notice. If such conference does not lead to resolution and Contractor believes the 
grounds for termination still exist, Contractor may terminate the contract and recover from the Owner 
payment for Work executed and for reasonable verified costs with respect to materials, equipment, tools, 
construction equipment, and machinery, including reasonable overhead, profit, and damages for the Work 
executed, but excluding overhead (field and home office) and profit for (i) Work not performed and (ii) the 
period of time that the Work was stopped. 


13.4 NOT A WAIVER Any suspension or termination by Owner for convenience or cause under 
this Article 13 shall not act as a waiver of any claims by Owner against Contractor or others for 
damages based on breach of contract, negligence or other grounds. 


13.5 EARLY TERMINATION Notwithstanding any provision herein to the contrary, if for any fiscal year 
of this Contract the governing body of the Owner fails to appropriate or allocate funds for future periodic 
payments under the Contract after exercising reasonable efforts to do so, the Owner may upon thirty (30) 
days’ notice, order work on the Project to cease. The Owner will remain obligated to pay for the work already 
performed but shall not be obligated to pay the balance remaining unpaid beyond the fiscal period for which 
funds have been appropriated or allocated and for which the work has not been done


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


289/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - B 


Page 1 of 4 
 
 


 


 


 


Attachment “B” 


Scope of  Work 
 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


290/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - B 


Page 2 of 4 
 
 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 
 
 
Bay View Elementary 
 
HVAC 


• Replace three (3) split system units with new high efficiency units of similar size and capacity. 
Please refer to the HVAC replacement inventory for equipment size and location. 


 
The Scope of Work includes: 
 Removal and proper disposal of existing units per EPA guidelines. 
 Proper disposal or containment of refrigerant 
 Installation of three (3) new split system units 
 Disconnection/reconnection of the existing electrical service 
 Disconnection/reconnection of existing condensate drain liners (installation of new 


condensate pumps as required) 
 Start-up/testing of the new units 


 
The Scope of Work excludes: 
 Undisclosed electrical or structural upgrades/modifications. 


• Add new VRF air conditioning system to buildings D, E, and the Café. 
 


The Scope of Work Includes: 
 Design and engineering 
 Removal and disposal of existing units. 
 Electrical upgrades 


• Provide 208Y/120V 3P 4W 400A NEMA 3R panelboard MC. Panelboard 
to be located outside of MPR. 


• Utilize existing 4” conduit and provide 400A conductors to serve panel 
MC. 


• Utilize spare 400A 3P breaker in main electrical board for new panel MC. 
• Run power from new panelboard to new HVAC units. 


 Necessary disconnection/reconnection of the existing electrical lines, installation of 
new electrical disconnects. 


 Condensate lines and connections. 
 Start-up/testing of the new units, and connection to the HVAC control system. 
 Integrate new VRF controls into the existing District front end. 
 Integration of occupancy sensors where required by title 24 to reset room 


temperature during unoccupied periods. 
 


The Scope of Work Excludes: 
 Roofing repairs not directly related to the scope of mechanical work. 
 New conduit runs. 
 Undisclosed electrical or structural upgrades/modifications.. 


 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


291/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - B 


Page 3 of 4 
 
 


Solar 
• Provide and install a 194.9 kW solar PV system. Installation will include necessary engineering, 


labor, and equipment to connect the new PV system to the existing electrical meter(s). Please refer 
to Attachment F for additional detail on scope, location, system sizing, and point(s) of 
interconnection. 
 


Branciforte Middle 
Solar 


• Provide and install a 193.1 kW solar PV system. Installation will include necessary engineering, 
labor, and equipment to connect the new PV system to the existing electrical meter(s). Please refer 
to Attachment F for additional detail on scope, location, system sizing, and point(s) of 
interconnection. 


 
De Laveaga Elementary 
HVAC 


• Add new air conditioning system to buildings 1 and 2. The final HVAC system to be defined by 
final engineering design. 
 


The Scope of Work Includes: 
 Removal and disposal of existing units. 
 Electrical upgrades 


• Utilize existing 208Y/120 60A rooftop panelboard MR for mechanical 
equipment power. 


• Utilize space in panelboard MR for (3) 100A 3 pole circuit breakers. 
• Provide (3) branch circuits from panel MP to each condenser’s electrical 


disconnect. 
• Provide (3) NEMA 3R 100A fused electrical disconnects for each 


condenser. 
 Necessary disconnection/reconnection of the existing electrical lines, installation of 


new electrical disconnects. 
 Condensate lines and connections. 
 Start-up/testing of the new units, and connection to the HVAC control system. 
 Integrate new VRF controls into the existing District front end. 
 Integration of occupancy sensors where required by title 24 to reset room 


temperature during unoccupied periods. 
 


The Scope of Work Excludes: 
 Roofing repairs not directly related to the scope of mechanical work. 
 New conduit runs. 
 Undisclosed electrical or structural upgrades/modifications. 


 
Solar 


• Provide and install a 168.3 kW solar PV system. Installation will include necessary engineering, 
labor, and equipment to connect the new PV system to the existing electrical meter(s). Please refer 
to Attachment F for additional detail on scope, location, system sizing, and point(s) of 
interconnection. 


 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


292/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - B 


Page 4 of 4 
 
 


Gault Elementary  
Solar 


• Provide and install a 71.8 kW solar PV system Installation will include necessary engineering, 
labor, and equipment to connect the new PV system to the existing electrical meter(s). Please refer 
to Attachment F for additional detail on scope, location, system sizing, and point(s) of 
interconnection. 


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


293/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att - C 


 
 


 
 
 
 


Attachment “C” 


Mechanical Inventory  
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


294/329







 
 
Bay View ES ‐ HVAC Inventory 


 
 
 


 
 


  
 
 


Equipment 


 
 
 


Quantity 


Existing Equipment 
 


Manuf. 


 


Model No. 
Capacity / 


Size 


 


Year 
Replace with Like 


for Like Unit 
Maint. Bldg Split Sys Furnace 1 Trane TXC024 2 2003  


Maint. Bldg Split Sys Furnace 1 Trane TXC042 3.5 2003  


Maint. Bldg Split Sys Furnace 1 Trane TXC060 5 2003  


        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        
        


 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


295/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 1 of 8 
 
 


Attachment “D” 
Solar Installation 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


296/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 2 of 8 
 
 


 
SYSTEM LOCATION AND DESCRIPTION: 


 


Santa Cruz City Schools 


1. Site Location Bay View ES Branciforte MS De Laveaga ES Gault ES 


2. Point of 
Interconnection 


Meter #’s 
1010759612 


 
Meter # 


1009539650 
Meter # 


1010434880 
Meter # 


1009885029 


3. System Size 194.9 kWdc 193.1 kWdc 168.3 kWdc 71.8 kWdc 


5. PV Modules SunPower 
SPR-E20-435-COM 


SunPower 
SPR-E20-435-COM 


SunPower 
SPR-E20-435-COM 


SunPower 
SPR-E20-435-COM 


6. Inverters SMA Core 1 SMA Core 1 SMA Core 1 SMA Core 1 


7. System 


DSA PreCheck 
Shade & Parking 


Structures 
10’ Clear Height 


DSA PreCheck 
Shade Structure 
10’ Clear Height 


 


DSA PreCheck 
Shade & Parking 


Structures 
10’ Clear Height 


DSA PreCheck  
Shade Structure 


10’ Clear Height 


 
The information presented in the table above is subject to adjustment depending on final design and siting. 


 
1.  Permits and Regulatory Fees 


An allowance for building, fire and electrical permits only is included for 
$70,701. This amount is the total for all sites.  This amount includes DSA and 
CGS application fees for all sites. All other permits/approvals are excluded. 
Climatec includes durations of 12 weeks for procuring permit and regulatory 
approvals. Climatec will not be responsible for construction delays caused 
by permit and approval requirements from local jurisdictions or regulatory 
review bodies. Any delays in procuring permits will entitle Climatec a time 
extension change order to the contract as a day for day extension to our 
plan for obtaining required permits and/or approvals, as defined above or in 
the proposal schedule. 


 


2.  Utility Requirements 


Proposal assumes all utility-owned electrical equipment serving the sites 
electrical distribution system has adequate capacity to handle the 
photovoltaic system output. No utility required electrical equipment 
upgrade or replacement is included in this proposal, including design and 
coordination thereof. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


297/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 3 of 8 
 
 


Any costs associated with unforeseen utility interconnection 
requirements, including but not limited to utility-owned equipment 
upgrades or additions, relay protection equipment external to the 
inverters, system impact studies, or telemetry requirements and 
interconnection studies are not included in this proposal. 


3. Facility Equipment 


The existing electric panels are assumed to have provisions to accept 
cable connections on the primary side of the main service breaker, or 
adequate space and capacity for a new breaker. Panel or bus bar 
reconfiguration and/or District distribution equipment re- listing 
certification is not included. 


Contract excludes Short-Circuit Coordination Study for this project. 
Climatec will provide overcurrent settings that will be coordinated with 
District overcurrent settings. 


Contract assumes current switchboards / panelboards meet all code 
requirements. 


Solar system includes all standard interconnection related equipment on 
the District side of the meter, including panel circuit breakers, utility 
and/or visible utility lockable disconnect switches, solar metering, conduit, 
and wiring. Additional protection or upgrades required by the utilities above 
that provided by the certified inverters is not included. 


4. Shading 


The proposal design is based on existing visual conditions on site. 
Removal of trees or other obstructions to install the solar arrays and 
system components is included in the proposal. Trees and/or other 
obstructions subsequently identified for removal or trimming by the 
District must be removed or trimmed or performance 
expectations/guarantees will require adjustment. 


5. Commissioning 


The solar scope assumes commissioning requirements for the solar scope only. 


6. Monitoring 


Solar Monitoring will be accomplished via cell card. Energy 
Management System Integration or similar control or SCADA system 
integrations to the new photovoltaic array(s) is excluded from this 
proposal. All other communication and low voltage infrastructure is 
excluded from this proposal. 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


298/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 4 of 8 
 
 


7.   Site Embedding Conditions Assumed 
 
A normal embed depth of 11 feet is assumed. If additional width, 
embed depth or spread footing is needed due to soil conditions, 
additional costs will be the responsibility of the client. 


8.   Storage 
 
District shall provide Climatec with an area for storage space located near 
the Site for storage of materials, tools and equipment, and other purposes. 


9.   Exclusions; 
 
ADA. 
Scope excludes modification requirements for accessibility upgrades 
and accessibility design around the photovoltaic shade structure/parking 
canopy structures. Assumes that current parking lot layout has been 
reviewed and approved by Authority Having Jurisdiction (AHJ). If the 
architect of record recommends addition of new accessible parking 
stalls under the solar canopies, changed path of travel and/or new 
canopies over existing accessible stalls, design and construction costs 
will be addressed via Change Order. 


Irrigation. 


Irrigation reconfiguration if necessary to complete any foundation 
construction is not included. 


Fire. 


Fire hydrant flow tests are not included. 


 


Array layouts on the following pages.   


 


 


 
  


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


299/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 5 of 8 
 
 


SOLAR ARRAYS 
 
 
Bay View Elementary School  


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


300/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 6 of 8 
 
 


 
 
 
Branciforte Middle School 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


301/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 7 of 8 
 
 


 
 
Gault Elementary School 


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


302/329







Santa Cruz City Schools  
         Att – D 


Page 8 of 8 
 
 


 
 
 
De Laveaga Elementary School 


 
 


 
 


DocuSign Envelope ID: 1C974632-80D5-4307-9279-4E9DABD832F6


303/329







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.5.3.1  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT           


 


AGENDA ITEM:        Educator Effectiveness Grant Public Hearing 


  


MEETING DATE:   November 3, 2021 


 


FROM:                   Molly Parks, Asst. Superintendent, Human Resources 


  


THROUGH:            Kris Munro, Superintendent   


  


BACKGROUND: 


Santa Cruz City Schools must develop and adopt a plan delineating the expenditure of funds 


provided through the Educator Effectiveness Grant, including the professional development of 


teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals, and classified staff by December 30th, 2021 . The 


plan shall be presented in a public meeting of the governing board of the school district before 


its adoption in a subsequent public meeting. The SCCS District plan focuses on coaching, 


mentoring and professional development to support and improve instruction and school 


climate as outlined by the allowable uses below.  The plan specifically includes required 


coaching and induction for new teachers, coaching and induction for new administrators, and 


professional development for both certificated and classified staff.  These resources will 


complement the existing professional development plan outlined in the 2021-22 Action Plan for 


Ensuring Excellence and Equity. 


 


There are 10 allowable uses for the Educator Effectiveness Funds:  


 


1. Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning 


teacher or administrator induction, including, but not limited to, coaching and 


mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil 


populations with a focus on retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and 


coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not limited 


to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, 


relationships, and responsible decision making skills, improving teacher attitudes and 


beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators 


to engage in a meaningful classroom teaching experience. 


2. Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in 


literacy across all subject areas, including English language arts, history-social science, 


science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer science. 


3. Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning. 


304/329







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.5.3.1  


4. Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide 


prevention, access to mental health services, and other approaches that improve pupil 


well-being. 


5. Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative 


justice, training around implicit bias, providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered 


systems of support, transforming a school site’s culture to one that values diverse 


cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, 


and intimidation based on actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, 


gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, race or ethnicity, 


religion, or sexual orientation. 


6. Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design 


for learning, best practices for early identification, and development of individualized 


education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 


7. Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition 


programs for English learners, which may include integrated language development 


within and across content areas and building and strengthening capacity to increase 


bilingual and biliterate proficiency. 


8. New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-


related professional learning network to support the requirements of subdivision (c). 


9. Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted 


pursuant to EC Section 51226.7 into pupil instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive. 


10. Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early 


childhood education, or childhood development. 


 


Funds may be expended during the 2021–22, 2022–23, 2023–24, 2024–25 and 2025–26 fiscal 


years. 


 


FISCAL IMPACT: 


Elementary Total $507,149 (RESTRICTED) 


Secondary Total  $950,655 (RESTRICTED) 


 


 This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 


  


Goal #1: All SCCS students will be prepared to successfully access post-secondary college and 


career opportunities. 


Goal #2: SCCS will create positive, engaging school environments that promote the 


development of cognitive skills and the social-emotional well-being of all students. 


Goal #3: We will eliminate the achievement gaps that currently exist between demographic 


groups within the SCCS student community. 


305/329







 


AGENDA ITEM 8.5.3.1  


Goal #4: We will develop a highly collaborative, professional culture focused on supporting 


effective teaching. 


Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 


306/329







09.01.21


NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 


EDUCATOR EFFECTIVENESS GRANT


DATE: 
WEDNESDAY, NOVEMBER 3, 2021 


TIME: 
6:30 P.M. 


LOCATION: 
SCCS BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING 


Zoom Link: 
https://sccs-net.zoom.us/j/87199122585?


pwd=bEtXbXd1R013cFY0RVlDT0FaQlhwdz09


Passcode: SCCS 


The purpose of the hearing is to provide a public forum for community input regarding 
sufficiency of textbooks and instructional materials.  


You are invited to attend. 


307/329







09.01.21


AVISO DE AUDIENCIA PÚBLICA 


BECA DE EFICACIA DEL EDUCDOR


FECHA: 
MIÉRCOLES  de uno de NOVIEMBRE 2021 


HORA: 6:30 de la tarde 


LUGAR: 
JUNTA DEL CONSEJO DE ADMINISTRACIÓN DE 


SCCS 


Enlace de zoom: 
https://sccs-net.zoom.us/j/87199122585?


pwd=bEtXbXd1R013cFY0RVlDT0FaQlhwdz09


contraseña: SCCS 


El propósito de la audiencia es proporcionar un foro público para la opinión de la 
comunidad con respecto a la adecuación de libros de texto y materiales de instrucción. 


Usted está invitado a asistir.


308/329







Educator 


Effectiveness Grant


2021-2026


Public Hearing
November 3, 2021


309/329







Educator Effectiveness Grant


● Program providing funds to provide professional learning 


and to promote educator equity, quality, and effectiveness


● Grant Funds available to Santa Cruz City Schools starting 


2021-2022 through 2025-2026


● Funds may support professional learning for certificated 


teachers, administrators, paraprofessional educators, and 


certificated staff.


310/329







Allowable Uses
● Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional 


setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction


● Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and 


improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas


● Practices and strategies that re-engage pupils and accelerated 


learning


● Strategies to implement social-emotional learning 


● Practices to create a positive school climate


● Strategies to improve inclusive practices


311/329







Allowable Uses (Continued)
● Instruction and education to support implementing effective 


language acquisition programs for English learners,


● New professional learning networks for educators not already 


engaged in an education-related professional learning network 


● Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic 


studies curricula adopted pursuant to EC Section 51226.7


● Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and 


classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood 


development.


312/329







SCCS Plan & Budget


SCCS Educator Effectiveness Plan


Item Total for Five Years 


Elementary: $507,149  


Total for Five Years


Secondary


$950,655


2.0 FTE New Teacher Coaches-
Split 35% Elementary / 65% Secondary


$437,500 $812,500


Classified Professional 


Development


$38,649 $48,155


Administrator Coaching & 


Professional Development


$31,000 $90,000


313/329







Educator Effectiveness Grant Process


● Develop and adopt a plan by December 30th, 2021 .


● Present plan in a public meeting of the governing board  before its 


adoption in a subsequent public meeting.


● Funds may be expended during the 2021–22, 2022–23, 2023–24, 


2024–25 and 2025–26 fiscal years.


● Annual data and expenditure report will be due each year on or 


before September 30


● Final data and expenditure report will be due on or before 


September 30, 2026.


● Funds not expended by June 30, 2026, must be returned to the 


California Department of Education (CDE).


314/329







Great Support 


for Coaching & 


Professional 


Learning!
315/329







Questions? 


& Public Hearing


316/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz Secondary District Page 1 of 5


 
 


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 
 


 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Santa Cruz Secondary District            Kris Munro           


Superintendent 
kmunro@sccs.net           
(831) 429-3410 ext 220 


 
Total amount of funds received by the LEA: Date of Public Meeting prior to adoption: Date of adoption at public meeting: 
$950,655 November 3, 2021 December 15, 2021 


 
 
EC 41480  
(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this subdivision from 
the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall 
coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to support 
teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision. 
 
(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to provide 
professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus 
on any of the following areas: 
 


317/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz Secondary District Page 2 of 5


(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not 
limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on 
retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not 
limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills, 
improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a 
meaningful classroom teaching experience. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Mentoring for new teachers- These mentors will 
work with teachers with 1 and/or 2 years of 
teaching experience as a part of clearing their 
credentials and supporting them in the 
classroom.  The mentors will be trained and 
supported by the New Teacher Center. 


$162,500 $162,500 $162,500 $162,500 $162,500 812,500.00 


Classified Professional Development- This 
professional development will focus on meeting 
the identified needs of the students both in 
academics and social emotional learning. 


$9631 $9631 $9631 $9631 $9631 48,155.00 


Administrator Coaching and Professional 
Development- New administrators will 
participate in an induction program to clear their 
administrative credential along with mentoring 
and support.  Administrators that have a clear 
credential will participate in further professional 
development and coaching as need or 
requested. 


$18000 $18000 $18000 $18000 $18000 90,000.00 


Subtotal 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 950,655.00 
 
 


(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, 
including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer 
science. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


318/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz Secondary District Page 3 of 5


(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning. 
 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health 
services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around implicit bias, 
providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite’s culture to one that values 
diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, and intimidation based on 
actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, 
race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early 
identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English learners, which may 
include integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and strengthening capacity to 
increase bilingual and biliterate proficiency. 


319/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz Secondary District Page 4 of 5


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional learning network 
to support the requirements of subdivision (c). 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7 into pupil 
instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood 
development. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


Summary of Expenditures 
 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal Section (1) 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 950,655.00 


320/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz Secondary District Page 5 of 5


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal Section (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (5) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (6) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (7) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (10) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Totals by year 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 190,131.00 950,655.00 


 
Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 
950,655.00 


 
Note: 
Per EC 41480 (d)(2): On or before September 30, 2026, the LEA must report detailed expenditure information to the California Department of 
Education, including, but not limited to: 


• specific purchases made; 
• the number of the following educators who received professional development: 


o Teachers; 
o Administrators; 
o Paraprofessional educators; 
o Classified staff.


321/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz City Elementary District Page 1 of 5


 
 


Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 
 


 
Local Educational Agency (LEA) Name Contact Name and Title Email and Phone 
Santa Cruz City Elementary District            Kris Munro           


Superintendent 
kmunro@sccs.net           
(831) 429-3410 ext 220 


 
Total amount of funds received by the LEA: Date of Public Meeting prior to adoption: Date of adoption at public meeting: 
$507,149 November 3, 2021 December 15, 2021 


 
 
EC 41480  
(a)(2) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school may expend the funds received pursuant to this subdivision from 
the 2021–22 fiscal year to the 2025–26 fiscal year, inclusive. School districts, county offices of education, charter schools, and state special schools shall 
coordinate the use of any federal funds received under Title II of the federal Every Student Succeeds Act of 2015 (Public Law 114–95) to support 
teachers and administrators with the expenditure of funds received pursuant to this subdivision. 
 
(b) A school district, county office of education, charter school, or state special school shall expend funds apportioned pursuant to this section to provide 
professional learning for teachers, administrators, paraprofessionals who work with pupils, and classified staff that interact with pupils, with a focus 
on any of the following areas: 
 


322/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz City Elementary District Page 2 of 5


(1) Coaching and mentoring of staff serving in an instructional setting and beginning teacher or administrator induction, including, but not 
limited to, coaching and mentoring solutions that address a local need for teachers that can serve all pupil populations with a focus on 
retaining teachers, and offering structured feedback and coaching systems organized around social-emotional learning, including, but not 
limited to, promoting teacher self-awareness, self-management, social awareness, relationships, and responsible decision-making skills, 
improving teacher attitudes and beliefs about one’s self and others, and supporting learning communities for educators to engage in a 
meaningful classroom teaching experience. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Mentoring for new teachers- Two mentors will 
work with teachers with 1 and/or 2 years of 
teaching experience as a part of clearing their 
credentials and supporting them in the 
classroom.  The mentors will be trained and 
supported by the New Teacher Center. 


$87,500 $87,500 $87,500 $87,500 $87,500 437,500.00 


Classified Professional Development- This 
professional development will focus on building 
the capacity of our classified team to meet 
identified needs of the students both in 
academics and social emotional learning. 


$7,730 $7,730 $7,730 $7,730 $7,729 38,649.00 


Administrator Coaching and Professional 
Development- New administrators will 
participate in an induction program to clear their 
administrative credential along with mentoring 
and support.  Administrators who have a clear 
credential will participate in further professional 
development and coaching that addresses at 
least one of the focus areas outlined in the 
grant requirements. 


$6,200 $6,200 $6,200 $6,200 $6,200 31,000.00 


Subtotal 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,429.00 507,149.00 
 
 


(2) Programs that lead to effective, standards-aligned instruction and improve instruction in literacy across all subject areas, 
including English language arts, history-social science, science, technology, engineering, mathematics, and computer 
science. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 


323/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz City Elementary District Page 3 of 5


 
(3) Practices and strategies that reengage pupils and lead to accelerated learning. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(4) Strategies to implement social-emotional learning, trauma-informed practices, suicide prevention, access to mental health 
services, and other approaches that improve pupil well-being. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(5) Practices to create a positive school climate, including, but not limited to, restorative justice, training around implicit bias, 
providing positive behavioral supports, multitiered systems of support, transforming a schoolsite’s culture to one that values 
diverse cultural and ethnic backgrounds, and preventing discrimination, harassment, bullying, and intimidation based on 
actual or perceived characteristics, including disability, gender, gender identity, gender expression, language, nationality, 
race or ethnicity, religion, or sexual orientation. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(6) Strategies to improve inclusive practices, including, but not limited to, universal design for learning, best practices for early 
identification, and development of individualized education programs for individuals with exceptional needs. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


324/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz City Elementary District Page 4 of 5


(7) Instruction and education to support implementing effective language acquisition programs for English learners, which may 
include integrated language development within and across content areas, and building and strengthening capacity to 
increase bilingual and biliterate proficiency. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(8) New professional learning networks for educators not already engaged in an education-related professional learning network 
to support the requirements of subdivision (c). 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(9) Instruction, education, and strategies to incorporate ethnic studies curricula adopted pursuant to Section 51226.7 into pupil 
instruction for grades 7 to 12, inclusive. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


(10) Instruction, education, and strategies for certificated and classified educators in early childhood education, or childhood 
development. 


 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
 
 


325/329







Educator Effectiveness Block Grant 2021 for Santa Cruz City Elementary District Page 5 of 5


Summary of Expenditures 
 


Planned Activity Budgeted 
2021-22 


Budgeted 
2022-23 


Budgeted 
2023-24 


Budgeted 
2024-25 


Budgeted  
2025-26 


Total Budgeted 
per Activity 


Subtotal Section (1) 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,429.00 507,149.00 


Subtotal Section (2) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (3) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (4) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (5) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (6) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (7) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (8) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (9) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 


Subtotal Section (10) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 
Totals by year 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,430.00 101,429.00 507,149.00 


 
Total planned expenditures by the LEA: 
507,149.00 


 
Note: 
Per EC 41480 (d)(2): On or before September 30, 2026, the LEA must report detailed expenditure information to the California Department of 
Education, including, but not limited to: 


• specific purchases made; 
• the number of the following educators who received professional development: 


o Teachers; 
o Administrators; 
o Paraprofessional educators; 
o Classified staff.


326/329







AGENDA ITEM: 8.5.4.1. 


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOL DISTRICT 
 
 


AGENDA ITEM: Resolution 13-21-22 Supporting AB75 
      
MEETING DATE:  November 3, 2021 
 
FROM:    Kris Munro, Superintendent 
 


 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approve Resolution 13-21-22 in support of Assembly Bill 75 to set forth the Kindergarten-
Community Colleges Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2022 as a state general obligation 
bond act that would provide the funds to construct and modernize education facilities. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
In 2016, California voters passed a statewide School Bond through Proposition 51. Those 
allocated funds have become fully reserved and the Office of Public School Construction has 
paused further requests and created a wait list for additional projects. 
 
Assembly Bill 75 will add another statewide school facility bond to the 2022 ballot as a solution 
to continue funding facilities from kindergarten through community college. The $12 billion 
bond act would become operative only if approved by the voters at an unspecified statewide 
election in 2022. It will also increase the amount of matching funds a District qualifies for based 
on a district's gross bonding capacity per enrollment and a district's unduplicated pupil 
percentage.  
 
AB 75 will allocate much needed matching funds for new construction and modernization, 
replacement of facilities older than 75 years, remediation of lead in water, career technical 
education programs, infrastructure upgrades for expanded broadband, and interim housing 
assistance during disasters. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
None 
 
This work is in direct support of the following district goals and their corresponding metrics: 
 
Goal #5: SCCS will maintain a balanced budget and efficient and effective management. 
 


327/329







RESOLUTION 13-21-22  


SANTA CRUZ CITY SCHOOLS DISTRICT IN SUPPORT  


OF ASSEMBLY BILL NO. 75, KINDERGARTEN-COMMUNITY 


COLLEGES PUBLIC EDUCATION FACILITIES BOND ACT OF 2022 
 


 


WHEREAS, Santa Cruz City Schools (“District”) is committed to providing a quality 


education to our students and preparing them to succeed in today’s global economy; and 


  


WHEREAS, the District has over $ 300 million in facility needs which is eligible to be 


partially matched by State School Facility funds; and 


WHEREAS, the District has several projects on the current Wait List eligible for 


approximately $20 million in state matching funds if voters approve AB 75; and 


WHEREAS, replacing, upgrading and/or building new classrooms and facilities is expensive 


and state school bond funds provide the opportunity for Districts to build safe, welcoming, 


and modern classrooms that offer the learning opportunities required for a high-quality 21st 


century education; and 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 75, as currently written, authorizes the Kindergarten-Community 


Colleges Public Education Facilities Bond Act of 2022 (Bond Act of 2022), providing 


funding for renovation and improvements of existing classrooms, construction of new 


classrooms and school facilities, upgrades for HVAC and clean air filters; and 


WHEREAS, new bond funds will expand Career Technical Education facilities to improve 


job and career training, provide funds to meet new needs related to COVID-19, assistance for 


small school districts; Charter School Facilities, and interim housing to assist Districts 


impacted by natural disasters. 


WHEREAS, the District supports the School Facility Program retaining date order funding 


for all projects on the Wait List; and  


WHEREAS, the passage of a new State Facility Bond will create jobs throughout California, 


including careers within the building trades, 


 


WHEREAS, the State of California has committed funds from all previous bond measures 


and is currently facing an increasing backlog of unfunded needs, currently at over $3 billion 


dollars; and 


 


WHEREAS, Assembly Bill 75, the Bond Act of 2022, will not raise individual local 


property taxes, while at the same time reduces the need for additional local property taxes for 


school facilities, and 


328/329







NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that Santa Cruz City Schools supports the 


Assembly Bill 75 the Kindergarten-Community Colleges Public Education Facilities Bond 


Act of 2022 in its current form as drafted and published on May 24, 2021.  


APPROVED, PASSED, AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of Santa Cruz City 


Schools this 3rd day of November 2021, by the following vote:   


YES:______________  


NOES:______________  


ABSENT:____________  


ABSTAINED:_________  


 


I, Claudia Vestal, President of the Santa Cruz City Schools Board of Education, do hereby 


certify that the forgoing is full, true, and correct copy of the Resolution passed and adopted 


by said Board at a regularly scheduled and conducted meeting held on said date, which 


Resolution is on file in office of said Board.  


 


   


President of the Board of Education  Clerk of the Board of Education 


 


 


 


 


 


 


  


329/329





		Agenda 11.03.21

		Meeting September 1, 2021

		Meeting October 20, 2021

		Out of State Travel Request

		8.1.2.1. POs Bids & Quotes cover

		PO BOARD REPORT FOR 110321 MEETING

		8.1.2.2. Vendor Warrants Register Cover

		Warrant Report 10.15 to 10.22.21 (1)

		8.1.2.3. 21-22 Long Term Debt Cover 11.03.21

		2021-22 Long Term Debt Report Presentation_10 22 21

		8.1.2.4 1st Qtr Investment Report 2021-22 cover

		8.1.2.4 21-22 INTEREST HISTORY MEMO Sep

		8.1.2.4 21-22 Int History SEPT 2021

		1st Qtr Invst Rpt SC Co Treasurer

		8.1.2.5. Disposition of Surplus 11.03.21- Cover

		Surplus List- IT 11.03.21

		Personnel Actions--Certificated

		Personnel Actions--Classified

		8.2.1.1. CSA- PBL Works- Cover

		8.2.1.1. PBL Works CSA

		8.2.1.1. PBL Attachment

		8.2.2.1. True North Research agrmt cover

		8.2.2.1. True North Research - SCCS Bond Survey Proposal and Agreement

		8.2.2.2. ACCO Engineered Systems Proposal Annual HVAC Preventative Maintenance Cover

		8.2.2.2. ACCO Engineered Systems Proposal Annual HVAC Preventative Maintenance

		8.2.2.3. Board Cover Electric School Bus Grant

		8.2.2.3. Purchase Order

		8.2.2.3. Signed Bus Quote

		8.2.4.1 CSA Carolyn Post 21-22 cover

		8.2.4.1 CSA Carolyn Post

		8.3.1. Abacherli Fence Proposal Santa Cruz High School Interim Housing Temporary Fencing Cover

		8.3.1. Abacherli Fence Proposal Santa Cruz High School Interim Housing Temporary Fencing

		8.3.2. Belli Architectural Group Inc. Proposal DeLaveaga Elementary School Central Kitchen Refrigeration Cover

		8.3.2. Belli Architectural Group Inc. Proposal DeLaveaga Elementary School Central Kitchen Refrigeration

		8.3.3. Communication Service Corporation Proposal Santa Cruz High School Announcer Booth IDF Cover

		8.3.3. Communication Service Corporation Proposal Santa Cruz High School Announcer Booth IDF

		8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons Inc Change Order 1 DeLaveaga Elementary School Tack Board Installation Cover

		8.3.4. Dilbeck & Sons Inc Change Order 1 DeLaveaga Elementary School Tack Board Installation

		8.3.5. Leach Group Proposal Santa Cruz High School Interim Housing Inspections Cover

		8.3.5. Leach Group Proposal Santa Cruz High School Interim Housing Inspections

		8.3.6. M3 Environmental Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Gym Roof Oversight Cover

		8.3.6. M3 Environmental Proposal Mission Hill Middle School Gym Roof Oversight

		8.3.7. Peninsula Business Interiors Change Order 1 Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Furniture Installation Cover

		8.3.7. Peninsula Business Interiors Change Order 1 Branciforte Small Schools Alternative Family Education Furniture Installation

		8.3.8. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Electrical Cover

		8.3.8. PSR Electric Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Electrical

		8.3.9. SC Systems Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Data Cover

		8.3.9. SC Systems Proposal Santa Cruz High School Temporary Housing Data

		8.3.10. Secureall Proposal Transportation Building Door Locks Cover

		8.3.10. Secureall Proposal Transportation Building Door Locks

		8.5.1.1. COVID Resource Intervention Update Board Cover 11.03.21

		8.5.1.1. COVID resources update board presentation 11.3.21

		8.5.2.1 Food Services Update cover

		8.5.2.1. Food Services Board Presentation 11.3.21 final

		8.5.2.2. Bond Projects Update cover

		8.5.2.2. 19six SCCS Board Presentation

		8.5.2.3. Public Hearing_ Climatec Resolution- Cover

		8.5.2.3. Public Hearing_ Climatec Resolution

		Public Hearing- Climatec Agreement- Spanish

		Resolution 14-21-22 Climatec Agmt Cover 11.03.21

		Resolution 14-21-22

		Resolution 14-21-22 Exhibit A

		SCCS Phase IV - Climatec Installation Agreement - Executed (10-27-21)

		8.5.3.1. - Cover -  Educator Effectiveness Grant Public Hearing

		Public Hearing-Educator Effectiveness Grant

		Public Hearing-Educator Effectiveness Grant Spanish

		8.5.3.1. - Board Presentation - Educator Effectiveness Grant

		8.5.3.1. - Attachment - 2021 seoncdary_Educator_Effectiveness_Block_Grant_Plan_Santa_Cruz_City_Schools_20211027 (1)

		8.5.3.1. - Attachment - 2021_ELEM Educator_Effectiveness_Block_Grant_Plan_Santa_Cruz_City_Schools_20211027

		8.5.4.1. Resolution 13-21-22 AB75 Cover

		8.5.4.1. Resolution 13-21-22 in Support of AB 75




